
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2012 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Michael W. Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, 
communications and recommendations that accompany your 
agenda.  Also included are suggested or requested resolutions 
and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been 
prepared by department directors and staff members.  I am 
indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight and professional 
advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as 
your deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Michael W. Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
September 24, 2012 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Mr. Fred Betcher – Troy Assembly of God 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 
for Alternative Automotive Technologies – 1225 E. Maple 1 

E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for Alternative Automotive Technologies – 1225 E. Maple 2 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 3 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 5 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 5 

H-1  Planned Unit Development (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (Formerly 
“The Monarch”) PUD, North Side of Big Beaver Road Between Alpine and 
McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family 
Residential) Districts 5 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Animal Control Appeal Board; Parks and Recreation 
Board 7 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations – None 8 

I-3 Request for Closed Session 10 

I-4  Application Regarding SDM Liquor License for 7-Eleven 10 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 11 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 11 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 11 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 11 

a) Regular City Council Meeting – September 10, 2012 ......................................... 12 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Proposed 12 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 12 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow 
Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators................................................ 12 



 

 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program ........................................................................................ 12 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Collection Agency 
Services .............................................................................................................. 13 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts ...... 13 

J-5  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 13 

J-6  Community Center Kitchen Lease Renewal 14 

J-7  Citizens United Against Corrupt Government v. Troy City Council 14 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 14 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 14 

a) Announcement of Public Hearing for October 22, 2012 – Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2013 Application ......................................... 14 

b) Announcement of Public Hearing for October 8, 2012 – Conditional Rezoning 
Application (File Number CR 006) – Proposed Troy Plaza Development, 
West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5550 New King), Section 8, 
From PUD (Planned Unit Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB 
(Community Business) Districts .......................................................................... 14 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 15 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 15 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 15 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 15 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

N-1   No Council Comments Advanced 15 

O. REPORTS: 15 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Downtown Development Authority-Final-May 2, 2012 ........................................ 15 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-June 20, 2012 ........................................ 15 



 

 

c) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final-June 26, 2012 ..................................... 15 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-July 17, 2012 .................................................... 15 
e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-July 17, 2012 .................................................... 15 
f) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-August 13, 2012 ............................................ 15 
g) Planning Commission-Special/Study-Draft-August 28, 2012 ............................. 15 
h) Planning Commission-Special/Study-Final-August 28, 2012 ............................. 15 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-September 5, 2012 ................................ 15 
j) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-September 10, 2012 ...................................... 15 
k) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Draft-September 11, 2012 ........................... 15 

O-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Troy Transit Center Status Report – September 2012 ....................................... 15 
b) Retiree Pension and Benefit Report for Calendar Year Ended December 31, 

2011 ................................................................................................................... 15 

O-3  Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Troy Fire Department from Virginia Mottershaw 
Thanking Firefighter Robinson for Assistance .................................................... 15 

b) Letter of Congratulations to Mayor and City Council from James D. 
McDonald, Mayor of Auburn Hills, Congratulating Troy for Being Recognized 
by CNN-Money as One of America’s Top 100 Places to Live ............................ 15 

c) Letter of Congratulations to Mayor Daniels from Bryan K. Barnett, Mayor of 
Rochester Hills, Congratulating Troy for Being Recognized by CNN-Money as 
One of America’s Top 100 Places to Live .......................................................... 15 

O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 15 

O-5  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of The Detroit Edison Company Case 
No. U-16656 16 

O-6  Crain’s Detroit Business Article – “Mahindra Picks Troy to Set Up First North 
American Technical Center” 16 

O-7  Certificate from the Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys Inducting City 
Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Into the Academy of Municipal Attorneys 16 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 16 

P-1  No Study Items 16 

Q. CLOSED SESSION: 16 

Q-1  Closed Session 16 



 

 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 16 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 16 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, October 8, 2012 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 16 
Monday, October 22, 2012 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 16 
Monday, November 12, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, November 26, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, December 3, 2012 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 16 
Monday, December 17, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Mr. Fred Betcher – Troy Assembly of God 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Janice Daniels 

Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of       at the Regular 
City Council Meeting of September 24, 2012, due to      . 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 

for Alternative Automotive Technologies – 1225 E. Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to PA 198 of 1974, as amended, the Troy City Council has the authority 
to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD’s) within the City of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, Alternative Automotive Technologies has petitioned the Troy City Council to 
establish an Industrial Development District (IDD) on its property located in the City of Troy, 
hereinafter described; and 
 
WHEREAS, Construction, acquisition, alteration, or installation of a proposed facility had not 
commenced at the time of filing the request to establish the district; and  
 
WHEREAS, Written notice was given by mail to all owners of real property located within the 
district, and to the public by newspaper advertisement in the newspaper of record, and public 
posting of the hearing on the establishment of the district; and 
 
WHEREAS, On September 24, 2012, a public hearing was held at which all owners of real 
property within the proposed Industrial Development District (IDD) and all residents and 
taxpayers of the City of Troy were afforded an opportunity to be heard thereon; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of Troy to 
establish the Industrial Development District (IDD) as proposed. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial 
Development District (IDD) for property known as 1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #88-
20-26-351-024, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward 
a certified copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for Alternative Automotive Technologies – 1225 E. Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 24, 2012, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known 
as 1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel # 88-20-26-351-024; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Alternative Automotive Technologies for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1225 E. Maple, Troy, 
MI 48083 for nine (9) years; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on September 24, 
2012, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 
Alternative Automotive Technologies at 1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI 48083, may have the effect of 
substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of 
the taxing unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, The aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem taxes 
within the City of Troy, after granting this certificate will not exceed 5% of an amount equal to 
the sum of the SEV of the City of Troy, plus the SEV of real and personal property thus 
exempted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative Automotive 
Technologies at 1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of 
the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the 
City of Troy or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative Automotive Technologies at 
1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel # 88-20-26-351-024, for personal property for a term of 
nine (9) years, after completion, CONTINGENT UPON the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and Alternative Automotive Technologies, and the payment of the 
fees in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Alternative Automotive 
Technologies, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 4 - 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda or Study 
items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the 
Public Comment for Items On the Agenda portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda portion of the 
Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide 
his or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). 
If the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then 
the speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City 
Council members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 

The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather 
than to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is 
required to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start 
of the meeting. There are two Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the 
Agenda, speakers can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda, 
or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Speakers can sign up to address all other 
topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in 
front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there is one minute of speaker time remaining, and 
turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
 
 In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments 
about any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, 
including having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the 
deletion of speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be 
careful to avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and 
defamation.   
 
 Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum 
befitting this great City. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 5 - 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1  Planned Unit Development (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (Formerly 

“The Monarch”) PUD, North Side of Big Beaver Road Between Alpine and McClure, 
Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, AF Jonna Development has requested Concept Development Plan approval and 
Preliminary Development Plan approval concurrently, pursuant to Article 11 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance, for Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development (PUD 4), located on the 
north side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, in Section 20, currently zoned PUD 
004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts, being approximately 7.5 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development includes a 24,000 
square foot retail building and a 3,500 square foot bank branch along Big Beaver Road, with 16 
single family residential units to the north; and 
 
WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The commercial component along Big Beaver achieves many of the goals of the 
Big Beaver Corridor Study; and 
 
WHEREAS, The pedestrian amenities proposed by the applicant along Big Beaver provide a 
significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that can be an 
example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor; and 
 
WHEREAS, The residential component serves as a suitable transition between the commercial 
component and the existing residential neighborhood to the north; and 
 
WHEREAS, The application is compatible with adjacent properties and uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Section 11.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposed PUD on 
August 14, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development includes parcels 1 through 10 as 
described in the following legal descriptions and illustrated on the attached Topographic Survey 
drawing: 
 
Land situated in the County of Oakland, City of Troy, State of Michigan, is described as follows: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 6 - 

 
PARCEL 1: 
Lot 90, EXCEPT the South 42 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof 
as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-
055).  
 
PARCEL 2: 
Lot 91, also the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the South 182 feet of Lot 92 and Lot 93, 
EXCEPT the North 91 feet of the West 120 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 
20-20-402-053).  
 
PARCEL 3: 
Lot 92, EXCEPT the South 42 feet also EXCEPT the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the 
South 182 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-054). 
  
PARCEL 4: 
The North 91 feet of the West 120 feet of Lot 93, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 
20-20-402-052).  
 
PARCEL 5: 
Lot 94, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-018).  
 
PARCEL 6: 
Lot 95, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-017).  
 
PARCEL 7: 
Lot 96, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-016).  
 
PARCEL 8: 
Lot 122, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-030).  
 
PARCEL 9: 
Lot 123, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-031).  
 
PARCEL 10:  
Lot 124, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-032).  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, City Council hereby DECLARES the former Monarch 
Planned Unit Development, including all approved agreements, site plans and drawings, to be 
abandoned and rescinded; the subject property retains the PUD-004 zoning designation; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 7 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES rezoning of the northern two 
parcels (Parcel 7, 3128 Alpine, and Parcel 8, 3141 McClure) from R-1B (One Family Residential 
District) to PUD-004 and APPROVES the inclusion of the two parcels into PUD-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Planning 
Director and City Clerk to take whatever actions are necessary pursuant to the City Ordinance 
to effect the rezoning of the Parcel 7 and Parcel 8 to PUD-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to delineate Parcel 7 and Parcel 8 as PUD-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 
Planned Unit Development Agreement and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the Planned Unit Development Agreement for Big Beaver Center Planned Unit 
Development on behalf of the City; a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept Development 
Plan (CDP) and Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for Big Beaver Center PUD; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the RECORDING 
of the executed Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development Agreement with the Oakland 
County Register of Deeds; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept 
Development Plan for Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development and the petitioner is 
hereby permitted to seek Final Site Plan Approval. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Animal Control Appeal Board; Parks and Recreation 
Board 

 
a) Mayoral Appointments - None 
 
b) City Council Appointments  

 
Resolution #2012-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated:  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 8 - 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires:  9/30/2015 Al Petrulis 
 Term currently held by: Al Petrulis 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2015 Gretchen Waters 
 Term currently held by: Vincent Viola 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School Board Member: 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 
Term Expires:  9/30/2015 Orestis Kaltsounis 
 Term currently held by: Orestis Kaltsounis 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2015 Laurie Huber 
 Term currently held by: Stuart Redpath 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown 

Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations – None 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City 
Council Meeting for action:  
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
13 Regular Members 

4 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 3 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 9 - 

Carnago Gregory 2/1/2014 9/30/2012 In District Requests 
Reappointment 

Daniels Janice  11/03/2015 Mayor  
Hay David R. 11/16/2013 9/30/2015 In District  

Hodges Michele 6/14/2014 9/30/2013 In District Requests 
Reappointment 

Keisling Laurence 5/25/2014 9/30/2012 At large Requests 
Reappointment 

Kiriluk Alan M. 11/18/2013 9/30/2012 In District  

Knight P. Terry 1/4/2014 9/30/2015 At Large Personnel Bd exp 
4/30/2015 

MacLeish Daniel 5/26/2014 9/30/2012 In District Requests 
Reappointment 

Randol Ward Jr. 10/12/2013 9/30/2014 In District  
Reschke Ernest C. 9/21/2012 9/30/2014 At large  
Schroeder Douglas J. 9/30/2012 9/30/2014 At large  
Van Dyke Earle 1/31/2014 9/30/2015 In District  
Weiss Harvey 8/6/2011 9/30/2012 In district  

 

 
Nominations to the Downtown Development Authority: 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2016  (In District) 
 Term currently held by: Gregory Carnago 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2016  (At Large) 
 Term currently held by: Laurence Keisling 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2016  (In District) 
 Term currently held by: Alan Kiriluk 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2016  (In District) 
 Term currently held by: Daniel MacLeish 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2016  (In District) 
 Term currently held by: Harvey Weiss 
 
Interested Applicants: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 10 - 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire Notes 2 

Chambers Barbara A. 2/9/2013  
Hoef Paul V. 11/21/2013 EDC exp. 4/30/2015 
Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014  
Kempen Edward 2/1/2014 Planning Commission 
Knight Barbara 1/4/2014 EDC exp. 4/30/2015 
Kornacki Rosemary 11/15/2013 Brownfield Redev Authority exp 4/30/2014 
Mallin Aaron 10/10/2013  
Sawyer Jr. Thomas G. 2/3/2014 Municipal Bldg. Authority exp. 01/31/2013 
Schultz Robert M. 11/11/2013  
Swartz Robert D. 7/25/2013 Brownfield exp 4/30/2014; EDC exp 4/30/2018 
Vassallo Joseph J. 12/6/2013 Brownfield Redev. Auth. exp 4/30/2015 
Wilberding Bruce J. 2/8/2014 Brownfield Redev. Auth. exp 4/30/2013 

 

 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
b) City Council Nominations - None 

 
I-3 Request for Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (j) (MCL 15.243 (g)). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-4  Application Regarding SDM Liquor License for 7-Eleven 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
  
(a) SDM License 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 11 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : 7-Eleven, Inc. 
Type of License Requested : SDM Liquor License 

Located at : 4060 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48084 
MLCC Request # : 665539 

 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
   
Yes: 
No: 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 12 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted:  
a) Regular City Council Meeting – September 10, 2012 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Proposed 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal 

Rental Equipment Including Operators 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
 
WHEREAS, On November 21, 2011, Troy City Council awarded contracts to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal rental equipment including operators for municipal property and 
local roads with an option to renew for one (1) additional season to the following low bidders:  
Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., Florence Cement Company, and DiPonio 
Contracting, all at the hourly rates as contained in the original bid tabulation opened November 
1, 2011 (Resolution #2011-11-267-J4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, All three (3) vendors have agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew their 
contracts under the same pricing, terms, and conditions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the 
option to renew the contracts to provide snow removal services with Advanced Landscape & 
Builders Supply Inc. for municipal property; Florence Cement Company and DiPonio 
Contracting for local roads, under the same prices, terms, and conditions expiring April 30, 
2013, CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission of properly executed insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to extend 
the hourly contract rates to other contractors after the awarded vendors have been employed to 
speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete a portion of the 
Parking Lot Maintenance Program for FY 2012/13 to the low total bidder, Asphalt Specialists 
Inc of Pontiac, MI for Task 1, Fire Station One; and Tasks 2, 3 and 4 at the Community Center, 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 12, 2012, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, the cost of which SHALL NOT EXCEED 
budgetary limitations.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 13 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Collection Agency 

Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide two-year 
requirements of Collection Agency Services for the City of Troy and the Troy Public Library with 
the option to renew for three (3) additional years to the sole proposer, Credit Bureau Collection 
Services, Inc. dba CBCS of Columbus, OH, as a result of a best value process, which the Troy 
City Council determines to be in the public interest, in accordance with the Agreement 
contained herein for RFP-COT 10-41 that opened May 31, 2011, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That award is CONTINGENT UPON contractor’s submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Agreement for Collection Agency Services once in acceptable form to 
expire September 24, 2014. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
 
WHEREAS, On September 26, 2011, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract with an 
option to renew for one additional year for Tee Shirts to the low total bidder, ITA Printing of 
Butler, PA (Resolution #2011-09-218-J4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, ITA Printing has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms, and conditions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby determines it to be in 
the City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to renew the contract with ITA Printing to 
provide Tee Shirts under the same prices, terms, and conditions for one additional year at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 7, 2011, to expire September 30, 
2013. 
  
J-5  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on the East 
side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to Congregation Shir Tikvah to the 
entrance to Boulan Park, on Tuesday, September 25, 2012, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm, and 
Wednesday, September 26, 2012, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm. 
 
J-6  Community Center Kitchen Lease Renewal 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
  
WHEREAS, On November 15, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a two-year contract with an 
option to renew for three (3) additional years to lease the Community Center kitchen to 
Emerald Food Services Inc. (Resolution #2010-11-262-J-5); and  
 
WHEREAS, Emerald Food Services Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew for three 
(3) additional years under the same prices, terms, and conditions;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby determines it to be in the 
City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to renew the Community Center kitchen lease for 
three additional years with Emerald Food Services Inc. of Troy, MI under the same prices, 
terms, and conditions as the 2010 contract expiring September 30, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the Renewal Agreement; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7  Citizens United Against Corrupt Government v. Troy City Council 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-09-      
  
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED to represent the 
Troy City Council in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Citizens United Against 
Corrupt Government v Troy City Council (Oakland County Circuit Court, Case No. 12-
129214CZ) and to retain any necessary expert witnesses or pay any necessary costs to 
adequately represent the City.  
 
K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Announcement of Public Hearing for October 22, 2012 – Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) 2013 Application 
b) Announcement of Public Hearing for October 8, 2012 – Conditional Rezoning 

Application (File Number CR 006) – Proposed Troy Plaza Development, West Side of 
Crooks, North Side of New King (5550 New King), Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB (Community Business) Districts 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 15 - 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Downtown Development Authority-Final-May 2, 2012 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-June 20, 2012 
c) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final-June 26, 2012 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-July 17, 2012  
e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-July 17, 2012 
f) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-August 13, 2012  
g) Planning Commission-Special/Study-Draft-August 28, 2012 
h) Planning Commission-Special/Study-Final-August 28, 2012  
i) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-September 5, 2012 
j) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-September 10, 2012 
k) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Draft-September 11, 2012 
 
O-2 Department Reports:  
a) Troy Transit Center Status Report – September 2012  
b) Retiree Pension and Benefit Report for Calendar Year Ended December 31, 2011 
 
O-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Troy Fire Department from Virginia Mottershaw Thanking 

Firefighter Robinson for Assistance 
b) Letter of Congratulations to Mayor and City Council from James D. McDonald, Mayor of 

Auburn Hills, Congratulating Troy for Being Recognized by CNN-Money as One of 
America’s Top 100 Places to Live 

c) Letter of Congratulations to Mayor Daniels from Bryan K. Barnett, Mayor of Rochester 
Hills, Congratulating Troy for Being Recognized by CNN-Money as One of America’s 
Top 100 Places to Live 

 
O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 24, 2012 
 

- 16 - 

O-5  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of The Detroit Edison Company Case 
No. U-16656 

 
O-6  Crain’s Detroit Business Article – “Mahindra Picks Troy to Set Up First North 

American Technical Center” 
 
O-7  Certificate from the Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys Inducting City 

Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Into the Academy of Municipal Attorneys 
 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 
P-1  No Study Items 
 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1  Closed Session 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Michael W. Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, October 8, 2012 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 22, 2012 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 12, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 26, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 3, 2012 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 17, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:          September 24, 2012                    
 
 
To:   Michael Culpepper, Acting City Manager     
  
From:  Tom Darling, Director of Finance/Administration   

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 

for Alternative Automotive Technologies, 1225 E. Maple 
 
 
Background: 
 
  Alternative Automotive Technologies is locating its operation in Troy, at 1225 E. Maple.  They 
are a rapidly expanding automotive supplier in need of much larger facilities to house their 
operations. 
 
   They intend to invest $940,000 in equipment and renovations at the location that they have 
purchased. 
 
   They will be creating 127 new jobs in the City, and wish to apply for an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC). 
 
  In order to qualify for an abatement, an Industrial Development District (IDD) must first be 
established at the site.  
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  Based on their ownership of the facility, the amount of the investment, and the number of 
jobs they will be creating, they qualify for a 9 year abatement under Council Policy 
Resolution 2010-08-173. 
 
   The $940,000 investment would generate approximately $36,248.74 in total taxes over 9 
years, of which $12,010.26 would be City taxes. 
 
   The abatement would therefore save the company $18,124.37 over its life.  The City would 
realize $6,005.13 in taxes that it does not currently receive. 
 
  

bittnera
Text Box
E-01



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The site meets all legal and Policy Resolution criteria necessary for establishing an IDD. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-
08-173.  Additionally, the following Council Outputs/Outcomes are met; 
   

H.      Recruit and retain new businesses that enhance the community and that meet the 
goals of the City’s Master Plan, as well as the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study 
 
U.     Utilize available economic development tools and partnerships in order to compete 
for  quality businesses 
 

Options: 
 
  City Council may establish the IDD (and approve the tax abatement).  Or, City Council 
may choose to not establish a district at this site.  In which case, the Council must then deny 
any tax abatement for a district not established.  The company would then appeal these 
decisions to the State tax Commission (STC). 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\AltAutoTech2012\Memo IDD 09.24.12 



Michigan Department of Treasury
1012 (Rev. 5-07)

Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate
Issued under authority of Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended. Filing is mandatory.

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments (three complete sets) with the clerk of the 
local government unit. The State Tax Commission (STC) requires two complete sets (one original and one copy). One copy is retained 
by the clerk. If you have any questions regarding the completion of this form or would like to request an informational packet, call (517) 
373-3272.

Signature of Clerk

1a. Company Name (Applicant must be the occupant/operator of the facility)

1c. Facility Address (City, State, ZIP Code) (real and/or personal property location) 1d. City/Township/Village (indicate which) 1e. County

1b. Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code - Sec. 2(10) (4 or 6 Digit Code)

2. Type of Approval Requested

New (Sec. 2(4))

Speculative Building (Sec. 3(8))

Research and Development (Sec. 2(9))

Rehabilitation (Sec. 3(1))

Transfer (1 copy only)

3a. School District where facility is located 3b. School Code

4. Amount of years requested for exemption (1-12 Years)

5. Per section 5, the application shall contain or be accompanied by a general description of the facility and a general description of the proposed use of the facility, the general
nature and extent of the restoration, replacement, or construction to be undertaken, a descriptive list of the equipment that will be part of the facility.  Attach additional page(s) if
more room is needed.

6a. Cost of land and building improvements (excluding cost of land)

6b. Cost of machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures

6c. Total Project Costs

* Attach list of improvements and associated costs. 
* Also attach a copy of building permit if project has already begun.

* Attach itemized listing with month, day and year of beginning of installation, plus total

Real Property Costs

Personal Property Costs

Total of Real & Personal Costs

7. Indicate the time schedule for start and finish of construction and equipment installation. Projects must be completed within a two year period of the effective date of the 
certificate unless otherwise approved by the STC.

Real Property Improvements

Personal Property Improvements

Owned Leased

Owned Leased

9. No. of existing jobs at this facility that will be retained as a result of this project. 10. No. of new jobs at this facility expected to create within 2 years of completion.

Begin Date (M/D/Y) End Date (M/D/Y)

12a. Check the type of District the facility is located in:

12b. Date district was established by local government unit (contact local unit) 12c. Is this application for a speculative building (Sec. 3(8))?

Date received by Local Unit

To be completed by Clerk of Local Government Unit

APPLICANT INFORMATION
All boxes must be completed.

8. Are State Education Taxes reduced or abated by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC)? If yes, applicant must attach a signed MEDC Letter of 

Commitment to receive this exemption. Yes No

11. Rehabilitation applications only: Complete a, b and c of this section. You must attach the assessor's statement of SEV for the entire plant rehabilitation district and 
obsolescence statement for property. The Taxable Value (TV) data below must be as of December 31 of the year prior to the rehabilitation. 

a. TV of Real Property (excluding land)

b. TV of Personal Property (excluding inventory)

c. Total TV

Industrial Development District Plant Rehabilitation District

Yes No

Application Number Date Received by STC

STC Use Only

* Round Costs to Nearest Dollar

licarila
Text Box
08/07/12



licarila
Text Box
336111

licarila
Text Box
63150

licarila
Text Box
City of Troy

licarila
Text Box
Aileen Bittner

licarila
Text Box
bittnera@troymi.gov

licarila
Text Box
500 W Big Beaver Troy MI 48084-5254

licarila
Text Box
248 524-3316

licarila
Text Box
248 524-1770



Alternative Automotive Technologies (AAT) is a Troy, Michigan based company that supplies contract manufacturing services to the automotive 
industry.  Its customers are GM, Ford, Chrysler/Fiat, Volkswagen, and a variety of automotive performance and specialty companies. Its business 
is growing rapidly and it requires a much larger facility that will allow considerable expansion and many new employment opportunities for 
technical and skilled labor personnel.  The 183,000 sqft production facility located at 1225 E. Maple Road in Troy, MI is a perfect fit for AAT to 
continue to execute on our growth strategy. 

 

Below is a detailed listing of the improvements and equipment we plan to purchase once the tax abatement is approved. 

 

 

Est. Purchase Est. Install
Building Renovations

Grade Level R/U Doors 35,000.00$    8/31/2012 9/14/2012
Paint Sys Recommission 110,000.00$ 8/31/2012 10/1/2012
Build out New Office area -$                350,000.00$ 4/1/2013 5/30/2013
Renovate Engineering Area 50,000.00$    10/1/2012 10/15/2012

Sub-Total 195,000.00$ 350,000.00$ 
Machinery & Equip-Purchased

Compressors 75,000.00$    8/31/2012 9/30/2012
Paint Sys Equipment 75,000.00$    8/31/2012 9/30/2012
Production Equipment 50,000.00$    8/31/2012 9/30/2012
Motorized Floor Cleaner 25,000.00$    10/1/2012 10/15/2012

Sub-Total 225,000.00$ 
Furniture & Fixtures- Purchased

Replace office carpets 25,000.00$    10/1/2012 10/15/2012
Display Area Furn. & Equip. 25,000.00$    10/1/2012 10/30/2012

Sub-Total 50,000.00$    
Office Machinery – Purchased

Phone System 25,000.00$    8/8/2012 8/15/2012
Security System 45,000.00$    8/8/2012 8/31/2012
Computers/Servers/Software 50,000.00$    8/10/2012 8/31/2012

Sub-Total 120,000.00$ 

Description 2012 2013
Alternative Automotive Technologies -Michigan Site - 1225 E. Maple Road, Troy, MI 48083



Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
Alternative Automotive Technologies





Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

2,304

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

384

Legend

1:

Feet3840 192 Notes
88-20-26-351-024   1225 E Maple

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Address Points
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 
 
 
Legal Description – IDD & IFEC 
Alternative Automotive Technologies 
1225 E Maple, Troy, MI.  48083-5600 
88-20-26-351-024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T2N,R11E, SEC 26 & 27  
PART OS SW 1/4 OF SEC 26 &  
PART OF SE 1/4 OF SEC 27 ALL DESC AS  
BEG AT PT DIST  
N 00-13-23 E 43 FT  
FROM SE COR OF SEC 27,  
TH N 89-45-00 W 106.51 FT,  
TH N 29-36-52 W 67.03 FT,  
TH N 00-11-46 E 327.77 FT,  
TH N 50-11-46 E 20.61 FT,  
TH N 00-11-46 E 137.20 FT,  
THS 89-48-14 E 124.62 FT,  
TH N 50-11-46 E 58.95 FT,  
TH S 89-48-14 E 74.42 FT,  
TH N 00-11-46 E 45.57 FT,  
TH S 89-48-14 E 80.28 FT,  
TH N 00-11-46 E 23.43 FT,  
TH S 89-48-14 E 333.50 FT,  
TH S 00-11-46 W 23.43 FT,  
TH S 89-48-14 E 64.12 FT,  
TH S 00-01-44 W 619.94 FT,  
TH N 89-48-14 W 599.85 FT  
TO BEG  10.21A 
12-30-03 FR 005,006,007,012,013,20-27-484-003 & 004 



Market Value 940,000 836,600 635,816 425,997 255,598 138,023 67,631 30,434 12,782 4,857
50% of Value 470,000 418,300 317,908 212,998 127,799 69,011 33,816 15,217 6,391 2,429

Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Depreciation 0.8900 0.7600 0.6700 0.6000 0.5400 0.4900 0.4500 0.4200 0.3800

Taxable Value 418,300 317,908 212,998 127,799 69,011 33,816 15,217 6,391 2,429

Taxing Authority 100% of 
Millage Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes

Trans 0.59000 $246.80 $187.57 $125.67 $75.40 $40.72 $19.95 $8.98 $3.77 $1.43
County 4.64610 $1,943.46 $1,477.03 $989.61 $593.77 $320.63 $157.11 $70.70 $29.69 $11.28

Zoo 0.10000 $41.83 $31.79 $21.30 $12.78 $6.90 $3.38 $1.52 $0.64 $0.24
Arts 0.20000 $83.66 $63.58 $42.60 $25.56 $13.80 $6.76 $3.04 $1.28 $0.49

Int Schools 3.36900 $1,409.25 $1,071.03 $717.59 $430.55 $232.50 $113.92 $51.27 $21.53 $8.18
Comm Coll 1.58440 $662.75 $503.69 $337.47 $202.48 $109.34 $53.58 $24.11 $10.13 $3.85

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 0 00000 $0 00 $0 00 $0 00 $0 00 $0 00 $0 00 $0 00 $0 00 $0 00

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Alternative Automotive Technologies IFEC - 2012 Application
Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

School Op 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.95000 $2,070.59 $1,573.64 $1,054.34 $632.61 $341.61 $167.39 $75.32 $31.64 $12.02

Hold Harmless 5.55630 $2,324.20 $1,766.39 $1,183.48 $710.09 $383.45 $187.89 $84.55 $35.51 $13.49
Admin 0.15440 $64.58 $49.08 $32.89 $19.73 $10.66 $5.22 $2.35 $0.99 $0.37

City 10.48000 $4,383.78 $3,331.68 $2,232.22 $1,339.33 $723.24 $354.39 $159.47 $66.98 $25.45
Total 31.63020 $13,230.91 $10,055.49 $6,737.18 $4,042.31 $2,182.85 $1,069.59 $481.32 $202.15 $76.82

Total Taxes 9 Yrs $36,248.74
Total City Taxes 9 Yrs $12,010.26

50% Total Taxes 9 Yrs $18,124.37
50% Total City Taxes 9 yrs $6,005.13
2% Total City 9 Yrs $120.10 Application Fee (2% total city)

Net Total City Taxes Abated
Net Total Taxes Abated



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 
 
Resolution #2010-08-173 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the tax base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) encouraging 
expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities, and (g) encouraging attractive, 
viable building sites and (h) enhancing our economic development tools to attract and 
retain businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, 
empowers cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax 
abatements for eligible properties established by the Act;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the 
following minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 
No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be 
granted until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement at a minimum must be revenue 
neutral to the City of Troy.  

 
3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant 

is responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely 
payment of property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 

years; and 
 

5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more 
than 10 jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, 
and/or owns the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying 
property for a minimum term of 5 years, as long as two of the three criteria are 
satisfied. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of 
the following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the 
increase in the number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, 
and similarly the increase in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease 
conditions on the real property will increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 

Job Creation Building Terms 
RP and/or PP 

Investment 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 
 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 
 
50 - 99 3 years 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 
 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 
 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 
 
200 + 6 years         

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
implementation of an application fee equal to 2% of the estimated personal property 
taxes abated under the terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of 
processing the application, whichever is less, and the City of Troy will not charge or 
collect any other fees for the application, in keeping with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

licarila
Highlight

licarila
Highlight

licarila
Highlight

licarila
Rectangle

licarila
Rectangle

licarila
Rectangle



September 24, 2012

To: State Tax Commission
P. O. Box 30471
Lansing, MI  48909-7971

From: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC

  This affidavit attests to the fact that the City of Troy has charged
an application fee in the amount of $120.10, equal to 2% of the
estimated abated City taxes for the life of the exemption
for Alternative Automotive Technologies, 1225 E Maple Troy MI 48083-
5600.

  Further, no other fee or concession has been charged or accepted
in regards to this application, or consideration thereof.

Signed:  Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor, MMAO(4) #6345 Dated:



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Alternative Automotive Technologies, 
(“Company”) and the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the 
requirements of Public Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 
22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Alternative Automotive Technologies, understands 
that through its investment of $940,000.00 and its qualification for 
Michigan Economic Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by 
its investment of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are 
mutually investing in and benefiting from this economic development 
project, and furthermore, agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 9 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2023, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2014, Alternative Automotive Technologies, will report to 
the Assessing Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of 
this project and indicate any differences and the reason for 
any differences in the cost or scope of the project as 
compared to the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Alternative Automotive Technologies, agrees to remain 

within the City of Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities 
Tax (IFT) abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, 
unless permission for relocation is granted by the City 
Council of the City of Troy. 

 
Alternative Automotive Technologies, further understands 
that if it chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission 
for relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Alternative Automotive Technologies, understands that the 

City of Troy may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC 
and/or recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which 
were abated if the project has not been completed, 
expenditures made, as represented by the Company, in 
Section 12’C of its application, by sending a copy of this 
Agreement along with a copy of the City Council Resolution 
authorizing such action to the State Tax Commission. 

 



 
 
 
5.)  Alternative Automotive Technologies, agrees that it will 

operate the Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, 
State and Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to 
zoning, outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and 
water quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, 
and all of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Janice Daniels , Mayor (date) 

 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  M. Aileen Bittner                         (date) 

  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 24, 2012  at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) and the 

granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative 

Automotive Technologies, at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-351-024   1225 E Maple, Troy, MI.  48083-5600 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 & 27 part of SW 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
        
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
  

OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
Attn:  DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
Alternative Automotive 
Attn:  BRIAN CHAMBERS 
1225 E MAPLE 
TROY  MI  48083 

 
 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



E-01   Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 1225 E Maple 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012- 
Moved by 
Seconded by   
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 198 of 1974, as amended, the Troy City Council has the 
authority to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD’s) within the City of Troy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Alternative Automotive Technologies, has petitioned the Troy City Council t 
establish an Industrial Development District (IDD) on its property located in the City of 
Troy, hereinafter described; and 
 
WHEREAS, construction, acquisition, alteration, or installation of a proposed facility had 
not commenced at the time of filing the request to establish the district; and  
 
WHEREAS, written notice was given by mail to all owners of real property located within 
the district, and to the public by newspaper advertisement in the newspaper of record, 
and public posting of the hearing on the establishment of the district; and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 24, 2012, a public hearing was held at which all owners of 
real property within the proposed Industrial Development District (IDD) and all residents 
and taxpayers of the City of Troy were afforded an opportunity to be heard thereon; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Troy City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of Troy 
to establish the Industrial Development District (IDD) as proposed. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an 
Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI. 
48083, Parcel #88-20-26-351-024, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution 
#2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a certified copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury 
Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:          September 24, 2012                   
 
 
To:   Michael Culpepper, Acting City Manager     
  
From:  Tom Darling, Director Finance/Administration 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for Alternative Automotive Technologies, 1225 E. Maple 
 
 
Background: 
 
  Alternative Automotive Technologies is locating its operation in Troy, at 1225 E. Maple.  They 
are a rapidly expanding automotive supplier in need of much larger facilities to house their 
operations. 
 
   They intend to invest $940,000 in equipment and renovations at the location that they have 
purchased. 
 
   They will be creating 127 new jobs in the City, and wish to apply for an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC). 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  Based on their ownership of the facility, the amount of the investment, and the number of 
jobs they will be creating, they qualify for a 9 year abatement under Council Policy 
Resolution 2010-08-173. 
 
   The $940,000 investment would generate approximately $36,248.74 in total taxes over 9 
years, of which $12,010.26 would be City taxes. 
 
   The abatement would therefore save the company $18,124.37 over its life.  The City would 
realize $6,005.13 in taxes that it does not currently receive. 
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-02



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-
08-173.  Additionally, the following Council Outputs/Outcomes are met; 
   

H.      Recruit and retain new businesses that enhance the community and that meet the 
goals of the City’s Master Plan, as well as the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study 
 
U.     Utilize available economic development tools and partnerships in order to compete 
for quality businesses 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the 
tax abatement.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may approve the tax abatement.  Or, City Council may choose not to grant 
the abatement.  In which case, the Petitioner may appeal that decision to the State Tax 
Commission (STC). 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\AltAutoTech2012\Memo IFEC  09.24.12 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 24, 2012  at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) and the 

granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative 

Automotive Technologies, at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-351-024   1225 E Maple, Troy, MI.  48083-5600 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 & 27 part of SW 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
        
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
  

OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
Attn:  DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
Alternative Automotive 
Attn:  BRIAN CHAMBERS 
1225 E MAPLE 
TROY  MI  48083 

 
 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



                                      E-02 
E - 02  Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate   

(IFEC) for Alternative Automotive Technologies, 1225 E. Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2012- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 24, 2012, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 88-20-26-351-024; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Alternative Automotive Technologies, for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI. 
48083 for nine (9) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on September 24, 
2012,  held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility 
that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative Automotive 
Technologies, at 1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI. 48083 may have the effect of substantially impeding 
the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem taxes 
within the City of Troy, after granting this certificate will not exceed 5% of an amount equal to the 
sum of the SEV of the City of Troy, plus the SEV of real and personal property thus exempted; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative Automotive 
Technologies, at 1225 E. Maple, Troy, MI. 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of 
the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of 
the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative Automotive Technologies, at 1225 
E. Maple, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 88-20-26-351-024, for personal property for a term of nine (9) 
years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and Alternative Automotive Technologies, and the payment of the fees in accordance 
with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Alternative Automotive Technologies, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date: September 17, 2012 
 
To:  Michael Culpepper, Interim City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (formerly 

“The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, 
Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts 

 
Background 
 
City Council held a public hearing on this item at the September 10, 2012 Regular meeting.  City 
Council postponed the item to the September 24, 2012 Regular meeting “to allow for a traffic study 
of the area of Alpine and Big Beaver Rd”. 
 
Stephen Dearing of OHM, the City’s Traffic Consultant, prepared the attached traffic study.  The 
study analyzed crash data in the area and traffic volume on Alpine Road.  The traffic study found no 
basis to question the safe operation of the proposed one-way exit driveway for the Flagstar Bank 
site onto Alpine Road. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The proposed project is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan and achieves many of the goals 
of the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  In addition, the project meets the Standards for Approval set forth 
in Section 11.03 of the Zoning Ordinance and is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning 
districts.   
 
City Management recommends approval of Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission, the Planning Consultant and the Traffic Consultant. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _________________________ 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality Date 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Minutes (draft) from September 10, 2012 City Council Regular meeting (excerpt) 
2. Traffic study prepared by OHM dated September 13, 2012 
3. Agenda item from September 17, 2012 City Council Regular meeting 

 
G:\PUD's\PUD 004 Big Beaver Center (formerly The Monarch)\Big Beaver Center\Staff Memoranda\CC Memo 09 24 2012.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
H-01



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft  September 10, 2012 
 

1 
 

A. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Planned Unit Development (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center 

(Formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North Side of Big Beaver Road Between 
Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One 
Family Residential) Districts  

 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing. 
The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after receiving public comment from: 
 
Stine, Jeanne Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 
Krent, Tom Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 
Dawson, Barbara Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 
Jordan, Shirley Spoke in opposition of the proposed PUD. 
Oleszkowicz, 
Mike 

Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 

O'Kulch, Chad Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 
 
Moved by Daniels  
Seconded by Tietz  
 
WHEREAS, AF Jonna Development has requested Concept Development Plan approval 
and Preliminary Development Plan approval concurrently, pursuant to Article 11 of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, for Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development (PUD 
4), located on the north side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, in 
Section 20, currently zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts, being 
approximately 7.5 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development includes a 
24,000 square foot retail building and a 3,500 square foot bank branch along Big 
Beaver Road, with 16 single family residential units to the north; and 
 
WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The commercial component along Big Beaver achieves many of the goals 
of the Big Beaver Corridor Study; and 
 
WHEREAS, The pedestrian amenities proposed by the applicant along Big Beaver 
provide a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that 
can be an example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor; and 
 
WHEREAS, The residential component serves as a suitable transition between the 
commercial component and the existing residential neighborhood to the north; and 
 
WHEREAS, The application is compatible with adjacent properties and uses; and 
 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft  September 10, 2012 
 

2 
 

WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Section 
11.03 of the Zoning Ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposed PUD 
on August 14, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development includes parcels 1 through 10 as 
described in the following legal descriptions and illustrated on the attached Topographic 
Survey drawing: 
 
Land situated in the County of Oakland, City of Troy, State of Michigan, is described as 
follows: 
 
PARCEL 1: 
Lot 90, EXCEPT the South 42 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat 
thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 
20-20-402-055).  
 
PARCEL 2: 
Lot 91, also the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the South 182 feet of Lot 92 and 
Lot 93, EXCEPT the North 91 feet of the West 120 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, 
according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County 
Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-053).  
 
PARCEL 3: 
Lot 92, EXCEPT the South 42 feet also EXCEPT the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet 
of the South 182 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as 
recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-
054). 
  
PARCEL 4: 
The North 91 feet of the West 120 feet of Lot 93, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, 
according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County 
Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-052).  
 
PARCEL 5: 
Lot 94, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 
15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-018).  
 
PARCEL 6: 
Lot 95, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 
15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-017).  
 
PARCEL 7: 
Lot 96, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 
15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-016).  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft  September 10, 2012 
 

3 
 

 
PARCEL 8: 
Lot 122, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-030).  
 
PARCEL 9: 
Lot 123, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-031).  
 
PARCEL 10:  
Lot 124, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-032).  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, City Council hereby DECLARES the former Monarch 
Planned Unit Development, including all approved agreements, site plans and drawings, 
to be abandoned and rescinded; the subject property retains the PUD-004 zoning 
designation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES rezoning of the northern 
two parcels (Parcel 7, 3128 Alpine and Parcel 8, 3141 McClure) from R-1B One Family 
Residential District to PUD-004 and APPROVES the inclusion of the two parcels into 
PUD-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Planning Director and City Clerk to take whatever actions are necessary pursuant to the 
City Ordinance to effect the rezoning of the Parcel 7 and Parcel 8 to PUD -004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning 
District Map of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to delineate Parcel 7 and Parcel 8 as 
PUD-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 
Planned Unit Development Agreement and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the Planned Unit Development Agreement for Big Beaver 
Center Planned Unit Development on behalf of the City; a copy shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept 
Development Plan (CDP) and Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for Big Beaver 
Center PUD; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
RECORDING of the executed Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development 
Agreement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft  September 10, 2012 
 

4 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept 
Development Plan for Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development and the petitioner 
is hereby permitted to seek Final Site Plan Approval. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Item E-1 Planned Unit Development (File Number 
PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (Formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North Side of Big 
Beaver Road Between Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 
and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Resolution #2012-09-177 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Campbell  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby POSTPONES Item E-1 Planned Unit 
Development (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (Formerly “The Monarch”) 
PUD, North Side of Big Beaver Road Between Alpine and McClure, Section 20, 
Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts to the 
September 24, 2012 Regular City Council Meeting to allow for a traffic study of the area 
of Alpine and Big Beaver Rd. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater, Tietz, Daniels  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 004 Big Beaver Center (formerly The Monarch)\Big Beaver Center\Minutes\2012 09 10 CC Minutes 
Excerpt_Draft.doc 









 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: September 4, 2012 
 
To:  Michael Culpepper, Interim City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – Big 

Beaver Center (formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road between 
Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family 
Residential) Districts 

 
Background 
 
The applicant, AF Jonna Development, has submitted an application for a Planned Unit 
Development.  The Monarch PUD received Final PUD Approval from City Council on December 19, 
2005.  The development featured two residential towers (12 stories and 23 stories tall) that included 
155 condominiums and 9 live-work units, 18,000 square feet of retail, a 319-space parking structure 
and 52 villa townhouse units to the north.  Construction never started for this project, and the 
property went into foreclosure.  The applicant has purchased the property and proposes a one-story 
24,000 square foot retail building and a 4,000 square foot bank branch along the Big Beaver 
frontage, with 16 single family residential units to the north.  
 
The applicant seeks the following approvals from City Council at this time:  

1. Rezone the northern two parcels from R-1B to Big Beaver Center PUD 
2. Concept Development Plan (CDP) approval for the Big Beaver Center PUD 
3. Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) approval for the Big Beaver Center PUD 

 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the PUD application.  The attached letter prepared by OHM, the City’s 
Traffic Engineer, addresses traffic concerns for the proposed development. 
 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Big Beaver Corridor.  A description of this classification is 
attached.   
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on July 24, 2012.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of this item on August 14, 2012. 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-01



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Recommendation 
 
The proposed project is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan and achieves many of the goals 
of the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  In addition, the project meets the Standards for Approval set forth 
in Section 11.03 of the Zoning Ordinance and is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning 
districts.   
 
City Management recommends approval of Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission, the Planning Consultant and the Traffic Consultant. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _________________________ 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality Date 
 
 
Attachments: 

 
1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Letter prepared by OHM, the City’s Traffic Engineer. 
4. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
5. Minutes from the July 24, 2012 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting (excerpt).   
6. Minutes from the August 14, 2012 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt) 
7. Public comment (4) 
8. PUD Agreement 

 
 
 
 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 004 Big Beaver Center (formerly The Monarch)\Big Beaver Center\CC Memo Public Hearing 09 10 2012.doc 



Big Beaver Center PUD

3/8/2012

Legend

1: 2,390

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1990398 398Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



Big Beaver Center PUD

3/8/2012

Legend

1: 2,390

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1990398 398Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 
  

 Date: August 7, 2012 
 

Concept and Preliminary Planned Unit Development 
and Preliminary Site Plan Review 

For 
City of Troy, Michigan 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant A.F. Jonna Development Company 
 
Project Name: Big Beaver Center: northeast quadrant  
 
Plan Date: August 6, 2012 
 
Location: Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Alpine 
 
Zoning: PUD and R1-B One Family Residential  
 
Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City Council 

for approval of the Concept Development Plan, Preliminary 
Development Plan, and Preliminary Site Plan Review.   

 
Required Information:          Deficiencies noted. 
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
The procedure for review and approval of a PUD is a three-step process; however the action can be 
expedited to combine the concept and preliminary PUD approval: 

 
• The first step is an application for and approval of a Concept Development Plan.  The Concept 

Development Plan, Development Agreement, and rezoning the R-1B portion to PUD are 
approved by the City Council following recommendation of the Planning Commission.  Such 
action, if and when approved, shall confer upon the applicant approval of the Concept 
Development Plan and shall rezone the property to PUD in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Concept Development Plan approval.   

• The second step of the review and approval process is application for and approval of a 
Preliminary Development Plan for the entire project, or for any one or more phases of the 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

2 

Proposed Location of P.U.D 

Proposed Commercial Portion 

Proposed Residential Portion  

project.  City Council shall have the final authority to approve and grant Preliminary 
Development Plan approvals, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  The 
preliminary Development Plan approval includes preliminary site plan approval. 

 
At this meeting the applicant is seeking approval of both Concept and Preliminary Planned Unit 
Development.  Please note that if the Planning Commission recommends approval on the Concept PUD, 
and Preliminary PUD the matter is then forwarded to the City Council.  This matter will not come back 
before the Planning Commission unless a future amendment is sought.    
 

• The final step of the review and approval process is the review and approval of a Final 
Development Plan (final site plan) for the entire project, or for any one or more phases of the 
project, and the issuance of building permits.  Final Development Plans for Planned Unit 
Developments are submitted to the Planning Department for administrative review, and the 
Planning Department, with the recommendation of other appropriate City Departments, has 
final authority for approval of such Final Development Plans. 

 
SITE DESCRIPTION, AND CONCEPT PLAN 
 
The applicant is proposing a Planned Unit Development (PUD) on an existing vacant 7.5 acres site. The 
2.54 acre commercial portion of the site has no buildings but some portions are improved with asphalt. 
The 4.96 acre residential portion is entirely vacant.  
 
The proposed PUD includes 27,397 square feet of retail space in two (2) buildings and sixteen (16) 
single-family lots.  The commercial portion includes a 3,397 sq/ft free-standing drive-thru bank and a 
24,000 sq/ft retail building, which can be divided into multiple store fronts.  The applicant proposes to 
construct a new street between Alpine Road and McClure Road, parallel to Big Beaver Road, which the 
new 16 detached single-family lots will front on.    



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

3 

 
SITE HISTORY 
 
This site was previously rezoned to PUD in 2005 as part of the “Monarch PUD” approval process.  The 
approved “Monarch PUD” included two (2) multiple-story towers;  

• Two residential towers (12 stories and 23 stories tall) were proposed to front Big Beaver Road 
that included 155 condominiums, including nine live-work units. 

• 319-space parking structure, 73 surface spaces, and 104 garage unit spaces for a total of 496 
spaces.  

• 52 villa townhouse units that spanned the northern part of the property. 
• Specialty retail consisting of 17,690 square feet. 

 
However due to economic timing the project was never built.  The proposed development is greatly 
reduced in scale and potential impact to the adjacent single-family neighborhood.   
 
While the “Monarch PUD” has expired, the site remains zoned as Planned Unit Development.  This PUD 
application is considered a new PUD application and is reviewed accordingly under Article 11 of the 
Ordinance. 
 
MASTER PLAN and OVERALL DESIGN 
 
The site is within the “Urban Mixed Use District: Troy City Center” district of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Plan and is within the Big Beaver Corridor district in the Troy 2008 Master Plan.  As its name implies, the 
primary focus of the Urban Mixed Use District with the Corridor Study is to promote mixed use 
development which includes retail, office, and residential.  Ground level spaces front on Big Beaver 
should be occupied by shops, entertainment, restaurant, and similar uses that stimulate interest and 
activity.  The upper-level floors should be occupied by office and residential uses.  
 
The Urban Mixed Use District is envisioned as the “city center” with a dense mix of uses and pedestrian 
amenities. This site is located at the heart of the Troy City Center, where building heights are 
anticipated to be 10—12 stories in height, dropping to four to six stories in intermediate zones to the 
north and south, and finally decreasing to three and two stories at the districts northern and southern 
edges.    
 
The uses and character of Big Beaver Corridor district in the Troy 2008 Master Plan are driven by the 
recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and subsequent efforts of the Planning Commission 
to create new zoning techniques to implement those recommendations. Specifically desires of the Big 
Beaver Corridor district in the Troy 2008 Master Plan included: 

• Building from lot line to lot line along the right-of-way rather than continuing to be a collection 
of isolated towers.     

• The use of vertically integrated mixed-use commercial, office and residential towers should be 
promoted.   

• The use of prominent ground floor retail, restaurants and cafes allows visual interest and 
activity for visitors and residents.       

• Contain parking in structures that are shared by surrounding developments.   
• Parking in rear and not visible from major throughfares.  
• Buildings set close to the street. 
• Buildings should rise in height toward Crooks Road in the east-west direction.   



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

4 

• Buildings should rise in height toward Big Beaver in the north-south direction. 
 
The development of this significant 7.5 acre site is a unique opportunity to provide stimulus to future 
development of this important section of Big Beaver Road.  We encourage the development of this site 
and we applaud the applicants attempt to turn a vacant, dilapidated site into a viable commercial 
development.  Many of the aspects of the proposal meet the recommendations of the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study and Master Plan and we applaud the applicant for creating a unified commercial building 
placed along Big Beaver to create a presence and human-scale streetscape along the street.  This 
building placement carries on the vision of the future redevelopment of Big Beaver Road.  In addition 
we are encouraged with the proposal of prominent ground floor retail, restaurant uses, combined with 
interesting and pedestrian friendly architecture to create visual interest and activity.  In addition as 
requested, the applicant has provided better building orientation, connection, and architectural 
consistency between the bank building and the retail building.  These buildings are now connected with 
a pergola structure that serves not only as public art but directs pedestrians to the back side of the 
buildings.  As a result of these changes the applicant has provided a more welcoming and inviting space 
between the bank building and retail building.   
 
Furthermore, the residential portion of the development advances the Master Plan. The Plan calls for 
more residential uses on or near Big Beaver.  The distance from Somerset will allow for potential 
pedestrian activity.  Conventional R-1B zoning would allow the applicant to construct 12 units.  The 
applicant is proposing 16 units.  The slight increase in density will provide a natural transition between 
the established single-family neighborhood to the north and the commercial portion of the PUD.   
 
As noted in early reports we have worked closely with the applicant regarding the ability to create 
additional massing on the site.  Based on the experience and understanding of the applicant, a multiple 
story building is not market feasible at this time.  The applicant did explore creating office uses on the 
upper floors but due to an overabundance in the office market additional office space was not market 
feasible.   While we understand the desire for increased massing and bulk, we recognize the current 
market conditions that limit development as envisioned in the Big Beaver Corridor Plan and Master 
Plan.  It is likely that this site would sit vacant for the unforeseeable future if a multi-story development 
were required.  Furthermore, it should be noted that what the applicant is proposing is consistent with 
the Big Beaver corridor which allows one-story buildings.  In addition, the applicant has provided 
significant investment and public benefit through pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver. These 
pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver not only advance the intent of the Master Plan they also provide 
a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that can be an example to be 
emulated along the Big Beaver corridor.  Provided a few site planning changes (see site plan review 
section below) overall the applicant has taken the appropriate measures to mitigate any potential 
negative impacts upon the adjacent single-family residential neighborhood to the north and provide the 
massing, scale, and overall development size as envisioned in the master plan.   
 
The only relief requested by the applicant is the drive-through for the bank and the increase in 
residential uses from 12 to 16.  Through the PUD process the city is obtaining more public benefit in the 
form of pedestrian amenities and architectural character than what is required to be provided.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
 
 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

5 

PRIOR PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
On July 24, 2012 the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed PUD.  At that meeting the following 
issues were raised by either our staff report, the Planning Commission, or through public comments:  
 

• Traffic and Development Access  
• Commercial Site Planning Issues 
• Residential Site Planning Issues 

 
Please refer to our July 18, 2012 memo for details regarding a complete Site Plan Review.  Since the July 
24, 2012 meeting the applicant has addressed the following issues:   
 
TRAFFIC and DEVELOPMENT ACCESS 
 
A concern was raised regarding the potential impact the development would have in regards to traffic 
and site access.  Specifically the concern was traffic impact on Alpine Road and the single-family 
neighborhood to the north, automobile stacking and access onto and from Big Beaver Road, and the 
total number of curb cuts.  The City’s traffic consultant, Stephen Dearing from OHM, has provided the 
Commission with a memo outlining traffic impact.  A copy of the memo is provided in the packet.  
 
COMMERCIAL SITE PLANNING ISSUES 
 
The following site planning issues were raised in our review.  Listed below is each issue and how each 
issues has been addressed by the applicant.  
 

1) Reduce parking to provide for more landscape area.   
 
The applicant has increased the total amount of landscaping by adding planter boxes between the 
parking area and the rear façade of the retail building.  Such landscaping is used to soften the back 
façade as well as mirror the landscaping provided along the Big Beaver façade.   

 
2) Incorporate bicycle parking as part of the pedestrian realm on Big Beaver. 

 
The applicant has added bicycle parking.  Such parking is located next to plaza that fronts on Big 
Beaver.    

 
3) Address any recommendations based on the review by OHM in regards to traffic, parking, 

access, and circulation.   
 

The applicant has addressed the traffic and egress recommendations outlined in Mr. Dearing’s 
review, specifically reducing the bank egress point from 24-feet in width to 14-feet.   
 
4) Provide turning template for delivery trucks and fire trucks.   
 
The applicant has provided a turning template for delivery trucks and fire trucks. The template 
confirms that circulation is sufficient.     
 
5) Indicate the material used as part of the expanded sidewalk. 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

6 

 
The applicant has provided materials and engineering details for the expanded sidewalk along Big 
Beaver.  

 
6) Consider pedestrian style pole lighting in pedestrian realm. 

 
The applicant has added eight (8) decorative 8-foot high pedestrian style lights spaced out along the 
entire frontage of Big Beaver.  Pole style and light fixtures should be provided as part of the final 
site plan submittal.  

 
7) Provide preliminary grading and utilities. 

 
The applicant has provided necessary preliminary grading and utilities.  

 
8) Add additional landscaping to comply with 20% site landscaping requirement.  Consider a 

green roof.  
 
Based on the lot size, the applicant is required to provide approximately 22,000 sq/ft of landscaped 
area, which may include both soft and hardscaped area. While the total amount of landscape area 
on the site has increased from 12% to 14% the applicant is still deficient by approximately 5,500 
sq/ft.  The Planning Commission is able to grant relief from this requirement.   
 
Due to the building form requirements of the Big Beaver corridor, and the desire to build more 
“urban” style developments, obtaining 20% site landscaping is often difficult to obtain.  The 
Planning Commission should consider granting relief from this 20% landscaping requirement.   
 
9) Reduce the maximum lighting to no greater than 20 foot candles. 

 
The applicant has not resubmitted a photometric plan.  The applicant shall submit a revised 
photometric plan for final site plan review.   

 
10) Lights shall be turned-off or reduced between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise. 
 
The applicant has not resubmitted a photometric plan.  The applicant shall submit a revised 
photometric plan noting that lights will be turned off during these hours for final site plan review.   

 
11) A revised photometric plan should be submitted which more clearly indicate the proposed 

fixture locations, including the use of pedestrian scale pole lighting the pedestrian realm. 
 
The applicant has not resubmitted a photometric plan.  The applicant shall submit a revised 
photometric plan for final site plan review.   

 
12) Submit sign package. 
 
Though not required by ordinance we did encourage the applicant to submit a sign package for the 
entire site that will carry a consistent theme and greatly advance building design.  While generalized 
sign locations have been shown on the elevations, the applicant has noted that final signage styles 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

7 

and locations have not been determined.  Sign package and sign permits can be submitted as part of 
building permit application.   

 
13) Confirm location of bank transformer.  Move behind bank building if necessary. 

 
The applicant has moved the bank transformer out of the planter that fronts on Big Beaver and 
closer to the bank.   

 
14) Submit samples, swatches, or manufacturer’s specification sheets of the predominant 

proposed exterior materials and colors of all buildings and permanent structures, including 
walls and fences. 

 
The applicant has not submitted samples, swatches, or manufactures specification sheets.  The 
applicant has been advised to bring to the meeting.   

 
15) Provide additional screening or other site considerations if directed by the Planning 

Commission to better screen the drive-through from Big Beaver. 
 

The applicant has provided sufficient screening of the drive-thru that both balances the need for 
screening as well as provides clear site lines for egressing cars.  

 
Items to be Addressed: Seek relief to provide less than the required 20% site landscaping as part of PUD 
approval.  
 
RESIDENTIAL SITE PLANNING ISSUES 
 
The following site planning issues were raised in our review.  Listed with each issue is how the applicant 
has addressed them: 
 

1) Submit a zoning calculation table. 
 
The applicant has provided a complete zoning calculation table for every lot. 

 
2) Increase the northern rear yard setbacks to 45 feet. 

 
The applicant has increased the northern rear yard setbacks to 45-feet.  In addition the applicant 
has provided significant landscape screening within the 45-feet setback.  

 
3) Submit sample floor plans and elevations. 

 
The applicant has provided sample floor plans and elevations. 

 
4) Provide sidewalks along their entire portion that fronts on McClure Road and Alpine Drive. 

 
The applicant has provided sidewalks along their entire portion that fronts on McClure Road and 
Alpine drive. 

 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

8 

5) Submit samples, swatches, or manufacturer’s specification sheets of the predominant 
proposed exterior materials and colors of all buildings and permanent structures, including 
walls and fences. 
 

The applicant has not submitted samples, swatches, or manufactures specification sheets.  The 
applicant has been advised to bring to the meeting.   

 
6) Provide preliminary grading and utilities. 
 
The applicant has provided necessary preliminary grading and utilities.  

 
7) Identify trees to be removed. 

 
The applicant has identified the trees for removal.   

 
8) Applicant is encouraged to selectively clear only those trees necessary and attempt to 

preserve as many significant trees as possible. 
 

Applicant has noted they that intend to preserve as many significant trees as possible. In addition, 
the applicant proposes significant planting of deciduous and coniferous trees along the new 
roadway and along the northern and southern property line. 

 
9) Increase frontage screening on Alpine Drive and McClure Road as required by ordinance. 

 
The applicant has increased the total amount of screening required in the greenbelt along Alpine 
Drive and McClure Road.  

 
Items to be Addressed: none  
 
PUD STANDARDS  
 
The PUD provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are found in Article 11.  The PUD Section provides 
standards under Section 11.03 for Planning Commission to review.  Many of the standards are 
addressed in our memo, however a summary of our comments in regards to the standards include:  
 
11.03.A. The proposed development shall be applied for by a person or entity who has the legal right 
to execute a binding agreement covering all parcels in the PUD. 
 
The submittal states that A.F Jonna Development Company, the applicant, is the owner of the property. 
 
Section 11.03.B. The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, the 
development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following objectives, as are reasonably 
applicable to the site, providing: 
 

1. A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without the use of the PUD 
provided that other objectives of this Article are also met. 

 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

9 

The project includes a mix of uses, horizontally, as envisioned and desired by the Master Plan.  The 
proposed mix of uses would not be permitted without the use of the PUD.   
 

2. A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, transportation, safety and security) 
which will enhance, add to or replace those provided by public entities, thereby furthering 
the public health, safety and welfare. 

 
The Applicant is providing a significant public benefit by greatly improving the “Pedestrian Realm (area 
between building and roadway)” with the following features:  

• 30-feet in depth of pedestrian area  
• Landscape planter boxes 
• Plaza in front of bank 
• Pergola structure that serves not only as public art but directs pedestrians to the back side of 

the buildings 
• Awnings on buildings 
• Future outdoor seating  
• Pedestrian style and scaled building lighting  

 
These pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver not only advance the intent of the Master Plan they also 
provide a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that can be an 
example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor.  
 
These significant public features are achievable through the PUD process.   

 
3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and to the 

community, where such benefit would otherwise be infeasible or unlikely to be achieved 
absent these regulations. 

 
This project includes a collection of restaurant uses, retail spaces, and an under-represented type of 
residential unit in Troy.  This compact project with a mix of uses will allow for the northern residential 
neighborhood to be served by adjacent retail uses. This is especially true given the project’s walkable 
design, easily access, and integrated public common areas.  Furthermore, without the PUD the 
significant public improvements would not be achievable.   

 
4. Long-term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural features, and historic 

and cultural resources, of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of protection or 
preservation, and which would otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent 
these regulations. 

 
Not applicable 

 
5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or pedestrian amenities. 

 
As aforementioned, the applicant is proposing a significant amount of pedestrian amenities.   
 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding properties. 
 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

10 

The proposed single-family portion of the PUD will provide a natural transition between the established 
single-family neighborhood to the north and the commercial portion of the PUD.   
 

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low impact design, which will 
promote and encourage energy conservation and sustainable development. 

 
In order to provide increased open and landscaped area, the applicant is encouraged to consider a 
green roof.  
 

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and materials. 
 

The applicant has shown innovative and creative site and building design.  As shown the Master Plan, 
the applicant has placed the building along Big Beaver to create a presence and human-scale 
streetscape along the street.  This building placement carries on the vision of the future redevelopment 
of Big Beaver Road.  In addition the applicant has provided an interesting mix of ground floor retail, 
restaurants uses, combined with interesting and pedestrian friendly architecture to create visual 
interest and activity.  The development includes a compact collection of uses with integrated public 
areas and extensive pedestrian amenities between the various project components. 

 
9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is compact, designed to human 

scale, and exhibits contextual integration of buildings and city spaces. 
 
The provided pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver and the pedestrian style and scale building create a 
unique style of development that is not common along Big Beaver.  The development creates a dynamic 
urban environment and provides a building example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor.  

 
10. The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation system and enhance non-

motorized facilities and amenities. 
 
The proposed pedestrian amenities, architectural features, and residential units in close proximity to Big 
Beaver lend itself to creating a friendly pedestrian environment which reduces impact to the existing 
transportation system and enhances non-motorized facilities and amenities.   
 

11. For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement and/ or improvement of 
existing sites that are occupied by obsolete uses and/or structures. 

 
The existing site is vacant, dilapidated and underutilized. The proposed development greatly enhances 
the current site and is appropriate for the area.   

 
12. A complementary variety of housing types that is in harmony with adjacent uses. 

 
The proposed residential portion of the PUD is compatible to the adjacent established single-family 
neighborhood and will serve as a nice transition from the denser commercial portion.   

 
13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an obsolete building or 

structure. 
 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

11 

Not applicable; however, as noted the site is vacant, dilapidated, and underulitized.  The proposed 
development will greatly improve the existing site.  

 
14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article, which will promote the 

intent of the Master Plan or the intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If 
conditions have changed since the Plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans were 
adopted, the uses shall be consistent with recent development trends in the area. 

 
The development of this significant 7.5 acre site is a unique opportunity to provide stimulus to future 
development of this important section of Big Beaver Road.  Many of the aspects of the proposal meet 
the recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Master Plan by creating a development that 
fronts along Big Beaver to create a presence and human-scale streetscape along the street.  The 
building placement carries on the vision of the future redevelopment of Big Beaver Road.  In addition 
the applicant has proposed prominent ground floor retail, restaurants uses, combined with interesting 
and pedestrian friendly architecture that creates visual interest and activity.   

 
15. Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to structures,  heights, 

setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, amenities and  other design and layout 
features, exhibiting a due regard for the relationship  of the development to the surrounding 
properties and uses thereon, as well as  to the relationship between the various elements 
within the proposed Planned  Unit Development.  In determining whether these relationships 
have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall be given to the following: 

 
a. The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the proposed structures and other 

site improvements. 
b. The location and screening of vehicular circulation and parking areas in relation to 

surrounding properties and the other elements of the development. 
c. The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or work 

areas, and mechanical equipment. 
d. The hours of operation of the proposed uses. 
e. The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and other site amenities. 

 
The proposed development is complementary and greatly enhances the surrounding area.  The 
applicant has taken the appropriate measures to mitigate any potential negative impacts upon the 
adjacent single-family residential neighborhood to the north.   
 

16. Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of uses within the 
Planned Unit Development.  The sharing of parking among the various muses within a 
Planned Unit Development may be permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to the 
satisfaction of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the development 
and will not impair the functioning of  the development, and will not have a negative effect 
on traffic flow within the  development and/or on properties adjacent to the development. 

 
Because tenants have been identified, the provision of 148 parking spaces should sufficiently serve the 
development.  
 

17. Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water quality shall be 
considered in the design of the stormwater system. 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

12 

 
Not applicable 

 
18. The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with all applicable Federal, 

State and local laws and ordinances, and shall coordinate with existing public facilities. 
 
The proposal complies with all federal, state and local laws and coordinates with existing public 
facilities.   
 
 
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
We find that the proposed development meets the PUD standards as outlined in Section 11.03.  The 
development of this significant 7.5 acre site is a unique opportunity to provide stimulus to future 
development of this important section of Big Beaver Road.  Many of the aspects of the proposal PUD 
meet the recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Master Plan by creating a 
development that fronts along Big Beaver to create a presence and human-scale streetscape along the 
street.  The building placement carries on the vision of the future redevelopment of Big Beaver Road. 
The proposed development is greatly reduced in scale and potential impact to the adjacent single-
family neighborhood than what was previously approved for this site.  The proposed development is 
compatible with and will serve the adjacent neighborhood to the north.    
 
In addition the applicant has proposed prominent ground floor retail, restaurants uses, combined with 
interesting and pedestrian friendly architecture that creates visual interest and activity.  The pedestrian 
amenities proposed by the applicant along Big Beaver not only advance the intent of the Master Plan 
they also provide a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that can be 
an example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor. Through the PUD process the city is obtaining 
more public benefit in the form of pedestrian amenities and architectural character than what is 
required to be provided.   We believe the compact, integrated design and complementary mix of uses 
included in this project would benefit the Big Beaver Corridor and the City of Troy.   
 
Furthermore, all previously noted site plan issues have either been addressed by the applicant or are 
required to be submitted as part of final site plan review.  We support the proposed project and believe 
the project does meet or exceed minimum requirements.  As such we recommend approval.  

 

 
 



 

    

 

34000 Plymouth Road | Livonia, MI 48150 
p. (734) 522-6711 | f. (734) 522-6427 

www.ohm-advisors .com  

July 26, 2012 

 

Mr. William Huotari, PE  
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 W Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
 
Re: Big Beaver Center Site Plan 
 
Dear Mr. Huotari: 
  
As requested, I have reviewed the site plan for the proposed Big Beaver Center, located on the 
north side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure Roads.  My understanding is that 
you wish my comments on a number of traffic related questions that have been raised, such as 
what should be the appropriate number and location of the access driveways. 
 
The existing site has three driveways to Big Beaver Road, two entirely within the parcel and a 
shared drive with the office building to the east which houses the Detroit Auto Dealers Assoc. 
and the Troy Program Center of Northwood University.  The two drives within the parcel are to 
be removed in their entirety.  There are currently four drives to Alpine Rd, one for the office / 
retail portion of the site and three for former residential houses.  The plan would retain four 
accesses, one new street intersection for the residential portion of the site, and two full access 
and a single one-way drive for the retail portion.  The retail portion will have cross access to a 
single full access drive to McClure Rd.  And the five existing driveways on McClure for former 
residential houses will be replaced with one new street intersection with McClure. 
 
Big Beaver Rd represents high-speed and high-volume travel movements.  The removal of two 
existing drives by way of the proposed plan is entirely appropriate and commendable; it 
promotes access management on this principal arterial and conforms with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Plan developed by the City of Troy.  By way of contrast, both Alpine and McClure 
Roads are local streets, who’s primary function is to provide essentially unlimited access to 
adjoining properties.  With the particular plan being reviewed, there is no change in the number 
of points of access for Alpine, and the number is being reduced for McClure.  However, even if 
the number of drives were to be increasing for either street, this is exactly what these local 
roads are designed for.  Reducing the number of drives will not in any way change the 
anticipated modest traffic volumes that will be using the development property.  Rather, it would 
just change the density of traffic as choices are limited. 
 
Indeed, the only issue I note with the property’s access plan is the one-way drive that provides 
the exit to the proposed bank drive-through lanes.  This driveway is very close to the 
intersection of Alpine and Big Beaver.  Its proximity may lead to problems with bank traffic 
leaving the site when other traffic is queuing along Alpine waiting to turn onto Big Beaver.  I 
recommend that the developer investigate shifting this drive as far to the north of the 
intersection with Big Beaver as possible. 
 
I understand that there is also a call for the local street proposed for the residential development 
portion of the site to be made a cul-de-sac instead of extending between Alpine and McClure.  
While dead end roads were very common in the post-war, suburban-style pattern of 
development, they are today recognized as less than desirable.  Simply put, the principle reason 



 

 

for limiting dead end streets is risk acceptance – how many people / homes / businesses should 
be put at risk of being isolated if something happens to block their sole point of access.  This is 
usually related to the need for emergency service providers to get through.  
 
Obviously, there are other reasons to limit the length of cul-de-sacs.  They tend to require more 
effort to maintain (i.e. snow plowing, longer dead-end utilities), distort circulation patterns 
(especially for pedestrians), and sociologists believe they promote a sense of social isolation 
and inhibit building neighborhood cohesiveness.  For these reasons, cul-de-sac streets are 
considered very undesirable and should be utilized sparingly and only in cases of extreme 
topography or wetland conditions.   
 
I have heard in other communities the argument that maybe the shortcomings of cul-de-sac 
streets can be mitigated by providing an “emergency only” access.  This is sophistry and 
dishonest.  If provided, how would one prevent its routine use?  If some physical barrier is 
provided, such as breakaway bollards, then how would the access be maintained?  This is 
especially important in Michigan, given our winters and the need for snow removal.  If an access 
is unavailable for three to four months a year, it would be fallacious to claim the benefit of 
providing it. 
 
There was one other point I believe you wish me to comment on.  It has been suggested that 
the bank portion of the development be shifted from the west to east side of the site.  As already 
noted, there is a problem with the location of the exit only driveway to Alpine Road.  So making 
this change would resolve that issue.  But there is also a downside to this idea.  Banks and 
other businesses with drive-though windows must entirely rely on travel flow patterns that allow 
the vehicles to present the driver’s side to the window.  If the queuing provided on the site plan 
happened to be inadequate, the existing plan would mean additional queuing within the parking 
lot, and in truly extreme cases out to Alpine.  On the other hand, positioning the bank on the 
east side of the site, adjacent to the shared use driveway, may mean that any spill backs with 
be out to Big Beaver Rd, a far more undesirable consequence.  I do not view that there is any 
fundamental advantage with the bank being located on the east or west side of the site.  So long 
as my concern for the proximity of the exit drive to Big Beaver is addressed, there is no pressing 
reason to require the bank location to be changed. 
 
I hope this discussion helps address some of the questions that have been raised.  If you wish 
any clarification, please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
Stephen B. Dearing, PE, PTOE 
Manager of Traffic Engineering Services 
 



101

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Big Beaver Road: 

A World Class Boulevard

Home to large, landmark projects and • 
mixed-use regional destinations.
Central gathering area of the community.• 
A collection of international corporations, • 
local companies, and establishments which 
complement these high-visibility uses. 

The Big Beaver Road corridor is responsible 
for the fi rst impression many people have 
throughout Michigan when they think of the 
City of Troy.    The high-rise buildings, Somerset 
Collection, and its immediate proximity to 
I-75 are frequently the main elements visitors 
remember about the Corridor and the City.   In 

order to remain competitive and continue 

to be a leader in economic development 

in Southeast Michigan, Troy must plan for 

this Corridor to evolve in light of a changing 

economy.  In that spirit, the City adopted the 
key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study in 
2006:

Gateways, Districts and Transitions • 
Trees and Landscape as Ceilings and Walls • 
Walking Becomes Entertainment - Much to • 
Observe & Engage In 
Mixing the Uses Turns on the Lights - • 
Energetic Dynamic of Mixed Uses with a 
Focus on Residential 

The Automobile & Parking are No Longer #1. • 
Civic Art as the Wise Sage of the Boulevard• 

The uses and character of this future 

land use category are driven by the 

recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor 

Study and subsequent eff orts of the Planning 

Commission to create new zoning techniques 

to implement those recommendations.

This Study provided a comprehensive analysis 
of the existing and potential characteristics 
of this important area.  The planned future 
land uses in the Big Beaver Corridor are in 
large part considered mixed-use, to allow for a 
wave of new residential development and the 
redevelopment of individual sites to make a 
more meaningful contribution to the quality of 
life of the City.  The main diff erence between the 
various mixed-use districts planned in the Study 
is building height.  The intended characteristics 
of the various districts are also very diff erent, 
and are the topic of in-depth analysis in the 
Study.  Some important recommendations of 
that Study are listed below.  

Moving toward the creation of distinct • 
physical districts by building from lot line to 
lot line along the right-of-way rather than 
continuing to be a collection of isolated 
towers.    

Becoming fl exible with land use • 
relationships.  The use of vertically 
integrated mixed-use commercial, offi  ce 
and residential towers should be promoted.  
The use of prominent ground fl oor retail, 
restaurants and cafes allows visual interest 
and activity for visitors and residents.      

Contain parking in structures that are shared • 
by surrounding developments.  Do not allow 
off -street parking to be visible from major 
thoroughfares.  

Landscape Big Beaver and intersecting • 
thoroughfares with rows of mature trees.

BIG BEAVER ROAD



102 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT
This will be a vibrant high-rise business and • 
residential district.  

Pedestrian use will be promoted through • 
massive landscaping, wide sidewalks, 
outdoor cafes, and public art.  

The Big Beaver Corridor Study and Big • 
Beaver Development Code provide for a 
specifi c land development pattern.   

Architectural design must create an • 
interesting visual experience for both 
sidewalk users at close range and for those 
viewing the skyline from a distance.

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Parking should be located in rear yards.• 

Development should include intense street • 
tree planting along Big Beaver.

Cafes, plazas, parks and similar amenities to • 
draw pedestrians will be encouraged.

Buildings will frame the street network by • 
building to the front and side property lines.  
Exceptions for cafes, plazas and access roads 
may be permitted.  

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should rise in height toward • 
Crooks Road in the east-west direction.  

Buildings should rise in height toward Big • 
Beaver in the north-south direction.

Ground level stories should be a minimum of • 
twelve feet in height; with large expanses of 
transparent glass.  

Fenestration at the ground level should be • 
highlighted through the use of awnings, 
overhangs or trim detailing, and building 
caps or roofs should provide a visually 
interesting skyline.

Concept Sketch from the Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.

Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – 

Big Beaver Center (formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road 
between Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B 
(One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced the item. 
 
The petitioners, Arkan Jonna and Jordan Jonna of A. F. Jonna Development 
Company were present.   
 
Mark Nickita, AIA, of Archive Design Studio, gave a PowerPoint presentation on 
the commercial project design. 
 
Mr. Krent addressed vehicular traffic and the residential aspect of the 
development.  He suggested moving the bank to the east and would like to see a 
good transitional blend between the proposed and existing residential.  Mr. Krent 
distributed a proposed layout depicting the bank on the east side of the site. 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a brief history of the site and a report on the proposed 
development.  He said the proposal meets many aspects of Master Plan and the 
proposed public realm is a very significant public benefit.  Mr. Carlisle addressed 
the findings of the traffic consultant report that the increase in density would have 
a negligible effect along Big Beaver.  He applauded the petitioner in the massing 
of the building.  In conclusion, Mr. Carlisle addressed site plan concerns relating 
to both the commercial and residential site plans. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan, Troy; addressed density, vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic, curb cuts, egress, bank location, safety of children, traffic light/pedestrian 
crossing. 
 
Barbara Dawson, 1834 Boulan, Troy, addressed cut-through traffic, dead end or 
cul de sac street, bank location, front vs rear parking for commercial. 
 
Susan Tompkins, 1725 Banmoor, addressed findings of traffic study, sidewalks, 
pedestrian traffic. 
 
Sharon Mitchell, 3142 McClure, Troy, addressed vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Vehicular traffic; cut-through traffic. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

• Proposed bank. 
o Ingress/egress; potential traffic congestion. 
o Moving bank to the east. 
o Drive-through capability. 
o Newly adopted Zoning Ordinance amendment; drive through must utilize 

in lane or side street. 
• Pedestrian walkway; width of walkway. 
• Parking. 

o Front versus rear. 
o Percentage for food services. 

• Material samples. 
• Residential development. 

o Buffer. 
o Transition between high and low density. 
o Blend with existing neighborhood. 

• Additional public amenities. 
• No sidewalks; safety of children. 
• Building view from rear. 

o Architectural design. 
o Landscape/ additional green. 

• DDA district boundaries. 
 
The petitioners addressed reasons for not moving the bank to the east. 
• Conflict with vehicular and pedestrian bank patrons. 
• Detraction of retail point position. 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-07-050 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such 
time that the applicant submits a complete Concept Development Plan and 
Preliminary Development Plan application that addresses the issues identified in 
the Planning Consultant report. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the table. 
 
The petitioner advised that the proposed residential portion of the development 
would be inclusive of the complete application submittal. 
 
Vote on the motion on the table. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2012 
  
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
7. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center 

(formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine 
and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family 
Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed how the applicant addressed commercial and residential 
site plan issues since the last review.  He addressed traffic issues and the City’s 
traffic consultant’s report prepared by Stephen Dearing of Orchard, Hiltz & 
McCliment (OHM).  Mr. Carlisle reported the applicant addressed all outstanding 
issues with the exception of providing the required 20% site landscaping.  Mr. 
Carlisle expressed support for the proposed project and recommended approval. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• PUD zoning with respect to future commercial uses. 
• PUD development agreement. 
• Landscaping requirement/deficiency in relation to urban style development. 
 
Mr. Krent addressed concerns with the proposed access drives, curb cuts and 
potential traffic problems on Alpine. 
 
The petitioner, Arkan Jonna of AF Jonna Development, 4036 Telegraph, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present and addressed the following: 
• Underlying zoning; need for flexibility in re-leasing spaces in future. 
• Hardscaping and landscaping. 
• Traffic. 
• Materials and building samples (on display). 
• Parking in relation to restaurant usage. 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08-057 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

WHEREAS, AF Jonna Development submitted an application for a Planned Unit 
Development, including a 24,000 square foot retail building and a 3,500 square 
foot bank branch along Big Beaver Road, with 16 single family residential units to 
the north; and,  
 

WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan; and,  
 

WHEREAS, The commercial component along Big Beaver achieves many of the 
goals of the Big Beaver Corridor Study; and, 
 

WHEREAS, The pedestrian amenities proposed by the applicant along Big 
Beaver provide a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2012 
  
 
 

scale building that can be an example to be emulated along the Big Beaver 
corridor; and 
 

WHEREAS, The residential component serves as a suitable transition between 
the commercial component and the existing residential neighborhood to the 
north; and, 
 

WHEREAS, The application is compatible with adjacent properties and uses. 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby 
recommends that City Council approve of the rezoning of the northern two parcels 
(3128 Alpine and 3141 McClure) from R-1B One Family Residential District to 
PUD Planned Unit Development, and that these two parcels be included in the 
proposed PUD; and, 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends 
that City Council concurrently approve the Concept Development Plan (CDP) 
and Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) approval for the Big Beaver Center 
PUD. 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Kempen, Sanzica, Tagle 
No: Krent 
Absent: Schepke, Schultz, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Krent requested to place a substitute motion on the floor.  Ms. Lancaster 
advised that only a member of the majority vote could place a substitute motion 
on the floor. 
 
Mr. Krent stated his proposed substitute motion would incorporate the following 
provisions and read as follows: 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The bank branch is to be located on the 
east end of the Big Beaver Road property frontage for the following reasons.  
Its proposed location at the west end of the Big Beaver Road frontage 
imposes a detrimental traffic impact to the residents north of the project.  
Additionally, the proposed west location creates a potential traffic hazard 
between vehicles entering Alpine Road from Big Beaver Road and vehicles 
exiting the bank drive-through lanes because of the bank’s exit lanes’ close 
proximity to Big Beaver Road. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The access to the retail parking lot from 
Alpine Road and the access to Alpine Road from the retail parking lot shall 
be limited to one curb cut which shall be located at the northernmost end of 
the retail parking lot to reduce traffic congestion on Alpine Road at the Big 
Beaver Road intersection.  This one curb cut will be a directional driveway 
that is curved toward Big Beaver Road making it difficult to turn north onto 
Alpine. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2012 
  
 
 

 
Ms. Lancaster said it appears that flipping or moving the building is a change to 
the design and advised that it is the discretion of the Board whether the proposed 
substitute motion is a re-design of the proposed site plan.  She said the 
substitute motion, as proposed, should be open for discussion and is at the 
discretion of the Board whether the motion should be entertained. 
 
Mr. Sanzica said he recognizes and sympathizes with the concerns expressed by 
Mr. Krent and respects his interest in the proposed application.  Mr. Sanzica said 
he could not support the substitute motion as proposed because the City’s traffic 
consultant’s opinion is in support of the design. 
 
Chair Tagle asked if any member of the Board would support entertaining the 
substitute motion as proposed by Mr. Krent. 
 
There was no response; therefore, no motion on the table. 
 
The minutes hereby reflect the concerns and reasons for the dissenting vote by 
Mr. Krent on Resolution # PC-2012-08-057. 

 



From: Susan Tompkins
To: Planning
Subject: PUD 4 (Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development)
Date: Monday, July 23, 2012 10:16:26 PM

Attention Troy Planning Department,
I am writing in regard to the possible future development referred to as

PUD 4 (Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development).  I am concerned about the
entrances to the development and the effect on the adjoining neighborhood.  If
entrances and exits are allowed onto McClure and Alpine Streets, traffic will
considerably increase into the residential neighborhood behind the development,
Muer’s Garden Farms. 

Due to the entrances to the commercial buildings that are already there, traffic
flows all day, through the residential neighborhood, to and from these buildings to
Crooks Rd.  Often, cars are speeding to get to lunch, work, or home for the day.  We
do not have sidewalks; consequently, children and adults must walk on the roads
through the neighborhood.  Our children have to walk to school through the
neighborhood.  When my children want to go for walks, I check the time to make sure
it is not lunch hour or the end of the day when traffic is its heaviest.  It is simply not
desirable to add more traffic.  Please consider our families and homes when planning
the development.
 
Sincerely,
Susan Tompkins

mailto:smtompkins@wowway.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


From: Stephen Krason
To: Planning
Subject: Comments: PUD 004 Big Beaver Center Sec 20
Date: Tuesday, July 24, 2012 1:59:41 PM

Dear Planning Commission,
 
The planned development on Big Beaver between Alpine and McClure concerns me greatly.  You
are extending a shopping center and other development into a neighborhood that will dramatically
increase the amount of traffic in a neighborhood where kids play in the street every day and walk
to school in the streets as we don’t have sidewalks.  People will use Alpine, McClure, Muer, Boulan,
and Banmoor as through streets to and from Crooks as it is much quicker than using Big Beaver due
to the turn arounds.  This is a very bad idea and will put our kids at risk and the increase in traffic
noise is going to completely change this quiet neighborhood for the worst and will very likely
degrade our property values.  We moved here for the quiet and safe neighborhood for our children
which it will no longer be if this goes through.  We cannot put commercial interests above that of
the people who live here.
 
We are completely opposed to having either of these residential lots (3128 Alpine, 3141 McClure)
rezoned as commercial/PUD.
 
We are not opposed to development on Big Beaver at Alpine, but it should not extend into the
neighborhood and should not have entrances on Alpine or McClure. 
 
Sincerely,
 
Stephen and Kelly Krason
3376 Alpine
 

mailto:steve@prowebis.net
mailto:planning@troymi.gov










From: Brent Savidant
To: Kathy Czarnecki
Subject: Fwd: FW: Alpine Rd. and Big Beaver
Date: Wednesday, September 05, 2012 7:38:59 PM

Needs to be added to memo with other public comment

Sent from my Verizon Wireless 4G LTE DROID

-------- Original Message --------
Subject: FW: Alpine Rd. and Big Beaver
From: Mark F Miller <MillerMF@troymi.gov>
To: Brent Savidant <SavidantB@troymi.gov>
CC: 

 

 

From: Cynthia A Stewart 
Sent: Wednesday, September 05, 2012 7:26 AM
To: Dane Slater (djlkslater@aol.com); Dave Henderson (davehenderson@wideopenwest.com); Doug
Tietz; Janice Daniels (janice.daniels@troymi.gov); Jim Cambell (jkcampbell@comcast.net); Lori G Bluhm;
Maureen McGinnis (mmcginnis@dmcginnis.com); Mike Culpepper; wade.fleming@proforma.com
Cc: Mark F Miller
Subject: FW: Alpine Rd. and Big Beaver

 

 

 

From: Chad O'Kulich [mailto:COKulich@cranbrook.edu] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 04, 2012 10:02 PM
To: undisclosed-recipients
Subject: Alpine Rd. and Big Beaver

 

Dear City Council,

Please don't permit the traffic flow onto Alpine Rd. from the Big Beaver Center. We are very concerned
about the safety for all of the children in our neighborhood. I ask you to imagine that you were living in
our neighborhood and this was happening to you. Wouldn't you try and put a stop to it? Would you
want the increased traffic around your children? 

Respectfully,

 

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SAVIDANTB
mailto:CzarneckiK@troymi.gov
mailto:COKulich@cranbrook.edu


Chad O'Kulich

1805 Boulan Dr.
Troy, MI



 

20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BIG BEAVER CENTER 
 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF TROY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 FOR “BIG BEAVER CENTER” 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
 

This Development Agreement (“Agreement”) dated ______________, 2012 is entered 
into by and between Big Beaver Center, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, 
whose address is c/o AF Jonna Development, LLC, 4036 Telegraph Road, Suite 201, 
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48302 (“Developer”), and the City of Troy, a Michigan 
municipal corporation,  having its principal offices at  500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, 
Michigan 48084 (“City”). 

R E C I T A L S: 

A. Developer is the owner of certain real property located in the City of Troy, 
Oakland County, Michigan, containing approximately 7.5 acres, located on the north 
side of Big Beaver between Alpine Road and McClure Road, which is more particularly 
described in Exhibit A hereto (the “Property”). 

B. The Property was previously owned by Big Beaver Alpine, LLC, a 
Michigan limited liability company, which, with Big Beaver Office, LLC, a Michigan 
limited liability company, applied to the City for approval of a Planned Unit Development 
and on December 19, 2005 a Resolution was passed by Troy City Council approving 
the Development Agreement for Monarch Private Residences and rezoning a portion of 
the property to Planned Unit Development (the “Monarch PUD”).  The Development 



 

2 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

Agreement and Resolution was executed and recorded in Liber 38068, Page 761, 
Oakland County Records on May 31, 2006; 

C. The Monarch Private Residences Project and Development contemplated 
to be constructed pursuant to the Monarch Planned Unit Development Agreement (the 
“Monarch Project”) never occurred and the Monarch PUD was abandoned and all 
agreements related to said Monarch PUD, including the Development Agreement 
recorded in Liber 38068, Page 761, Oakland County Records were rescinded by 
resolution of Troy City Council on September 10, 2012; however, the Troy City Council 
resolution continues the zoning of the Property as PUD; 

D. The Developer has acquired title to the Property, a portion of which was 
previously encumbered by the Monarch PUD. That portion of the Property which was 
not part of the Monarch PUD is described on the attached Exhibit B and is hereinafter 
referred to as the “Additional Property.”  

E.   The Additional Property is included in Developer’s application for PUD.  
Developer PUD Agreement includes a rezoning of the Additional Property to PUD 
(hereinafter reference to “Property” shall include the Additional Property described in 
Exhibit B).  

F. The Developer filed an application and has petitioned for a new PUD in 
order to develop a mixed use project consisting of commercial uses on approximately 
2.5 acres of the Property (hereinafter the “Commercial Portion”), more particularly 
described on the attached Exhibit C and the remaining five acre portion described on 
Exhibit D to be developed for residential uses (the “Residential Portion”).  The 
Commercial Portion and the Residential Portion are collectively the “Project” or the “Big 
Beaver Center PUD”; 

G. The Developer has agreed to undertake construction of the various public 
roads and public and private utility improvements necessary for the Project.  Developer 
agrees to construct the Development in two phases, both of which are set forth on 
Exhibit E attached hereto (the “Land Development Plan”).  The City Council of the City 
has issued preliminary plan approval for the rezoning of the Property in accordance with 
this PUD as required by the City’s Zoning Ordinance; 

H. In connection with the grant of rezoning of the Property to PUD, Chapter 
39, Section 11.06 E. of the City’s Zoning Ordinance requires the execution of a Planned 
Unit Development Agreement which incorporates the Concept Development Plan, 
including a summary description of the nature and character of the proposed 
development; a statement of the conditions upon which the Concept Development Plan 
Approval by the City Council is based; a summary of public improvements and financial 
guarantees to complete those improvements;  and other documents enumerated as 
PUD Documents, and which requires Concept Development Plan Approval by City 
Council as part of the grant of rezoning of the Property to PUD. However, Developer 
chose to present a the Concept Development Plan as a Preliminary Development Plan 
pursuant to Chapter 39, Section 11.07 which was approved by the Planning 



 

3 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

Commission on August 14, 2012.  As part of PUD plan approval, Developer has offered 
and agreed to make the improvements and to proceed with the undertakings described 
in the PUD Documents which Developer and the City agree were necessary and 
roughly proportional to the burden imposed in order to (i) ensure  that the public 
services and facilities affected by the Project will be capable of accommodating 
increased services and facility loads caused by the Project, (ii) protect the natural 
environment and conserve natural resources, (iii) ensure compatibility with adjacent 
uses of land, (iv) promote use of the Property in an economically desirable manner and 
(v) achieve other legitimate objectives authorized under the Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act, MCL 125.3101, et. seq. and Chapter 39, Article 11 of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance. 

I. For the purpose of confirming the rights, obligations and restrictions in 
connection with the improvements and development to be undertaken on the Property, 
once City Council has granted rezoning to Big Beaver Center Planned Unit 
Development and approved this Agreement and the Concept Development Plan, 
including final site plans, landscaping plans and the other PUD Documents, this 
Agreement is effective on the date the City’s Zoning Ordinance is amended to grant 
rezoning of the Property to PUD (the “Effective Date”) and to be binding upon the City, 
the Developer, and their successors and assigns. 

NOW, THEREFORE, as an integral part of the grant of the rezoning of the Property to 
Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development, and for other good and valuable 
consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

 
 

GENERAL TERMS 

1.1 This Agreement, incorporates all PUD Documents, and shall run with 
the land.  Reference in this Agreement or any PUD Documents to “Developer” shall 
include Developer’s respective successors and assigns.  Any reference to condominium 
communities, individual unit owners or the associations referenced therein, shall include 
their successors and assigns.  It is the intent of the City and Developer to put all future 
owners of the Property or parties in interest on notice of the rights, obligations and 
restrictions contained herein by recording this Agreement with the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be considered 
“Deed Restrictions” for any successors or assigns of the Property, and shall be 
incorporated by reference in any master deed or other restrictions created in connection 
with the development and/or use of the Property. 

1.2 The Property shall be developed and improved only in accordance with 
the following, which shall be referred to herein as the “PUD Documents”: 



 

4 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

A. Chapter 39, Article 11 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, and 
amendments, if any. 

B. The Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development Concept 
Development Plan/Preliminary Development Plan Application, 
submitted by Developer to the Planning Department on March 8, 
2012.  Information included in the Concept Development 
Plan/Preliminary Development Plan Application includes but is not 
limited to the following: 

1. GENERAL:  
 

a. G0.1.0 Cover sheet (prepared by Serra-Marko & Associates and 
dated 8-6-2012) 

b. G0.0.1 Zoning Analysis (prepared by Serra-Marko & Associates and 
dated 8-6-2012) 

c. G0.0.2 Residential Zoning Analysis (prepared by Serra-Marko & 
Associates and dated 8-6-2012) 

d. C-1  Preliminary Paving & Grading Plan (prepared by Orman 
Engineering and dated 8-6-2012) 

e. C-2  Preliminary Paving & Grading Plan (prepared by Orman 
Engineering and dated 7-29-2012) 

 
2. LANDSCAPE: 

 
a. LS-1 Landscape Plan (prepared by Calvin Hall & Associates and 

dated 8-2-2012) 
b. LS-2 Landscape Plan – Single Family (prepared by Calvin Hall & 

Associates and dated 8-2-2012) 
c. LS-3 Plant Material List, Planting Details & Notes (prepared by 

Calvin Hall & Associates and dated 8-2-2012) 
 

3. ARCHITECTURAL AND SITE PLAN: 
 
                     a. A0.1.1 Existing/Demo Site Plan (prepared by Serra-Marko &  
                          Associates and dated 8-6-2012) 

b. A0.1.2 Composite Site Plan (prepared by Serra-Marko & Associates 
and dated 8-6-2012) 

c. A0.1.3 Proposed Site Plan (prepared by Serra-Marko & Associates 
and dated 8-6-2012) 

d. A3.0.1 Proposed Floor Plan & Front Elevation (prepared by Serra-
Marko & Associates and dated 8-6-2012) 

e. A3.0.2 Proposed Elevations (prepared by Serra-Marko & 
Associates and dated 8-6-2012) 

f. A3.0.3 Residential Sample Floor Plans (prepared by Serra-Marko & 
Associates and dated 8-6-2012) 

g. A3.0.4 Residential Sample Elevations (prepared by Serra-Marko & 



 

5 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

Associates and dated 8-6-2012) 
h. A-1 Bank Floor Plan (prepared by Michael A. Boggio Assoc. 

Architects and dated 7-10-2012) 
i. A-2 Bank Elevations (prepared by Michael A. Boggio Assoc. 

Architects and dated 7-10-2012) 
 

4. LIGHTING: 
 

                      a.A0.3.1 Photometric Plan (prepared by Serra-Marko & Associates  
                           and dated 8-6-2-12) 

b. A0.3.2 Photometric Schedules & Cut Sheets (prepared by Serra-
Marko & Associates and dated 8-6-2012) 

c. C9307-DWG01 Lighting Specifications (prepared by Philips HADCO 
and dated 02-17-2012) 

d. C9307-DWG02 Lighting Specifications (prepared by Philips HADCO 
and dated 02-20-2012) 

e. C9307-DWG03 Lighting Specifications (prepared by Philips HADCO 
and dated 02-20-2012) 
 

C. Signage:  All signs shall comply with the requirements for “B” 
uses in Chapter 85-Signs of the Troy Code of Ordinances.  
Exception: Developer shall be permitted for one additional 
pedestrian-scaled projecting sign per business shall be permitted. 
Such sign shall be designed to attract and inform pedestrians. No 
such projecting sign shall exceed 12 square feet per sign fact. The 
location of all ground signs shall be subject to review and approval 
by the City Engineer. 

D. Any and all conditions of the approval of the City Council 
pertaining to the Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development 
Concept Development/Preliminary Development Plan as 
specifically reflected in the resolution of the official minutes of the 
meeting at which such approval is granted. 

E. An Affidavit of Property Ownership to be recorded with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds prior to commencement of 
construction and prior to the sale or lease of any portion of the 
Project, containing the legal description of the entire Property, 
specifying the date of Concept  Development/Preliminary 
Development Plan approval and rezoning of the Planned Unit 
Development by City Council, and declaring that all future 
development of the Property has been authorized, restricted and 
required to be carried out in accordance with this Agreement and 
the Ordinance amendment granting rezoning to Big Beaver Center 
Planned Unit Development. 

F. The drive-through shown in the Composite Site Plan for the 



 

6 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

Commercial Phase is hereby expressly approved and Developer 
shall not be required to separately seek a special use approval or 
permit for the same. 

G. Developer shall have the right hereunder to modify the interior 
floor plans for the Commercial Phase without the City’s consent 
(but subject to compliance with all other applicable City 
ordinances), so long as the exterior elevations for the 
improvements in the Commercial Phase do not change. Further, all 
side setbacks established for the Commercial Phase set forth in the 
PUD Documents shall only apply to the east and west boundary of 
the Commercial Phase and not to any interior boundaries created 
between two or more parcels created due to a transfer of ownership 
of a portion of the Commercial Phase. 

H. The proposed floor plan and elevations for the Residential 
Phase referenced above are merely guidelines for the residential 
structures to be constructed therein.  The Developer of the 
Residential Phase shall have the right to modify the Floor Plans 
and Elevations of the residential structures, provided that in all 
events the following minimum requirements are satisfied: (i) all 
residential structures shall be two story structures with 90% of the 
front façade (excluding doors and windows) being brick; (ii) the six 
feet of the side elevations which are not otherwise windows or 
garage doors shall be brick; (iii) minimum floor area for each 
structure shall be 3,000 square feet; (iv) any deviations from the 
referenced residential criteria may be approved by the City of Troy 
Building Department administratively. 

1.3 Troy City Council Resolution #CC-2012-09-______and this Big Beaver 
Center Planned Unit Development Agreement shall be considered an amendment to the 
Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning Map, reclassifying the zoning of the Property, which 
was not previously rezoned to PUD under the now abandoned Monarch PUD,  to PUD 
and constitutes the land use authorization for the Property, and all use and 
improvement of the Property shall be in substantial conformity with such Ordinance and 
the PUD Documents referenced herein. Uses permitted in the Commercial Phase are all 
uses permitted in the “BB Big Beaver District” for Street Type A, Site Type A as set out 
in Chapter 39 of the Troy Zoning ordinance.  

 

ARTICLE II 
 

DEVELOPER’S RIGHTS, OBLIGATIONS AND PROPERTY RESTRICTIONS 

2.1 The Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) application submitted per 
the requirements of Section 11.07 of Chapter 39, Article 11 of the City’s Zoning 



 

7 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

Ordinance, shall meet and conform to the criteria of the Concept 
Development/Preliminary Development Plan.  The Final Development Plan application 
submitted per the requirements of Section 11.08 of Chapter 39, Article 11 of the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance, shall meet and conform to the criteria of the Concept Development  
Preliminary Development Plan.   

2.2 Developer shall have the right to develop the Property  in accordance 
with the PUD Documents as per Chapter 39, Article 11 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  
Any changes to the Plan shall be approved in accordance with the PUD Documents and 
the City’s Zoning Ordinance. 

2.3 The Project may be developed in two phases.  The phases may 
proceed simultaneously and otherwise overlap.  The first phase (“Commercial Phase”) 
shall consist of 3,397 square foot freestanding drive-through bank and a 24,000 square 
foot commercial building.  The second phase (“Residential Phase”) shall be 16 
detached single family residential lots.  Both the Commercial Phase and the Residential 
Phase are shown on Sheet AO.1.2 - Composite Site Plan.   

2.4 List of Conditions Offered in Exchange for PUD Consideration.  As part 
of the PUD approval and as conditions of said approval and to satisfy the PUD zoning 
standards, Developer shall:  (a) undertake the Commercial Phase undertaking shown 
on Exhibit F during the development of the Commercial Phase; (b) undertake the 
Residential Phase undertaking shown on Exhibit G during the development of the 
Residential Phase.  The public benefit provided by Developer shall, in addition to the 
items set forth above, include the elimination of existing blight by redevelopment of the 
Property with desirable and compatible land uses that provide a logical transition with 
the surrounding properties, and the creation of an attractive gateway to the City of Troy. 

2.5 If the Developer should determine to sell or lease parts of the 
Residential Phase in the form of a condominium, Developer shall submit to the Troy City 
Attorney the proposed Master Deed and Bylaws for the Project (collectively the “Master 
Deed”) for review and approval.  If the Master Deed satisfies the requirements of this 
Development Agreement and other applicable City ordinances then approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld.  The Master Deed shall acknowledge that each unit owner 
and the Condominium Association (the “Association”) identified therein will be bound by 
the terms and provisions of this Agreement.  The Master Deed shall comply with all 
statutes of the State of Michigan and City Ordinances and be recorded with the Oakland 
County Register of Deeds after the Effective Date of the amendment of the Zoning 
Ordinance to rezone the Property to PUD. 

2.6 The Master Deed, if adopted, shall obligate the Association to maintain 
the general common elements of the Residential Phase, to the extent included in and as 
more particularly set forth in the Master Deed, in good working order and appearance, 
including, without limitation, storm water drainage and retention facilities, private 
roadways, landscaping, parking areas, sidewalks, water features, common structures 
and facilities, and common areas or elements.  In addition, the Master Deed shall 
provide that the Residential Phase is controlled by the PUD Documents.  The Master 



 

8 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

Deed shall also contain provisions for the performance of Developer’s maintenance 
obligations under this Agreement and the PUD Documents.  No portion of the 
Commercial Phase shall be required to be part of or subject to the Master Deed or 
otherwise be part of the Association created thereby. 

2.7 Each unit owner of any portion of the Residential Phase shall be a 
member of the Association, as applicable, at all times during the term of ownership and, 
and subject to the assessments of the Association.  The Association shall be authorized 
to perform the functions and duties delegated and assigned under the Master Deed. 

2.8 The Master Deed shall prohibit exterior modification of the units within 
the Residential Phase which are in conflict with the PUD Documents. 

2.9 Developer shall have the right to separate ownership of the 
Commercial Phase in two or more owners and in connection therewith, create a 
Reciprocal Easement and Maintenance Agreement (“REMA”) for the improvements 
located within several portions of the Commercial Phase which obligates the owners 
and/or occupants of the improvements within the Commercial Phase to maintain the 
general common elements of the Commercial Phase, to the extent included in and as 
more particularly set forth in the Reciprocal Easement Agreement, in good working 
order and appearance, including, without limitation, storm water drainage and retention 
facilities, private roadways, landscaping, parking areas, sidewalks, water features, 
common structures and facilities, and common areas or elements. 

2.10 Until such time as an association is formed for the Residential Phase 
or the Developer’s responsibilities are otherwise formally transferred for the Commercial 
Phase or any part thereof pursuant to the REMA, Developer shall maintain all common 
areas, storm water drainage and retention facilities, landscaped areas, parking areas 
and sidewalks in the Project in good working order and appearance.  Developer may 
establish an Association or Associations to assume the maintenance obligations set 
forth in this Article II, this Planned Unit Development Agreement and otherwise, in which 
event the Association or Associations shall succeed to the Developer’s obligations for 
those portions of the Property defined in the instrument establishing each Association, 
and Developer shall be relieved of all obligation and liability with respect thereto.  The 
Developer expressly has the right to form separate associations to perform such 
maintenance obligations for the Residential Phase and the Commercial Phase. 

2.11 Developer, or any successor Association or Associations or obligated 
party, shall maintain the landscaping and related improvements located within a Phase 
of the Project in a neat an orderly appearance, substantially free from refuse and debris 
and, shall promptly replace any dead or dying plants and shrubs.  If the weather does 
not allow for immediate removal and replacement, then it shall be done as soon as 
possible, but in no event shall it be longer than the end of the current planting season.  

2.12 Developer shall comply with the City Code and Ordinances, make any 
necessary application for permits and obtain any necessary permits for the use of 
temporary sales trailers and/or sale and advertising signs. 



 

9 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

ARTICLE III 
 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

3.1 Water and Sanitary Sewer Systems.  Developer shall, at its sole 
expense, construct and install improvements and/or connections tying into the municipal 
water and sewage systems, including any required water hydrants.  Such improvements 
shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the Final Development Plan, 
approved engineering construction plans and all applicable City, County and State 
standards, codes, regulations, ordinances and laws.  Such water and sanitary sewer 
service facilities, including any on-site and off-site facilities, extensions and easements 
to reach the area to be served, shall be provided by and at the sole expense of the 
Developer shall be completed, approved and dedicated to (as required by the City in its 
discretion) the City to the extent necessary to fully service all proposed and existing 
facilities, structures and uses in the Project. Except as provided in Section 4.4 below, all 
water and sanitary system improvements required for a particular Phase shall be 
completed before construction of said Phase of the development and shall be 
completed, approved and dedicated to and accepted by the City, to the extent 
necessary to fully service all proposed and existing facilities, structures and uses, within 
the Phase of the Development to be served thereby, prior to issuance of any building 
permits as more fully described in Section 4.4 below.  The water and sanitary sewer 
improvements within and for a particular Phase must be completed such that such 
Phase shall, upon completion and dedication of such improvements, be fully sufficient to 
provide the required capacity for water and sewer services to such Phase according to 
the applicable laws, ordinances, codes, regulations and standards at the time of 
construction of each such Phase.  With respect to each Phase of the Development, the 
Developer shall post security in the form of cash or check or certificate of deposit, 
irrevocable letter of credit (issued by an institution doing business in Oakland County) or 
a performance bond (the “Security”), as specified in a separate agreement approved by 
the City.  The Security shall be in an amount equal to the estimated cost of installation, 
or a performance bond in an amount equal to the cost of construction of the water and 
sanitary sewer systems plus 10% refundable cash deposit.  The Agreement shall also 
authorize the City, at its option, to complete these improvements as required by the City 
Engineer, if Developer fails to complete the water and sanitary sewer improvements in a 
timely fashion, once construction has commenced.  All performance bonds shall be 
issued by institutions licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  In 
such case, building permits for the applicable phase of the development to be served by 
the water and sanitary sewer improvements in question shall be issued upon the 
posting of such Security and execution of such agreement, which shall be approved by 
the City Attorney in the exercise of reasonable discretion.  The water and sanitary sewer 
improvements shall be completed and approved prior to issuance of any certificates of 
occupancy for the last building within the Phase of that development.  At the 
Developer’s request, but not more frequently than once a month, the Security may be 
reduced by the same percentage as the percentage of completion of the water and 
sanitary sewer improvements as determined by the City’s engineer in the exercise of 
reasonable discretion.  The balance of any Security shall be returned to Developer 
within thirty (30) days following the determination of the City that the water and sanitary 



 

10 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

sewer improvements have been completed per the approved engineering plans.  A 
minimum  of ten (10) percent of the security shall be maintained by the City until such 
time as final approval has been issued for all improvements required for a particular 
Phase. 

3.2 Storm Water Drainage.  The Developer, at its sole expense, shall 
construct and maintain a storm water and retention system for each Phase, which 
system shall include the improvements provided in this Agreement, and shall be 
installed in accordance with the PUD Documents, the approved engineering 
construction plans and all applicable ordinances, laws, codes, standards and 
regulations.  All drainage improvements necessary for each Phase of the Project shall 
be completed and approved prior to issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy for any 
structure for any Phase.  During the development of the Project, the Developer shall be 
obligated to maintain any than existing storm drainage and retention system and 
facilities in a fully operational condition.  Upon completion of the storm drainage and 
retention system, the Developer may assign its responsibility with respect to such 
maintenance to an Association if allowable by applicable Master Deed or to parties to 
the REMA.  In such case, the obligation shall be solely that of the Association. For each 
Phase, the Developer shall post security in the form of cash or check or certificate of 
deposit, irrevocable letter of credit (issued by an institution doing business in Oakland 
County) or a performance bond (the “Security”), as specified in a separate agreement 
approved by the City.  The Security shall be in an amount equal to the estimated cost of 
installation, or a performance bond in an amount equal to the cost of construction of the 
storm drainage system plus 10% refundable cash deposit.  The Agreement shall also 
authorize the City, at its option, to complete the drainage improvements as required by 
the City Engineer, if Developer fails to complete the drainage improvements in a timely 
fashion, once construction has commenced.  All performance bonds shall be issued by 
institutions licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  In such case, 
building permits for the applicable phase of the development to be served by the 
drainage improvements in question shall be issued upon the posting of such Security 
and execution of such agreement, which shall be approved by the City Attorney in the 
exercise of reasonable discretion.  The drainage improvements shall be completed and 
approved prior to issuance of any certificates of occupancy for the last building within 
the Phase of that development.  At the Developer’s request, but not more frequently 
than once a month, the Security may be reduced by the same percentage as the 
percentage of completion of the drainage improvements as determined by the City’s 
engineer in the exercise of reasonable discretion.  The balance of any Security shall be 
returned to Developer within thirty (30) days following the determination of the City that 
the drainage improvements have been completed per the approved engineering plans.  
A minimum  of ten (10) percent of the security shall be maintained by the City until such 
time as final approval has been issued for all improvements required for a particular 
Phase. 

3.3  All construction, repair, maintenance and replacement of the storm drainage and 
retention system which are Developer’s responsibility, as described in this Section, shall 
be the sole obligation of the Developer and its successors in ownership except for storm 
water retention, which can be shifted to any successor Association by Master Deed as 



 

11 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

to parties subject to the REMA.  Any such Master Deed REMA shall require ongoing 
maintenance, repair and improvement of such storm drainage and retention system by 
the Association or the parties to the REMA.  During the development of the applicable 
phase, the Developer shall be obligated to maintain the storm drainage and retention 
system and facilities in a fully operational condition.  Upon the installation of the final or 
topcoat of asphalt on the roads within a phase, the Developer may assign its 
responsibility with respect to such maintenance to the Association as provided in the 
applicable Master Deed or by the REMA as Deed Restrictions herein.  Thereafter, the 
obligation shall be solely that of the Association or the parties to the REMA.  The proper 
functioning, maintenance and repair of the applicable portion of such drainage and 
retention facilities shall be a condition for issuance of any and all building permits for 
construction of dwellings on the Property and for issuance of certificates of occupancy. 

3.4  Sidewalks, Drives, Entryways and Parking Lots.  All drives, entryways, 
sidewalks, and parking lots (the “paving improvements”) within a Phase of the Project 
shall be designed, situated and constructed in accordance with the Final Site Plan all 
requirements and applicable ordinances of the City, the PUD Documents and the 
approved engineering construction plans.  All internal drives, entryways, sidewalks, and 
parking lots will be private except as otherwise set forth herein.  Upon completion of the 
road in the Residential Phase in accordance with the requirement of the City for a public 
road, connecting Alpine Road and McClure Road, the Developer shall dedicate same to 
the City and the City shall accept such dedication.  The Developer, its successors and 
assigns, shall provide in any Master Deed, provisions for emergency access for public 
entities and their personnel.  The Developer shall post security in the form of cash or 
check or certificate of deposit or irrevocable letter of credit (issued by an institution 
doing business in Oakland County) or a performance bond (the “Security”), as specified 
in a separate agreement approved by the City.  The Security shall be in an amount 
equal to the estimated cost of installation, or a performance bond in an amount equal to 
the cost of construction plus 10% refundable cash deposit.  The Agreement shall also 
authorize the City, at its option, to complete the sidewalks, drives, entryways and 
parking lots as required by the City Engineer, if Developer fails to complete the 
sidewalks, drives, entryways and parking lots in a timely fashion, once construction has 
commenced.  All performance bonds shall be issued by institutions licensed and 
admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  In such case, building permits for the 
applicable phase of the development to be served by the sidewalks, drives, entryways, 
and parking lots in question shall be issued upon the posting of such Security and 
execution of such agreement, which shall be approved by the City Attorney in the 
exercise of reasonable discretion.  The sidewalks, drives, entryways, and parking lots 
shall be completed and approved prior to issuance of any certificates of occupancy for 
the last building within the Phase of that development. 

3.5 Prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy in the Commercial 
Phase, parking spaces shall be provided necessary to serve that Commercial Phase, 
and shall consist of, at a minimum, striping on a base course of asphalt, as determined 
by the City Engineer for all entranceways and internal drive areas to provide for access 
for construction traffic, City personnel, emergency and fire fighting equipment to the 
Commercial Phase.  Further, the Developer shall also sign an agreement that requires 



 

12 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

completion and approval of the paving of all areas referenced in this Paragraph serving 
the Commercial Phase (including topcoat, parking lot striping, and permanent traffic 
control signing on site) prior to the issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the 
Commercial Phase.  At the Developer’s request, but not more frequently than once a 
month, the Security may be reduced by the same percentage as the percentage of 
completion of the paving improvements as determined by the City’s engineer in the 
exercise of reasonable discretion.  The balance of any Security shall be returned to 
Developer within thirty (30) days following the determination of the City that the paving 
improvements have been completed per the approved engineering plans.  A minimum 
of ten (10) percent of the security shall be maintained by the City until such time as final 
approval has been issued for all improvements required for a particular Phase. 

Developer, its successors and assigns, shall be responsible for maintenance and repair 
of the drives, entranceways, sidewalks, and parking lots during the period of 
construction, and shall also keep streets abutting the Project free from debris and repair 
any damage to the streets abutting the Project (subject to City of Troy requirements) 
caused by construction activities on or for the Property or the Project and use of 
abutting streets for construction purposes.  If the Developer fails to maintain and repair 
the streets, boulevards, drives, entranceways, parking lots and abutting streets, as 
required by this Paragraph, the City may issue stop work orders and/or withhold 
issuance of further approvals, permits and occupancy certificates for that Phase of the 
Project until such failure is cured in addition to any enforcement authorization or remedy 
provided herein, or any other agreement.  At all times during and after completion of 
construction, Developer, its successor and assigns, shall cause all drives, entranceways 
and parking lots to be maintained, repaired and kept in an unimpeded, unobstructed, 
safe and passable condition at all times to allow for the free flow and circulation of traffic 
throughout the Project, except for temporary closures or obstruction due to repairs or 
snow.  The responsibility and obligation for such ongoing maintenance and repair shall 
be that of the Developer, its successors and assigns.  Developer shall incorporate 
provisions in any and all Master Deeds stating that property owners and the Association 
are bound by the obligations and restrictions herein. 

3.6 Developer shall have the right, subject to City approvals, to assign its 
maintenance and repair obligations under this Agreement to one or more Associations.  
Upon the assignment to and assumption by the Association of Developer’s maintenance 
and repair obligations, Developer shall have no further obligations or liability with 
respect thereto.   

3.7  For purposes of maintenance obligations set forth in this Paragraph, the 
term “maintenance,” “maintain” and “maintained” shall mean and include regular 
inspections. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

THE CITY’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

4.1 The City, in each instance, shall endeavor to provide by written thirty 



 

13 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

(30) days notice to Developer documentation of any and all deficiencies and shall 
provide Developer with a time period in which to cure any deficiencies under this 
agreement, which shall be enough time for Developer, its successors, or assigns, to 
cure the deficiency.  It is understood, however, that each phase shall stand on its own.  
Any defect or violation that affects a phase shall not be grounds to penalize the other 
Phase, and the City’s remedies should be exercised as to each phase only.  

If, following the expiration of the period set forth to cure any deficiencies, such 
deficiencies have not been cured, the City shall there upon have the power and 
authority, but not the obligation, to take any of the following actions, in addition to any 
actions authorized under City ordinance and/or State law: 

(a) Demand that the non-performance, deficiency or 
obligation be fulfilled, performed or completed before Developer assigns its 
obligations to the Association and set a specific date to complete the 
performance, fulfill the obligation or correct the deficiency.  If Developer has not 
completed the performance, fulfilled the obligation or corrected the deficiency by 
the date specified, the Developer shall not assign its obligations to the 
Association and the City may proceed under paragraph 4.1(b). 

(b) Enter upon the Property, or cause its agents or 
contractors to enter upon the Property and perform such obligation or take such 
corrective measures as reasonably found by the City Administration to be 
appropriate.  In addition to any financial assurance given to ensure completion of 
the improvements, the additional costs and expense of making and financing 
such action by the City, including without limitation notices by the City and 
reasonable legal fees incurred by the City, plus an administrative fee in the 
amount of ten (10%) percent of the total of all such costs and expenses incurred, 
shall be paid by Developer within thirty (30) days of City’s invoicing to Developer. 
. 

(c) The City may initiate legal action for the enforcement of 
any of the provisions, requirements, and obligations set forth in the PUD 
Documents. 

(d) The City may issue a stop work order as to any or all 
aspects of that Phase of the Project, may deny the issuance of any requested 
building permit or certificate of occupancy within any part or all of that Phase of 
the Project regardless of whether the Developer is the named applicant for such 
permit or certificate of occupancy, and may suspend further inspections of any or 
all aspects of that phase of the Project. 

4.2 At any time throughout the period of development and construction of 
any part of the Project, the City, its contractors, representatives, consultants and 
agents, shall be permitted and are hereby granted authority to enter upon all or any 
portion of the Property for the purpose of inspecting and/or completing the respective 
improvements, and for the purposes of inspecting for compliance with and enforcement 



 

14 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

of the PUD Documents. 

4.3 To the extent the PUD Documents deviate from the City of Troy 
Development Standards, Zoning Ordinance or other City ordinances, or any 
amendments thereto, the PUD Documents shall control.  All improvements constructed 
in accordance with the PUD Documents shall be deemed to be conforming under the 
Zoning Ordinance and in compliance with all ordinances of the City. 

4.4 Upon proper application by the Developer, payment of the required 
fees and submission of construction plans indicating compliance with the codes and 
ordinances of the City, the City shall approve and issue a Building Permit for two model 
residential units until the Residential units within the Residential Phase are entirely 
constructed and one or more temporary sale trailers.  Such model Building Permits shall 
be issued prior to the recording of any Master Deed for the Residential Phase, issuance 
of separate tax parcel identification numbers for any such units and prior to the 
activation of the water supply to the site provided that: 

(a) Property damage due to fire shall be at the owner’s sole 
risk making such application; 

(b) Access to the construction site shall be surfaced with 
gravel or similar material to accommodate the weight of fire apparatus as 
approved by the City; and 

(c) Unless the Developer finds an adequate water source to 
the construction site, the City fire department may prohibit the building of 
structures or reasonably limit the number of structures to be constructed. 

 

ARTICLE V 
 

MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS 

5.1 The Developer and any successor Association and any of their 
successors and assigns shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, from and against 
any and all claims for injuries and/or damages arising out of their use or maintenance of 
the areas owned by the City but maintained by the Developer or the Association, except 
those claims arising from the negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its agents or 
employees. 

5.2 If a Master Deed is recorded, the Developer or any successor 
Association shall establish and levy assessments against the units within the 
Residential Phase for the purpose of performing the Association’s maintenance and 
repair obligations under this Agreement, in addition to any maintenance obligations for 
the Residential Phase’s common elements, including, but not limited to: storm drainage 
facilities, streets, entranceway improvements, landscaping, irrigation systems, 
sidewalks, and for any other proper purposes.  If the Developer or successor 



 

15 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

Association fails to fulfill the obligations as set out in this Agreement and the PUD 
Documents, the City may take any action available to it under Article IV against the 
individual property owners of each unit on a pro-rata basis and/or the Association, 
including, but not limited to, assessing a lien against the individual property owners on a 
pro-rata share.  The foregoing notwithstanding, as the Commercial Phase and 
Residential Phase are independent from each other with respect to required 
infrastructure and improvements, the City shall assess liens against the Commercial 
Phase solely if the Developer (its successors or assigns) fails to maintain the 
improvements located within the Commercial Phase as herein required and the City 
shall assess liens against the Residential Phase solely if the Developer (its successors 
or assigns, including the Association) fails to maintain the improvements located within 
the Residential Phase as herein required.  Provided, however, if the Developer 
determines that the Residential Phase must utilize portions of the storm water system 
located on the Commercial Phase, the Developer shall have the right, upon approval of 
such plans by the City, to allow the Residential Phase to utilize those improvements on 
the Commercial Phase and execute and deliver a Storm Water Easement and 
Maintenance Agreement between the Residential Phase and Commercial Phase which 
shall obligate the parties to undertake the repair, maintenance and replacement 
obligations of the Developer pursuant to this Agreement and upon transfer of those 
repair, maintenance and replacement obligations to the owners of the Commercial 
Phase and the Association (with responsibility for the common areas of the Residential 
Phase) or the owners of the Residential Phase, the Developer shall be released of all 
direct responsibility therefore.   

 

ARTICLE VI 
 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to prevent Developer from 
including in any  Master Deed terms and conditions which do not bind the City or are 
more restrictive requirements and standards with respect to the Project as long as those 
terms and conditions are not in conflict with this Agreement or the PUD Documents, and 
as long as such terms and conditions are in compliance with State and Federal law. 

6.2 This Agreement may not be modified, replaced, amended or 
terminated without the prior written consent of the parties to this Agreement.  Developer 
shall have the right to delegate its rights and obligations under this Agreement to a 
successor Association as set out in this Agreement.  Until the rights and responsibilities 
under this Agreement are transferred to an Association or to a third party under the 
REMA, Developer and the City shall be entitled to modify, replace, amend or terminate 
this Agreement, without requiring the consent of any other person or entity whatsoever, 
regardless of whether such person has any interest in the Property, including unit 
owners, mortgages of co-owners, and others. 

6.3 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 



 

16 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

with the laws of the State of Michigan. 

6.4 If there is a conflict between the terms of any of the PUD Documents, 
such documents shall control in the following order:  (a) the Concept 
Development/Preliminary Development Plan; (b) this Agreement; and (c) Chapter 39, of 
the City’s Zoning Ordinance, and amendments, if any.  Where there is a question with 
regard to applicable regulations for a particular aspect of the Project, or with regard to 
clarification, interpretation, or definition of terms or regulations, and there are no 
apparent express provisions of the PUD Documents which apply, the City in the 
reasonable exercise of its discretion, shall determine the regulations of the City’s 
Ordinances that are applicable, provided such determination is not inconsistent with the 
nature and intent of the PUD Documents. 

6.5 The terms of the PUD Documents, including this Agreement, have 
been negotiated by the undersigned parties and such documentation represents the 
product of the joint efforts and agreement of the Developer and the City.  Developer and 
the City fully accept and agree to the final terms, conditions, requirements and 
obligations of the PUD Documents, and shall not be permitted in the future to claim that 
the effect of these PUD Documents results in an unreasonable limitation upon uses of 
all or a portion of the Property, or claim that enforcement of any of the PUD Documents 
causes an inverse condemnation or taking of all or a portion of the Property.  
Furthermore, it is agreed that the improvements and undertakings set forth in the PUD 
Documents are necessary and roughly proportional to the burden imposed in order to 
ensure that services and facilities affected by the Big Beaver Center Planned Unit 
Development will be capable of accommodating increased services and facility loads, 
traffic and storm water drainage caused by the development thereof, to protect the 
natural environment and conserve natural resources, to ensure compatibility with 
adjacent uses of land, to promote use of the Property in a socially and economically 
desirable manner, and to achieve other legitimate objectives authorized under the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3101, et seq. It is further agreed and 
acknowledged hereby that all of such improvements are substantially related to the 
burdens to be created by the Project contemplated hereby, and all such improvements 
and the requirements and regulations of the Property under the PUD Documents and 
Zoning Ordinance, without exception, are clearly and substantially related to the City’s 
legitimate interests in protecting the public health, safety and general welfare. 

6.6 This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one agreement.  The 
signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deemed to be a signature to, and may 
be appended to, any other counterpart. 

6.7 This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of 
the parties and their respective successors and assigns. 

 



 

17 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

THIS AGREEMENT was executed by the respective parties on the date specified 
with the notarization with their name, and shall take effect on the date of adoption by the 
Troy City Council of the Zoning Ordinance amendment granting rezoning of the 
Property to Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development. 

[Signatures Follow] 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Development Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first above written. 

“Developer” 

Big Beaver Center, LLC, 
a Michigan limited liability company 

By:   
Name:  Jordan Jonna 

Dated:      Its:  Co-Manager 

By:   
Name:  Scott Jonna 

Dated:      Its:  Co-Manager 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 
____________, 2012, by Jordan Jonna, the Co-Manager of Big Beaver Center, LLC, a 
Michigan limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

              
Print Name:  
Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:  
Acting in the County of Oakland 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 



 

18 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 
____________, 2012, by Scott Jonna, the Co-Manager of Big Beaver Center, LLC, a 
Michigan limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

              
Print Name:  
Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:  
Acting in the County of Oakland 

“City” 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal  
Corporation 
 
 
By:   

Name:  Janice Daniels 
Dated:  Its: Mayor 

By:   
Name: Aileen Bittner 

Dated:  Its: City Clerk 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 
____________, 2012, by Janice Daniels, Mayor and Aileen Bittner, City Clerk of the 
City of Troy, a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the Corporation. 

              
Print Name:  
Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:  
Acting in the County of Oakland 



 

19 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

DRAFTED BY:    WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

Joseph M. Fazio    Aileen Bittner  
Miller Canfield Paddock and Stone PLC City Clerk 
101 N. Main Street, 7th Floor  City of Troy 
Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104  500 W. Big Beaver Road 

Troy, Michigan  48084 
 



Exhibit A to Big Beaver Center PUD
Legal Description of the Property

Land situated in the County of Oakland, City of Troy, State of Michigan, is described as follows:

PARCEL 1:

Lot 90, EXCEPT the South 42 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat 
thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland county Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-055

PARCEL 2:

Lot 91, also the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the South 182 feet of Lot 92 and Lot 93, 
EXCEPT the North 91 feet of the West 120 feet of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

PARCEL 2 ALSO DESCRIBED FOR TAX PURPOSES AS FOLLOWS:

Part of Lots 91, 92 and 93, all described as Beginning at Southwest corner of Lot 93; thence 
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 29 feet; thence East 120 feet;
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 91 feet; thence East 180 feet; 
South 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds West 120 feet; thence West 60 feet; 
South 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds West 208 feet; thence West 146 feet; 
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 140 feet; thence East 26 feet; 
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 68 feet; thence West 120 feet to the Point of 
Beginning, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 
of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-053

PARCEL 3

Lot 92, EXCEPT the South 42 feet also EXCEPT the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the 
South 182 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records. 

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-054

PARCEL 4

The North 91 feet of the West 120 feet of Lot 93, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-052



PARCEL 5

Lot 94, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-018

PARCEL 6

Lot 95, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-017

PARCEL 7

Lot 96, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-016

PARCEL 8

Lot 122, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-030

PARCEL 9

Lot 123, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-031

PARCEL 10

Lot 124, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-032

20,474,085.1\111274-00001



Exhibit B to Big Beaver Center PUD
Legal Description of the Additional Property

Land situated in the County of Oakland, City of Troy, State of Michigan, is described as follows:

PARCEL 7

Lot 96, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-016

PARCEL 8

Lot 122, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-030

20,474,177.1\111274-00001



Exhibit C to Big Beaver Center PUD
Legal Description of the Commercial Portion

Land situated in the County of Oakland, City of Troy, State of Michigan, is described as follows:

PARCEL 1:

Lot 90, EXCEPT the South 42 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat 
thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland county Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-055

PARCEL 2:

Lot 91, also the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the South 182 feet of Lot 92 and Lot 93, 
EXCEPT the North 91 feet of the West 120 feet of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

PARCEL 2 ALSO DESCRIBED FOR TAX PURPOSES AS FOLLOWS:

Part of Lots 91, 92 and 93, all described as Beginning at Southwest corner of Lot 93; thence 
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 29 feet; thence East 120 feet;
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 91 feet; thence East 180 feet; 
South 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds West 120 feet; thence West 60 feet; 
South 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds West 208 feet; thence West 146 feet; 
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 140 feet; thence East 26 feet; 
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 68 feet; thence West 120 feet to the Point of 
Beginning, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 
of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-053

PARCEL 3

Lot 92, EXCEPT the South 42 feet also EXCEPT the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the 
South 182 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records. 

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-054

PARCEL 4

The North 91 feet of the West 120 feet of Lot 93, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-052



Exhibit D to Big Beaver Center PUD
Legal Description of the Residential Portion

Land situated in the County of Oakland, City of Troy, State of Michigan, is described as follows:

PARCEL 5

Lot 94, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-018

PARCEL 6

Lot 95, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-017

PARCEL 7

Lot 96, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-016

PARCEL 8

Lot 122, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-030

PARCEL 9

Lot 123, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-031

PARCEL 10

Lot 124, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-032
20,474,190.1\111274-00001



Exhibit E to Big Beaver Center PUD
Land Development Plan

See the following described drawing on file with the City of Troy:

A0.1.2. Composite Site Plan (prepared by Serra-Marko & Associates and dated 8-6-2012)

20,474,230.1\111274-00001



 

21 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

EXHIBIT F 

COMMERCIAL PHASE UNDERTAKING 

 
 
 1. Mass the commercial buildings on the frontage facing Big Beaver Road in 
furtherance of the City’s Master Plan for Big Beaver corridor. 
 
 2.  Install enhanced ornamental sidewalks and hardscaping in excess of City 
requirement. 
 
 3. Install, maintain, repair and replace enhanced landscaping in excess of 
City requirement. 
 
 4. Install, maintain, repair and replace ornamental lighting in excess of Code 
requirements. 
 
 



 

22 
20,417,081.45\111274-00001  

EXHIBIT  G 
    

RESIDENTIAL PHASE UNDERTAKINGS 

 
 1. Construct pursuant to City Code requirements and thereafter dedicate to 
the City the road connecting Alpine Road and McClure Road; 
 
 2. Install sidewalks on both sides of the to be constructed road not otherwise 
required by City Code. 
 
 3. Install an ornamental island within the roadway which will be dedicated to 
the City. 
 
 4. Install additional landscaping along the road as well as along Alpine Road 
and McClure Road in excess of that required by City Code. 
 
 5. Establish side set back requirements in excess of that required by City 
Code. 
 
 6. Establish rear set back requirements in excess of that required by City 
Code. 
  

 















































Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Land situated in the County of Oakland, City of Troy, State of Michigan, is described  

as follows: 

PARCEL 1: 
Lot 90, EXCEPT the South 42 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat 
thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.  

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-055  

PARCEL 2: 
Lot 91, also the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the South 182 feet of Lot 92 and Lot 
93, EXCEPT the North 91 feet of the West 120 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, 
according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, 
PARCEL 2 ALSO DESCRIBED FOR TAX PURPOSES AS FOLLOWS: 

Part of Lots 91, 92 and 93, all described as Beginning at Southwest corner of Lot 93; 
thence North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 29 feet; thence East 120 feet; thence 
North 00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 91 feet; thence East 180 feet; thence South 
00 degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds West 120 feet; thence West 60 feet; thence South 00 
degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds West 208 feet; thence West 146 feet; thence North 00 
degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 140 feet; thence East 26 feet; thence North 00 
degrees 31 minutes 12 seconds East 68 feet; thence West 120 feet to the Point of 
Beginning, of MUER GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, 

Oakland County Records.  

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-053  

PARCEL 3: 
Lot 92, EXCEPT the South 42 feet also EXCEPT the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet 
of the South 182 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as 
recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.  

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-054  

PARCEL 4: 
The North 91 feet of the West 120 feet of Lot 93, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, 
according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County 
Records.  
Tax Item No. 20-20-402-052  

PARCEL 5: 
Lot 94, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 
15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.  
Tax Item No. 20-20-402-018  

PARCEL 6: 
Lot 95, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 
15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.  
Tax Item No. 20-20-402-017  

PARCEL 7: 
Lot 96, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 
15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.  

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-016  

PARCEL 8: 
Lot 122, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.  

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-030  

PARCEL 9: 
Lot 123, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.  

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-031  

PARCEL 10:  
Lot 124, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records.  

Tax Item No. 20-20-402-032  

 















































bittnera
Text Box
I-04

















CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 1 - 

Pastor Bob Cholette from Troy Assembly of God performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, September 10, 2012, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Daniels called the meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a)  Mayor Janice Daniels 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Resolution #2012-09-176 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Fleming at the Regular City Council Meeting of September 10, 2012, due to being out of the 
county. 
 
Yes: Daniels, Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater, Tietz  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Michigan Association of Fire Chiefs (MAFC) Fire Chief of the Year Award 

Presented to Chief Nelson 

 

C-2 Welcome Home Proclamation – Corporal Mark J. Daniels 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Planned Unit Development (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (Formerly 

“The Monarch”) PUD, North Side of Big Beaver Road Between Alpine and 

McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) 

Districts  
 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing. 
The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after receiving public comment from: 
 
Stine, Jeanne Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 
Krent, Tom Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 
Dawson, Barbara Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 
Jordan, Shirley Spoke in opposition of the proposed PUD. 
Oleszkowicz, Mike Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 
O'Kulch, Chad Spoke about traffic safety concerns with the proposed PUD. 

 
Moved by Daniels  
Seconded by Tietz  
 
WHEREAS, AF Jonna Development has requested Concept Development Plan approval and 
Preliminary Development Plan approval concurrently, pursuant to Article 11 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance, for Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development (PUD 4), located on the 
north side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, in Section 20, currently zoned PUD 
004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts, being approximately 7.5 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development includes a 24,000 
square foot retail building and a 3,500 square foot bank branch along Big Beaver Road, with 16 
single family residential units to the north; and 
 

WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The commercial component along Big Beaver achieves many of the goals of the 
Big Beaver Corridor Study; and 
 
WHEREAS, The pedestrian amenities proposed by the applicant along Big Beaver provide a 
significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that can be an 
example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor; and 
 

WHEREAS, The residential component serves as a suitable transition between the commercial 
component and the existing residential neighborhood to the north; and 
 
WHEREAS, The application is compatible with adjacent properties and uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Section 11.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposed PUD on 
August 14, 2012; and 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 3 - 

 

WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development includes parcels 1 through 10 as 
described in the following legal descriptions and illustrated on the attached Topographic Survey 
drawing: 
 
Land situated in the County of Oakland, City of Troy, State of Michigan, is described as follows: 
 
PARCEL 1: 
Lot 90, EXCEPT the South 42 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof 
as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-
055).  
 
PARCEL 2: 
Lot 91, also the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the South 182 feet of Lot 92 and Lot 93, 
EXCEPT the North 91 feet of the West 120 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 
20-20-402-053).  
 
PARCEL 3: 
Lot 92, EXCEPT the South 42 feet also EXCEPT the East 26 feet of the North 140 feet of the 
South 182 feet, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 
Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-054). 
  
PARCEL 4: 
The North 91 feet of the West 120 feet of Lot 93, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to 
the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 
20-20-402-052).  
 
PARCEL 5: 
Lot 94, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-018).  
 
PARCEL 6: 
Lot 95, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-017).  
 
PARCEL 7: 
Lot 96, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-016).  
 
PARCEL 8: 
Lot 122, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-030).  
 
PARCEL 9: 
Lot 123, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-031).  
 
PARCEL 10:  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 4 - 

Lot 124, of MUER’S GARDEN FARMS, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 15 of 
Plats, page 45, Oakland County Records (Tax ID No. 20-20-402-032).  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, City Council hereby DECLARES the former Monarch 
Planned Unit Development, including all approved agreements, site plans and drawings, to be 
abandoned and rescinded; the subject property retains the PUD-004 zoning designation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES rezoning of the northern two 
parcels (Parcel 7, 3128 Alpine and Parcel 8, 3141 McClure) from R-1B One Family Residential 
District to PUD-004 and APPROVES the inclusion of the two parcels into PUD-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Planning 
Director and City Clerk to take whatever actions are necessary pursuant to the City Ordinance 
to effect the rezoning of the Parcel 7 and Parcel 8 to PUD -004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to delineate Parcel 7 and Parcel 8 as PUD-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 
Planned Unit Development Agreement and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED 

TO EXECUTE the Planned Unit Development Agreement for Big Beaver Center Planned Unit 
Development on behalf of the City; a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept Development 
Plan (CDP) and Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for Big Beaver Center PUD; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the RECORDING 
of the executed Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development Agreement with the Oakland 
County Register of Deeds; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept 
Development Plan for Big Beaver Center Planned Unit Development and the petitioner is 
hereby permitted to seek Final Site Plan Approval. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Item E-1 Planned Unit Development (File Number PUD 

004) – Big Beaver Center (Formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North Side of Big Beaver Road 

Between Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One 

Family Residential) Districts 
 
Resolution #2012-09-177 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Campbell  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby POSTPONES Item E-1 Planned Unit Development (File 
Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (Formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North Side of Big 
Beaver Road Between Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B 
(One Family Residential) Districts to the September 24, 2012 Regular City Council Meeting to 
allow for a traffic study of the area of Alpine and Big Beaver Rd. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 5 - 

 
Yes: Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater, Tietz, Daniels  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 

Savage, James Spoke on I-4 to congratulate City Council on their appointment of Mr. 
Kischnick as City Manager and to commend Mr. Culpepper for serving as 
Acting City Manager. 

 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – None 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments - None 
 
b) City Council Appointments - None 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown 

Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Animal Control Appeal 

Board; Parks and Recreation Board 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
The Mayor took NO ACTION on this Item. 
 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Resolution #2012-09-178 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 6 - 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Nominations to the Animal Control Appeal Board: 

 
Term Expires:  9/30/2015 Al Petrulis 

 Term currently held by: Al Petrulis 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2015 Gretchen Waters 

 Term currently held by: Vincent Viola 
 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School Board Member: 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 
Nominations to the Parks and Recreation Board: 

 
Term Expires:  9/30/2015 Orestis Kaltsounis 

 Term currently held by: Orestis Kaltsounis 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2015 Laurie Huber 

 Term currently held by: Stuart Redpath 
 

Yes: Henderson, McGinnis, Slater, Tietz, Daniels, Campbell  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4  City Manager Contract 
 
Resolution #2012-09-179 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That the attached Employment Agreement between the City of Troy and Brian M. 
Kischnick is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City.  A copy of the Employment Agreement will be 
ATTACHED to the Minutes of this meeting.   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the official start date for Brian M. Kischnick is SET FOR 
November 19, 2012 at 8:00 am, and that in the interim, Michael W. Culpepper is 
DESIGNATED as Acting City Manager.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in recognition of Michael W. Culpepper’s continued service 
as Acting City Manager, he shall be COMPENSATED $1000, and shall be PROVIDED with ten 
vacation days.   
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Tietz, Daniels, Campbell, Henderson  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: Slater, Tietz, Daniels, Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted:  
a) Regular City Council Meeting - August 27, 2012 
b) Special City Council Meeting -  August 29 -30, 2012 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  

a) Welcome Home Proclamation – Corporal Mark J. Daniels 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 8 - 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Ice Melt 

Compounds 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On October 3, 2011, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract to provide ice 
melt compounds with an option to renew for one (1) additional year for the City of Troy and 
participating MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network) Purchasing Cooperative 
Members  to the lowest acceptable bidder, Washington Elevator Co, Inc of Washington Twp, 
MI (Resolution #2011-10-229-J-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Washington Elevator Co, Inc has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
for one (1) additional year under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for ice melt compounds with Washington Elevator Co., Inc. of Washington 
Twp, MI, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids, under the same terms and 
conditions at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 21, 2011, with a 
contract expiration of October 31, 2013. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 

Funds MMRMA Risk Avoidance Program Grant (RAP) 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Water/Sewer Division to 
receive a Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) Risk Avoidance Program 
(RAP) Grant and EXPEND funds for the purchase of an Envirosight Quickview Camera from 
the sole source provider in Michigan, Bell Equipment Company of Lake Orion, for an estimated 
total cost of $16,000; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Water/Sewer 
Division budget to receive the grant funding of $7,000 for the purchase of the Envirosight 
Quickview Camera. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan – MiDEAL Program – Fleet 

Vehicles 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) 2012 
Dodge Charger from Bill Snethkamp - Dodge of Lansing, MI, through the State of Michigan 
MiDEAL Program for an estimated total cost of $22,598.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Asphalt Patching 

Material - Cold 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-4d 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 9 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a seasonal contract for asphalt patching 
material – CP1 Dura Patch using a SCM liquid to the low bidder, Cadillac Asphalt LLC of Wixom, 
MI, for an estimated total cost of $38,000.00, at the unit price contained in the bid tabulation 
electronically submitted August 23, 2012, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, with the contract to commence October 15, 2012, and expire April 30, 
2013.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Towing Services 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-4e 
 
WHEREAS, On September 14, 2009, Troy City Council awarded a three-year contract with an 
option to renew for three (3) additional years to provide towing and storage services to A&M 
Service Center, Inc of Troy, MI (Resolution #2009-09-272); and  
 
WHEREAS, A&M Service Center, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew for three (3) 
additional years under the same prices, terms, and conditions;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the 
option to renew towing and storage services for three additional years with A&M Service 
Center, Inc of Troy, MI, under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring 
September 30, 2015. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE 
the Renewal Agreement once in acceptable form. 
 
J-5  Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Beth Babbie – 

Troy Sting  
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Sting Travel 
Hockey Team, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
J-6  Request for Acceptance of a Quit Claim Deed and Four Permanent Easements – 

Athens Parc Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby ACCEPTS a quit claim deed for a portion of Rockdale 
Court, a public road, and four permanent easements for landscape preservation, sanitary 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 10 - 

sewer, storm sewer and public utilities from Athens Parc Developers, LLC equity interest 
holders in the property having Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to RECORD the quit claim 
deed and permanent easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7  Fireworks Permit – Macy’s at Oakland Mall 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-7 
  
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Macy’s, located at 500 
W. Fourteen Mile Rd., for the use of fireworks at its annual holiday shopping kick-off on Friday 
November 2, 2012.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Troy Fire 
Department to inspect the fireworks to be used along with the site to assure compliance with 
applicable codes and standards for such a fireworks display, and take the necessary precautions 
to ensure safety. 
 
J-8  Todd Michael v. City of Troy et. al 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Todd Michael v City of Troy et. 
al, and to retain any necessary expert witnesses or pay any necessary costs to adequately 
represent the City.  
 
J-9  Rodney Knutson v. City of Troy et. al 
 
Resolution #2012-09-180-J-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Rodney Knutson v City of Troy 
et. al, (52-4 District Court, Case No. 12-C02387 GC) and to retain any necessary expert 
witnesses or pay any necessary costs to adequately represent the City. 
 
K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Announcement of Public Hearings for Industrial Development District (IDD) and 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative Automotive Technologies 
– 1225 E. Maple on September 24, 2012 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 11 - 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

Peters, Richard Spoke on Item I-4, E-1, and other various topics. 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

N-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Mayor Pro Tem McGinnis announced that the Rotary Club will host an event to honor our 
veterans during Patriot Week.  Lt. Col. Gary Smith will share his experiences as a flight 
navigator during the Gulf Wars. The event will be held at the Bank of America building, 2600 
W. Big Beaver Rd., on Wednesday, September 12, 2012 from 12:00 PM - 1:30 PM.  The cost 
is $13.00 and includes lunch and the program. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem McGinnis announced that the Rotary Club will host their VIVA LA VINO wine 
tasting fundraiser on Friday, September 21, 2012 from 7:00 PM – 10:30 PM at the San Marino 
Club.  Tickets can be purchased online at www.showclix.com/event/VivaLaVino.  All proceeds 
will go towards civic service projects and student scholarship programs. 
 
Council Member Tietz announced Troy Family Daze starts on Thursday, September 13, 2012 
through Sunday, September 16, 2012.  For more information, please go to 
www.troyfamilydaze.org. 
 
Council Member Slater spoke with City Management about a resident complaint regarding the 
construction on Livernois.   
 
Mayor Daniels announced that the Oakland County Homeland Security Division advised the 
City of Troy that beginning today through the end of September, maintenance work will be 
performed on the outside warning sirens located within Oakland County.  Once the work is 
completed, they will test the sirens for 30 seconds.  Please call (248) 858-1593 for more 
information. 
 
Mayor Daniels announced receipt of letters from the Honorable Mayor Brian Barnett of 
Rochester Hills and the Honorable Mayor James McDonald of Auburn Hills complimenting the 
CNNMoney Magazine article naming City of Troy as the 26th of the top 100 Best Places to Live 
in America. 
 
The Mayor will give the State of the City Address on Thursday, September 20, 2012 at 7:00 PM 
at the Troy Community Center. 
 

http://www.showclix.com/event/VivaLaVino�
http://www.troyfamilydaze.org/�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 12 - 

O. REPORTS: 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Planning Commission-Draft-August 14, 2012 
b) Planning Commission-Final-August 14, 2012 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Appreciation from Donna Mitchell Thanking Gary Bowers for Assistance 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Terry Colussi from Matthew Panicker Thanking Her for 
Assistance  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Paul Evans Regarding Assistance with a Permit  
d) Letter of Appreciation to Mike Culpepper from Ricardo Nunez Thanking Cindy Stewart 

for Assistance  
e) Letter of Appreciation from Mike McCurdie, President of SAFEbuilt 

Noted and Filed 
 
O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 

Noted and Filed 
 

 
O-5  Notice of Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company Case No. U-

17053 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-6  Recycling of White Goods – City Council Meeting August 27, 2012 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-7  Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case 

No. U-16485-R 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-8  Procedure in Event of Successful Recall 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-9  Right-of-Way Boulders and Other Improvements 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-10  “Limited” Right Turn from Big Beaver to Daley and Rochester to Hartland 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-11  Notice of Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company Case No. U-

17049 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft September 10, 2012 

 

- 13 - 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 

P-1  No Study Items 
 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1  No Closed Session 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:21 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Janice Daniels 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
September 14, 2012  
 
To:   Michael W. Culpepper, Acting City Manager     
  
From:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise Renewal Option - Snow Removal Rental 

Equipment Including Operators   
 
 
Background 
On November 21, 2011, Troy City Council approved contracts to provide seasonal requirements for snow 
removal services to Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc for municipal property and snow removal 
rental equipment including operators for local roads to Florence Cement Company and DiPonio Contracting. 
Both proposals provided an option to renew for one additional year. (Resolution #2011-11-267-J-4a). 
 
All three (3) vendors have agreed to renew their contracts under the same pricing, terms and conditions as last 
season.   
 
In accordance with the City’s snow plowing policy, subdivisions and local roads are plowed only when snow 
accumulation is four-inches or more in a single snowfall.  These contractors listed for snow removal rental 
equipment, will be utilized to assist in the City’s snow plowing efforts on an as needed basis.  Additionally, due 
to the variability of weather and fluctuating equipment availability, many companies do not bid on snow 
removal services.  Therefore, the City hires additional contractors based upon the emergency power of the City 
Manager.   
      
The Purchasing department reviewed Troy’s November 2011 bid results for similar services with Oakland 
County for 2012, and found pricing to be comparable.  In addition, Troy has multiple contractors with more 
available equipment and therefore better coverage.  Based on these results, the Purchasing department 
anticipates no additional value would be obtained if these services were rebid at this time.   
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends renewing the contracts for one (1) additional season to provide snow removal 
services to municipal property and local roads with snow removal rental equipment including operators to the 
following bidders:  Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc of Clawson MI for municipal property, Florence 
Cement Company and DiPonio Contracting of Shelby Township for local roads, at original contract prices as 
listed in the bid tabulation opened November 1, 2011.   
 
Fund Availability  
Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Parks and Streets Division for snow and ice control for 
municipal property, local, major and county roads.   
 
 
G:/Bid Award 12-13 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 Snow RemovalITB-COT11-22.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



Bidder #1 Bidder #2 Bidder #3 Bidder #4

Progressive 
Irrigation, Inc.

Brantley 
Development, LLC

Troy Clogg 
Landscape 

Associates, LLC
United Resource, LLC

Price ea. Price ea. Price ea. Price ea.

1 Loader per hour $125.00 $125.00 $165.00 $110.00

2 Tractor per hour $125.00 $125.00 $90.00 $75.00

3 Hand Shoveling per labor per hour $31.00 $30.00 $40.00 $22.00

4 Ice Management other than rock salt Upon Request, Liquid 
Calcium N/A Salt for lots/ Pink Deicer for 

sidewalks 
Calcium Chloride/ Magnesium 

Chloride

5 1.5"-6" per Plow $75.00 $80.00 $250.00 $233.00

6 6"-10" per Plow $105.00 $55.00 $325.00 $307.00

7 Bulk Salt per Ton $109.00 $105.00 $130.00 $110.00

8 Bag Salt per Bag $23.75 $23.00 $30.00 $22.00

9 Magnesium Chloride per Bag $16.75 $16.00 $33.00 $32.00

10 1.5"-6" per Plow $110.00 $110.00 $450.00 $408.00 

11 6"-10" per Plow $150.00 $90.00 $585.00 $586.00 

12 Bulk Salt per Ton $109.00 $105.00 $130.00 $110.00 

13 Bag Salt per Bag $23.75 $23.00 $30.00 $22.00 

14 Magnesium Chloride per Bag $16.75 $16.00 $33.00 $32.00 

15 Payment Discounts 3% 15 Net 2% 10 Days/30 Net N/A 3% 14 Days/ 30 Net

16 Number of Years in business 15 15 14 4

17 Number of Full time employees 28 4 25 9

18 Number of Part-time employees 23 8 0 6

19
Number of Field employees 
committed to contract

3 4 3 4

20
Number of trucks with plows 
committed to contract

3 2 2 2

21
Does Company have a maintenance 
program?

Yes Yes Yes Yes

22
Total Number of snow plowing 
contracts

8 4 100 + 4

23 Equipment List Provided Yes Yes Yes Yes

24 Contact Provided Yes Yes Yes Yes

25 References Provided Yes Yes Yes Yes

County of Oakland
Purchasing Division

Awarded to Progressive Irrigation - Please see evaluation below

Bid Tabulation
Solicitation Event 002322

West Oakland Snow Removal 2012

Company Qualifications:

52-1 District Court:

ITEM NO.  DESCRIPTION ↓   COMPANY →   

West Oakland Office Building:

All Sites:

8/7/2012 



Category

Evaluation 

Percentage Score

Weighted 

Score Score

Weighted 

Score Score

Weighted 

Score Score

Weighted 

Score

Qualifications & Experience 25.00% 5 1.25 5 1.25 5 1.25 5 1.25

Equipment & Maintenance 25.00% 5 1.25 4 1 5 1.25 4 1

Pricing 50.00% 4.5 2.25 4.75 2.375 3 1.5 3 1.5

Evaluation Percentage is based on previous expenditures on similar contracts

Oakland County Purchasing Division

Scored on a Scale of 1-5, with 1 being the lowest score (least favorable) and 5 the highest (most favorable).

Progressive Irrigation Brantley Development Troy CloggCompany →

4.75 4.625 4Total Weighted Score:

United Resource

3.75

West Oakland Snow Removal 2012

Solicitation Event ID: 002322

Solicitation Evaluation









CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - FINAL November 21, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal 
Services – Municipal Parking Lots and Local Roads 

 
Resolution #2011-11-267-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contract(s) for seasonal requirements of 
snow removal services under Proposals A and E with an option to renew for one (1) additional 
season to the following low bidders:  Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc of Clawson 
MI for Proposal A – Municipal Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks, and to DiPonio 
Contracting Inc and Florence Cement Company, of Shelby Township MI, for Proposal E - Local 
Roads Emergency Basis, all at hourly rates as contained in the bid tabulation opened 
November 1, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to 
extend the hourly contract prices to other contractors after the successful bidders have been 
employed, to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That awards are CONTINGENT UPON contractors’ submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal 

Services – Home Chore Program and Public Sidewalks 
 
Resolution #2011-11-267-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal services for the City’s municipal sidewalks (Proposal A), code 
enforcement tasks (Proposal B), and the Home Chore Program (Proposal C) with an option to 
renew for one (1) additional season to the low total bidder, MVP Environmental, LLC of Troy as 
the primary contractor for all three (3) proposals; and Brantley Development LLC of Westland, 
as secondary contractor for code enforcement and the home chore program, to be used in the 
event the primary contractor is unable to provide the services as needed, all at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened November 11, 2011, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
J-5 Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 Funds 
 
Resolution #2011-11-267-J-5 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th); 
and  
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
November 15, 2011                
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
   
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal Services – 

Municipal Parking Lots and Local Roads  
 
 
Background 
On November 1, 2011, bid proposals were received for ITB-COT 11-22, seasonal requirements of snow 
removal services with an option to renew for one (1) additional season.  Services were separated into five (5) 
proposal categories, A – municipal parking lots, B – public sidewalks, C – code enforcement tasks, D – the 
home chore program, and E – local roads, each to be evaluated and awarded by proposal.  231 vendors were 
notified of the solicitation by the City’s e-procurement website – www.mitn.info – Three (3) bid responses were 
received.  Because the City did not receive bids for proposals B, C and D, contracts for those services were re-
solicited under ITB-COT 11-24 and awarded separately. 
 
City staff is responsible for completing snow and ice control removal services to municipal owned properties 
and local roads.  However, due to staff reductions, departmental reorganization and City Council support of the 
24-hr snow and ice protocol, contracted services are needed to supplement City forces during snow events.   
 
Under Proposal E, snowplowing on local roads, contract pricing is set by the company(s) offering the lowest 
price for each piece of equipment, and all awarded vendors have agreed to meet this established contract 
pricing.  Additionally, due to the variability of weather and fluctuating equipment availability, many companies 
do not bid on snow removal services.  Therefore, the City hires additional contractors based upon the 
emergency power of the City Manager.  Pre-approval to extend contract prices to other contractors, after the 
successful bidders have been employed, could speed the snow removal process.  It is our recommendation 
that the contract be extended to other contractors, on an as needed basis, and impose the awarded hourly 
rates to these contractors at the time of a snow emergency. 
  
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding contracts for snow removal services under proposals A and E to the 
following low bidders: Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc of Clawson, MI for Proposal A: Municipal 
Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks; and DiPonio Contracting, Inc and Florence Cement Company 
of Shelby Township, MI for Proposal E: Snow Removal Services – Local Roads Emergency Basis, all at rates 
as contained in the bid tabulation opened November 1, 2011. 
 
Fund Availability  
Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Parks Division for contractual services and Streets Division 
for snow and ice control for local, major and county roads. 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - SnowRemovalSvcITB-COT11-22.doc 

http://www.mitn.info/�
BittnerA
Text Box
J-04a



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 11/1/2011 BID TABULATION
Date Reviewed -- 11/8/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

sl
VENDOR NAME:

Proposal (A):  City Owned Properties - Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks 

Item # Dedicated COST
Parking Lots 

1 5-10 Yd Capacity Truck w/Salting Capabilities Blank 90.00$           /Hr

2 Front End Loader - 5 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher Blank 120.00$        /Hr

3 Front End Loader - 3 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher Blank 120.00$        /Hr

4 Skid Steer with Snow Pusher Blank 100.00$        /Hr

5 Pickup with 8 ft Blade Blank 75.00$          /Hr

6 Truck with 10 ft Snowplow Blank 85.00$          /Hr

7 Parking Lot Salt Blank 65.00$          /Ton

Sidewalks:  

8 Utility Vehicle with 5' Snow Plow Blank 55.00$           /Hr

9 Utility Vehicle with Salt Spreader Blank 55.00$          /Hr

10 Utility Vehicle w/5' Snow Plow & Salt Spreader Blank 55.00$          /Hr

11 Utility Tractor Mounted Snow Blower Blank 55.00$          /Hr

12 Walk-Behind Snow Blower Blank 35.00$          /Hr

13 Snow Shovel and Operator Blank 35.00$          /Hr

14 Walk-Behind Salt Spreader with Operator Blank 35.00$          /Hr

15 Sidewalk Salt:  To be supplied by the City of Troy Blank Included 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSAL A: 980.00$         

Proposal (B):  City Owned Properties - Sidewalks (Various locations within the City of Troy) 
Sidewalk - Sidewalk - 

Item Deicing Deicing 
1 Less than One (1) inch or Icy Conditions No Bid 

2 Three (3) inches to Six (6) inches No Bid No Bid 

3 Greater than Six (6) inches No Bid No Bid 

Item 
1 Price for Snow / Ice Removal 

2 Price for Salting per each Service Call 

Proposal (D):  Snow Removal Services for the Home Chore Program 
Snow Removal Snow Removal 

Est # Per Service Call Per Service Call 

85 No Bid 

ITB-COT 11-22
Page 1 of 4

Salting 
Per Service Call 

Advanced Landscape &
Builders Supply Inc. 

Sidewalks - 
Plowing 

Salting 
Per Service Call 

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

Type of Equipment 

Description 

Description Cost Cost 

Sidewalks - 
Plowing 

Description 

Proposal (C):  Code Enforcement per Call Basis  

Snow Removal and/or Salting at Residential City of 
Troy Homes 



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 11/1/2011 BID TABULATION
Date Reviewed -- 11/8/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

# of Available # of Available
Pieces of Eq Pieces of Eq

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

Proposal A: Y/N
Date

Proposal B:  Y/N
Date

Can Meet 
Cannot Meet 

PAYMENT TERMS:  

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y/N 

EXCEPTIONS:  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:       Signed     Y/N

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y/N 

` Legal Status Y/N
Non-Collusion Y/N
Indemnification Y/N
Sole Proprietor Y/N

ATTEST:
Kurt Bovensiep 

Susan Riesterer 

Julie Hamilton 

Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB

Purchasing Director 
G:\Purchasing\Bid Tabs 11 - 12\ITB-COT 11-22 Snow Removal.xls

ITB-COT 11-22
Page 2 of 4

Net 30 

N

None 

Y

N/A 
Y
Y
Y

Y

Y
10/20/2011

N/A 

XX

Hourly Rate
Per Piece 

Hourly Rate
Per Piece

Advanced Landscape & 
Builders Supply Inc. 

     3 Yd Capacity 

Proposal (E):  Snow Removal Services - Local Roads Emergency Basis 

Type of Equipment 

INSURANCE: 

FORMS:  

SITE VISITS:

Road Grader with Minimum Size of 6 Wheels 

Truck with 10 ft Snowplow 

     Other Size 

     Other Size 

     Other Size 

     20,000 GVW Grader 

Front End Loader:  Minimum Size 3 Yards 

     5 Yd Capacity 

Pick up with 8 ft Blade 



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 11/1/2011 BID TABULATION
Date Reviewed -- 11/8/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

sl
VENDOR NAME:

Proposal (A):  City Owned Properties - Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks 

Item # Dedicated COST # Dedicated COST 
Parking Lots 

1 5-10 Yd Capacity Truck w/Salting Capabilities No Bid No Bid

2 Front End Loader - 5 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher No Bid No Bid

3 Front End Loader - 3 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher No Bid No Bid

4 Skid Steer with Snow Pusher No Bid No Bid

5 Pickup with 8 ft Blade No Bid No Bid

6 Truck with 10 ft Snowplow No Bid No Bid

7 Parking Lot Salt No Bid No Bid

Sidewalks:  

8 Utility Vehicle with 5' Snow Plow No Bid No Bid

9 Utility Vehicle with Salt Spreader No Bid No Bid

10 Utility Vehicle w/5' Snow Plow & Salt Spreader No Bid No Bid

11 Utility Tractor Mounted Snow Blower No Bid No Bid

12 Walk-Behind Snow Blower No Bid No Bid

13 Snow Shovel and Operator No Bid No Bid

14 Walk-Behind Salt Spreader with Operator No Bid No Bid

15 Sidewalk Salt:  To be supplied by the City of Troy Included Included 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSAL A: No Bid No Bid 

Proposal (B):  City Owned Properties - Sidewalks (Various locations within the City of Troy) 
Sidewalk - Sidewalk - 

Item Deicing Deicing 
1 Less than One (1) inch or Icy Conditions No Bid No Bid 

2 Three (3) inches to Six (6) inches No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 

3 Greater than Six (6) inches No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 

Item 
1 Price for Snow / Ice Removal 

2 Price for Salting per each Service Call 

Proposal (D):  Snow Removal Services for the Home Chore Program 
Snow Removal Snow Removal 

Est # Per Service Call Per Service Call 

85 No Bid No Bid 

Florence Cement Company DiPonio Contracting, Inc. 

Type of Equipment 

Sidewalks - Sidewalks - 
Plowing 

Proposal (C):  Code Enforcement per Call Basis  

Description Cost Cost 

Description Plowing 

No Bid No Bid 

No Bid No Bid 

No Bid No Bid 

Salting Salting 
Description Per Service Call Per Service Call 

Snow Removal and/or Salting at Residential City of 
Troy Homes 

ITB-COT 11-22
Page 3 of 4



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 11/1/2011 BID TABULATION
Date Reviewed -- 11/8/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

# of Available # of Available
Pieces of Eq Pieces of Eq

original bid=>

7 2

2

2

3

1

Proposal A: Y/N
Date

Proposal B:  Y/N
Date

Can Meet 
Cannot Meet 

PAYMENT TERMS:  

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y/N 

EXCEPTIONS:  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y/N 

` Legal Status Y/N
Non-Collusion Y/N
Indemnification Y/N
Sole Proprietor Y/N

PROPOSAL -- Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Services for the City of Troy with an Option to Renew
for One (1) Additional Season

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES RECOMMENDED BIDDERS

G:\Purchasing\Bid Tabs 11 - 12\ITB-COT 11-22 Snow Removal.xls

Proposal (E):  Snow Removal Services - Local Roads Emergency Basis 
Hourly Rate Hourly Rate

Type of Equipment Per Piece Per Piece
Front End Loader:  Minimum Size 3 Yards 

     5 Yd Capacity 

($185.00)

     3 Yd Capacity 

     Other Size 

     Other Size 

Pick up with 8 ft Blade 

Road Grader with Minimum Size of 6 Wheels 

     20,000 GVW Grader 

     Other Size 

Truck with 10 ft Snowplow 

SITE VISITS: N/A 

N/A 

INSURANCE: XX

30 Days

N

Y

Y

FORMS:  Y
Y
Y

N/A 

ITB-COT 11-22
Page 4 of 4

140.00$                    

No Bid

No Bid 

No Bid 

185.00$                    

No Bid

DiPonio Contracting, Inc. 

agreed to match low bidder
140.00$              

130.00$              

No Bid 

Florence Cement Company 

Y
N/A

Identified Proposal E as service
provided by Florence Cement only

No Bid 

No Bid

No Bid

N/A

No Bid 85.00$                      

Y

Y

Y
Y

100.00$              

N/A

XX

Blank

N

Blank



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
September 18, 2012 
 
 
To:   Michael W. Culpepper, Acting City Manager     
  
From:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance Program  
 
 
Background 
 
On September 12, 2012, bids were received to complete a portion of the 2012/13 Parking Lot Maintenance 
Program. 232 vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN website with seven (7) bid responses 
received. City owned parking lots are evaluated annually. Determinations of the necessary repairs are based 
on the severity of the conditions. Asphalt Specialists Inc of Pontiac, MI, was the low total bidder for municipal 
parking lots, Tasks 3 and 4. The City of Troy offered Task 1 to the low bidder, Pro-line Asphalt Paving, who 
declined because the bid price provided by the company was based on receiving all four tasks, and then to  
S & J Asphalt Paving, who declined based on the same conditions. Contractors, T&M, Florence Cement, and 
Cadillac Asphalt were also not interested in a partial award and bid accordingly.  City staff has determined it to 
be in the city’s best interest to award the entire contract, Task 1, Fire Station One; and Tasks 2, 3, and 4 at the 
Community Center to the low total bidder, Asphalt Specialists Inc of Pontiac, MI for consistency of 
workmanship, lot closure scheduling, oversight efficiency and bonding requirements.  
  
ITB-COT 12-17 to complete the Parking Lot Maintenance Program was competitively bid as required by City 
Charter and Code. The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contracts 
and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends awarding a contract to complete this portion of the Parking Lot Maintenance 
Program for FY2012/13 to the low total bidder, Asphalt Specialists Inc of Pontiac, MI for Tasks 1, 2, 3 and 4, at 
an estimated total cost of $136,809.45, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation with all work not to exceed 
budgetary limitations.  
 
Fund Availability 
 
Funds are available in 2012/13 DPW Capital Account for Land Improvements, Municipal Parking Lots.  
 
.  
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04b



Opening Date -- 9/12/2012 CITY OF TROY BID TABULATION ITB-COT 12-17
Date Reviewed -- 9/17/2012 sl PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE Pg 1 of 3

VENDOR NAME: **

 

Ck #
Ck Amt

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1) FIRE STATION #1:  North & South Drive UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Open & seal new concrete joints & cracks 1,227 LFT 1.10$     1,349.70$         0.50$     613.50$            0.90$     1,104.30$          
2 Remove & re-seal existing joints & cracks 729 LFT 1.10$     801.90$            0.55$     400.95$            0.95$     692.55$             
3 Remove and re-seal joint by the curb 947 LFT 2.05$     1,941.35$         0.65$     615.55$            0.95$     899.65$             
4 Traffic Maint Control/Asphalt Restoration N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Grand Total  – Task (1) $4,092.95 $1,630.00 $2,696.50

TASK (2) COMMUNITY CENTER: South Parking Lot Phase 1 UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt joint if needed 80 LFT  $    2.00  $           160.00  $    2.50  $           200.00  $    4.00  $            320.00 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,888 LFT  $    2.00  $        3,776.00  $    1.75  $        3,304.00  $    3.00  $         5,664.00 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 680 TN  $  59.50  $      40,460.00  $  63.00  $      42,840.00  $  60.00  $       40,800.00 
4 Striping (yellow/white) 4,010 LFT  $    0.15  $           601.50  $    0.15  $           601.50  $    0.20  $            802.00 
5 Handicapped parking space & logo (blue) 4 EA  $  18.00  $             72.00  $  25.00  $           100.00  $  20.00  $             80.00 
6 Remove & replace curb and gutter 768 LFT  $  26.00  $      19,968.00  $  25.00  $      19,200.00  $  22.50  $       17,280.00 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (2) $65,037.50 $66,245.50 $64,946.00

TASK (3) COMMUNITY CENTER: South Parking Lot Phase 2 UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt joint if needed 120 LFT  $    2.00  $           240.00  $    2.50  $           300.00  $    4.00  $            480.00 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,888 LFT  $    2.00  $        3,776.00  $    1.75  $        3,304.00  $    3.00  $         5,664.00 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 680 TN  $  59.50  $      40,460.00  $  63.00  $      42,840.00  $  60.00  $       40,800.00 
4 Striping (yellow/white) 4,010 LFT  $    0.15  $           601.50  $    0.15  $           601.50  $    0.20  $            802.00 
5 Handicapped parking space & logo (blue) 4 EA  $  18.00  $             72.00  $  25.00  $           100.00  $  20.00  $             80.00 
6 Remove & replace curb and gutter 55 LFT  $  26.00  $        1,430.00  $  25.00  $        1,375.00  $  22.50  $         1,237.50 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (3) $46,579.50 $48,520.50 $49,063.50

TASK (4) COMMUNITY CENTER: Road Way Phase 3 UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 100 LFT  $    2.00  $           200.00 2.50$     250.00$             $    4.00  $            400.00 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,390 LFT  $    2.00  $        2,780.00 1.75$     2,432.50$          $    3.00  $         4,170.00 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 225 TN  $  59.50  $      13,387.50 63.00$   14,175.00$        $  65.00  $       14,625.00 
4 Remove & replace curb and gutter 182 LFT  $  26.00  $        4,732.00 25.00$   4,550.00$          $  22.50  $         4,095.00 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (4) $21,099.50 $21,407.50 $23,290.00
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - TASKS 1, 2, 3, AND 4 $136,809.45 $137,803.50 $139,996.00

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper

24 Hr Phone # 248-804-7974 248-719-1608
SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y or N Yes Yes Yes
                                Date Visited 9/7/2012 9/5/2012 9/10/2012
COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE:             Can Meet Yes Yes Yes
                            Cannot Meet
PAYMENT TERMS: 30 days Net 30 days
WARRANTY: 24 mos
EXCEPTIONS: None Blank None
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      SIGNED Y or N Yes Yes Yes
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes
TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Attached
                       Legal Status Y or N Yes Yes Yes
                       Non-Collusion Y or N Yes Yes Yes
ALL OR NONE AWARD Y or N No Yes Blank

ATTEST: (not interested)
Susan K. Riesterer ** DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Marina Basta-Farouk Susan Leirstein CPPO, CPPB
Susan Leirstein Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 12-17 Parking Lot Maintenance..xls

8 a.m. - 5 p.m. 248-684-2300 7 a.m. - 5 p.m.
734-564-2256

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

EST QTY

Included

Included

Asphalt T & M S & J
Specialists Inc Asphalt Paving Asphalt Paving Co

1 year labor and materials

000507153
$5,000.00

000520109
$5,000.00

1099304
$5,000.00

Thursday, November 15, 2012

Per contract
Per contract



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date - 9/12/2012 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 12-17
Date Reviewed -- 9/17/2012 sl PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE Pg 2 of 3

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck #
Ck Amt

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1) FIRE STATION #1:  North & South Drive UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Open & seal new concrete joints & cracks 1,227 LFT 2.00$     2,454.00$         0.75$      920.25$            0.84$     1,030.68$          
2 Remove & re-seal existing joints & cracks 729 LFT 1.00$     729.00$            0.65$      473.85$            0.73$     532.17$             
3 Remove and re-seal joint by the curb 947 LFT 1.00$     947.00$            0.65$      615.55$            0.73$     691.31$             
4 Traffic Maint Control/Asphalt Restoration N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Grand Total  – Task (1) $4,130.00 $2,009.65 $2,254.16

TASK (2) COMMUNITY CENTER: South Parking Lot Phase 1 UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt joint if needed 80 LFT  $    5.00  $           400.00  $     2.50  $           200.00  $    3.83  $            306.40 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,888 LFT  $    3.00  $        5,664.00  $     4.50  $        8,496.00  $    3.83  $         7,231.04 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 680 TN  $  70.00  $      47,600.00  $   69.50  $      47,260.00  $  72.96  $       49,612.80 
4 Striping (yellow/white) 4,010 LFT  $    0.20  $           802.00  $     0.18  $           721.80  $    0.18  $            721.80 
5 Handicapped parking space & logo (blue) 4 EA  $  25.00  $           100.00  $   20.00  $             80.00  $    9.26  $             37.04 
6 Remove & replace curb and gutter 768 LFT  $  25.00  $      19,200.00  $   30.00  $      23,040.00  $  31.00  $       23,808.00 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (2) $73,766.00 $79,797.80 $81,717.08

TASK (3) COMMUNITY CENTER: South Parking Lot Phase 2 UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt joint if needed 120 LFT  $    5.00  $           600.00  $     2.50  $           300.00  $    3.83  $            459.60 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,888 LFT  $    3.00  $        5,664.00  $     4.50  $        8,496.00  $    3.83  $         7,231.04 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 680 TN  $  70.00  $      47,600.00  $   69.50  $      47,260.00  $  72.96  $       49,612.80 
4 Striping (yellow/white) 4,010 LFT  $    0.20  $           802.00  $     0.18  $           721.80  $    0.18  $            721.80 
5 Handicapped parking space & logo (blue) 4 EA  $  25.00  $           100.00  $   20.00  $             80.00  $    9.26  $             37.04 
6 Remove & replace curb and gutter 55 LFT  $  40.00  $        2,200.00  $   30.00  $        1,650.00  $  31.00  $         1,705.00 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (3) $56,966.00 corrected $58,507.80 $59,767.28

TASK (4) COMMUNITY CENTER: Road Way Phase 3 UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 100 LFT  $    5.00  $           500.00  $     2.50  $           250.00  $    3.83  $            383.00 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,390 LFT  $    3.00  $        4,170.00  $     4.50  $        6,255.00  $    3.98  $         5,532.20 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 225 TN  $  72.00  $      16,200.00  $   69.50  $      15,637.50  $  73.96  $       16,641.00 
4 Remove & replace curb and gutter 182 LFT  $  35.00  $        6,370.00  $   30.00  $        5,460.00  $  31.00  $         5,642.00 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (4) $27,240.00 $27,602.50 $28,198.20
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - TASKS 1, 2, 3, AND 4 $162,102.00 corrected $167,917.75 $171,936.72

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper

24 Hr Phone # 248-765-3109 586-997-2666 810-343-4717
SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y or N Yes Yes Yes
                                Date Visited 9/4/2012 9/10/2012 9/11/2012
COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE:             Can Meet Yes Yes Yes
                            Cannot Meet
PAYMENT TERMS: 30 days Net 30
WARRANTY: One (1) year
EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      SIGNED Y or N Yes Yes Yes
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes
TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Attached
                       Legal Status Y or N Yes Yes Yes
                       Non-Collusion Y or N Yes Yes Yes
ALL OR NONE AWARD Y or N No Yes Blank

(not interested)

Thursday, November 15, 2012

Net 30 days
1 year As per documents

EST QTY

Included

7 a.m. - 5 p.m. 7 a.m. - 5 p.m. 8 a.m. - 5 p.m.

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

000550004 000505243 1252285898
$5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

Nagle Paving Florence Pro Line
Company Cement Co Asphalt Paving



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date - 9/12/2012 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 12-17
Date Reviewed -- 9/17/2012 sl PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE Pg 3 of 3

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck #
Ck Amt

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1) FIRE STATION #1:  North & South Drive UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Open & seal new concrete joints & cracks 1,227 LFT 1.00$     1,227.00$         
2 Remove & re-seal existing joints & cracks 729 LFT 1.00$     729.00$            
3 Remove and re-seal joint by the curb 947 LFT 1.00$     947.00$            
4 Traffic Maint Control/Asphalt Restoration N/C

Estimated Grand Total  – Task (1) $2,903.00

TASK (2) COMMUNITY CENTER: South Parking Lot Phase 1 UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt joint if needed 80 LFT  $  10.00  $           800.00 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,888 LFT  $    8.00  $      15,104.00 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 680 TN  $  79.50  $      54,060.00 
4 Striping (yellow/white) 4,010 LFT  $    0.35  $        1,403.50 
5 Handicapped parking space & logo (blue) 4 EA  $  50.00  $           200.00 
6 Remove & replace curb and gutter 768 LFT  $  40.00  $      30,720.00 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (2) $102,287.50

TASK (3) COMMUNITY CENTER: South parking lot phase 2 UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt joint if needed 120 LFT  $  10.00  $        1,200.00 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,888 LFT  $    8.00  $      15,104.00 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 680 TN  $  79.50  $      54,060.00 
4 Striping (yellow/white) 4,010 LFT  $    0.35  $        1,403.50 
5 Handicapped parking space & logo (blue) 4 EA  $  50.00  $           200.00 
6 Remove & replace curb and gutter 55 LFT  $  40.00  $        2,200.00 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (3) $74,167.50

TASK (4) COMMUNITY CENTER: Road Way Phase 3 UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 100 LFT  $  10.00  $        1,000.00 
2 3' Milling at curb 1,390 LFT  $    8.00  $      11,120.00 
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T, 20AA 225 TN  $  80.50  $      18,112.50 
4 Remove & replace curb and gutter 182 LFT  $  40.00  $        7,280.00 

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C

Estimated Grand Total – Task (4) $37,512.50
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - TASKS 1, 2, 3, AND 4 $216,870.50

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper

24 Hr Phone # 734-394-9618
SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y or N Yes
                                Date Visited 9/11/2012
COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Yes

INSURANCE:             Can Meet Yes
                            Cannot Meet
PAYMENT TERMS:

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      SIGNED Y or N Yes
VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Yes
TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Attached
                       Legal Status Y or N Yes
                       Non-Collusion Y or N Yes
ALL OR NONE AWARD Y or N Yes

Thursday, November 15, 2012

30 days
2 year

EST QTY

Included

8 a.m. - 5 p.m.

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

000494114
$5,000.00

Cadillac
Asphalt LLC



 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
September 17, 2012 
 
 
To:  Michael W. Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
 Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 Gertrude Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
  Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
  Lisa Burnham, Account Services Manager 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Collection Agency Services 
 
 
Background  
 
On May 31, 2011, request for proposals (RFP) were received to provide two (2) year requirements of 
debt collection agency services for the City of Troy with an option to renew for three (3) additional 
years.  Fifty-four (54) companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network 
(MITN) website with one (1) proposal received.   

 
A committee of Cathleen Russ, Library Director; Gertrude Paraskevin, Information Technology 
Director; and Lisa Burnham, Account Services Manager, were the raters for the entire best value 
process.  Each committee member independently rated the proposal received.   
    
The collection services requested in the proposal documents included both delinquent library fines 
and delinquent City accounts that are unable to be assigned to the tax roll.  The combined dollar 
amount of the City and Library delinquencies is around $300,000.  
 
Credit Bureau Collection Services, Inc dba CBCS was the sole proposer for these services.  An 
informal interview was conducted with CBCS staff and the City’s evaluation committee members to 
discuss the proposed collection process.  Based on the proposal, informal interview, professional 
competence and excellent references, it was determined that CBCS would be a great fit for the City.  
For their services, CBCS will retain a 20% collection recovery fee for all collected accounts.  No fee 
will be charged for uncollected accounts.  The statute of limitations allows us to go back seven (7) 
years.  However, the City will only pursue those accounts delinquent more than ninety (90) days or 
older, if previous attempts were made by the City to actively collect the balance due.         
 
Fund Availability 
 
Collection fees will be deducted from debt amounts recovered.   
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04c



 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
 
September 17, 2012 
 
To:  Michael Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
Re:  Best Value Award – Collection Agency Services 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a two (2) year contract for Collection Agency Services with 
an option to renew for three (3) additional years to the sole proposer, Credit Bureau Collection 
Services, Inc dba CBCS of Columbus, Ohio, as a result of a best value process.   

 
The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of properly executed 
Agreement and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Executive Summary, Collection Agency Services. 
2. Agreement for Collection Agency Services. 
3. Non-disclosure Agreement 

 
Approved As To Form and Legality: 
 
_____________________________            
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Purchasing\Bid Award 10 – 11 New Format\Best Value SR8 - RFP - Collection Agency Services 07.11.doc 



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COLLECTION AGENCY SERVICES 
 
 
STATISTICS: 

 
 54 companies were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 One (1) proposal was received 
 
 CBCS received the highest score as a result of a best value process  

 
CBCS received the indicated final scores as a result of the proposal and pricing 
selection criteria. 
   
Company SCORE 
CBCS 76 
  
 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring of 80% includes Proposal and Price 
 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 

Collection Agency Services 
 

Final Score Calculation: 
 
40% x Proposal Score 
40% x Price Score 
20% x Interview Score (Optional Phase)   Deleted Phase                     
100%               = Final Weighted Score 

 
In order to equate the pricing score to the weighted evaluation process scoring, 50 points was used to 
evaluate Proposal A and 50 points was used to evaluate Proposal B. – Note: 100 point basis for each phase - 
 
 

Phase 5:  Weighted Average Score for Price:  40% 
 Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

[1Proposal Rate – Lowest Proposal Rate) / lowest 
proposal rate] x available points 

Final 
Weighted 
Score  
(x .40) 

Vendors:   
CBCS  Proposal A:  {1-(20% – 20%)/20%} x 50  =  50 

Proposal B:  {1-(20% – 20%)/20%} x 50  =  50 
100 x .40 = 40 

 

Phase 2:  Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 40%   
Raters: 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score 

(x .40) 
Vendors:      
CBCS  90 90 88 89 89 x .40 = 36 

 
 
FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  CBCS 
Price Score 40 
Proposal Score 36 
FINAL SCORE 76 

 
*HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/ Bid Award 10-11 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP –Collection Agency Services – WeightedRatingSummary 07.11.doc 

 



 
SELECTION PROCESS 

 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to award this 
proposal to the agency considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors including but 
not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength and capacity of the company 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation (Pass / Fail) 
Agencies will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of the 
process.   

 
Phase 2: Evaluation of Proposals (40%) 
Each Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the proposals; each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each agency for this phase of the process.   

 
Phase 3:  Interview Process (20%) – Optional  
The City, at its option, will invite the top rated firms to participate in an interview.  Each Committee 
Member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Interview; each Committee 
Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into 
one score for each firm for this phase of the process.  Those being interviewed may be supplied with 
further instructions and requests prior to the interview.  Persons representing the firm at the interview 
must be the personnel who will be assigned to this project.  

 
Phase 4:  Price (40%)  
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 

 
        FORMULA: {1 – (Proposal Rate –Lowest Proposal Rate) / lowest proposal rate} x available points 
 

Note:   50 points will be used to evaluate the Proposal A and 50 points will be used to evaluate Proposal B.  
 

Phase 5:  Final Scoring and Selection  
The company with the highest final weighted score will be recommended to the Troy City Council for 
Award.   
 
 40% Proposal Score (100 point base)  
 20% Interview Score (100 point base) 
 40% Price Score       (100 point base) 
             100%       
 

 
 

Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 10-41
Opening Date -- 05/31/2011 TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Reviewed --  9/17/2012 COLLECTION AGENCY SERVICES

COMPANY NAME: CBCS

PROPOSAL: TO FURNISH DEBT COLLECTION AGENCY SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF TROY 

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: (Yes or No) Y

SIX (6) COPIES (Yes or No) Y

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N Y

PROPOSAL A:  LIBRARY Collection % Recovery Fee Collection % Recovery Fee Collection % Recovery Fee

Debt Range: 
$  5.00 - $10.00 20%

$10.01 - $15.00 20%
$15.01 - $25.00 20%
$25.01 - Over 20%

PROPOSAL B:  OTHER ACCOUNTS Collection % Recovery Fee
Debt Range: 

Under $100.00 20%
$     100.01 - $     500.00 20%
$     500.01 - $  1,000.00 20%
$  1,000.01 - $  5,000.00 20%
$  5,000.01 - $10,000.00 20%
$10,000.01 - Over 20%

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Signed  Y or N Y

THREE FORMS:
Non-Collusion Y / N Y
Legal Status Y / N Y
Indemnification Clause Y / N Y

ATTEST:
Sandra Kasperek
Cheryl Stewart Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Julie Hamilton Purchasing Director

G:/RFP-COT 10-41 Collection Agency.xls



























information concerning them, together with notes, analyses, compilations, or other documents 
prepared by Disclosing Party or their respective representatives based upon, containing or otherwise 
reflecting such information and information received from others that Disclosing Party is obligated to 
treat as confidential. If there is a discrepancy between the provisions of this Paragraph and the 
requirements set out in FOIA, FOIA shall control. 
 
The Confidential Information may also include, but is not limited to, information relating to the 
Disclosing Party’s business, financial matters, collection strategies and processes, sales’ marketing, 
customers and strategic plans and other aspects of the Disclosing Party’s business, financial 
condition and operations. . If there is a discrepancy between the provisions of this Paragraph and the 
requirements set out in FOIA, FOIA shall control. 
 
 2. Exclusions from Confidential Information. Receiving Party’s obligations under this Agreement do 
not extend to information or portions of Confidential Information that: (a) is publicly known at the time 
of disclosure or subsequently becomes publicly known through no fault of the Receiving Party; (b) 
becomes available on a non-confidential basis from a source which is not prohibited from disclosing 
such information; (c) is discovered by or created by the Receiving Party before disclosure by the 
Disclosing Party; or (d) is disclosed by Receiving Party with Disclosing Party’s prior written approval.  
 
3. Release of Information to the Public: Any documents in Receiving Party’s possession are 
subject to release under the Federal and Michigan Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”) 
unless expressly exempt there from. Receiving Party has a FOIA policy in place concerning 
review and release of documents. FOIA requires release of documents within 5 days of the 
receipt of the request unless a 10 day extension is exercised by Receiving Party.  Receiving 
Party shall make the determination as to whether  requested documentation in its possession 
must be released under FOIA. Receiving Party agrees to give Disclosing Party a copy of the 
FOIA request when it is received for Disclosing Party’s documents to allow Disclosing Party 
an opportunity to obtain an immediate preliminary injunction against Receiving Party 
preventing release of the documentation requested.   
 
4. Obligations of Receiving Party.  Except at set out in Paragraph 3, Receiving Party agrees to hold 
and maintain the Confidential Information in strictest confidence for the sole and exclusive benefit of 
the Disclosing Party. Receiving Party shall not share, furnish, sell, publish, copy, or otherwise disclose 
any Confidential Information to any third party or affiliate with the prior written approval of the 
Disclosing Party, except if requested under FOIA in which case Paragraph 3 shall apply Receiving 
Party also agrees to strictly restrict access to the Confidential Information to its necessary employees, 
contractors, and third parties as is reasonably required, and shall require those persons to sign 
nondisclo-sure restrictions. Receiving Party has no rights with respect to Disclosing Party’s 
Confidential Information other than those rights granted by this Agreement. The Receiving Party shall 
ensure its agents, employees, and contractors (with access to the Confidential Information) shall 
comply with the terms of this Agreement. Further, the Parties agree that obligations in this Agreement 
shall be binding on the representatives, assigns and successors of the Parties.  
 
5. Return of Confidential Information.  Within thirty (30) days of written request, Receiving Party shall 
return to Disclosing Party any and all records, notes, and other written, printed, or tangible materials in 
its possession pertaining to Confidential Information. If Return is not feasible, Receiving Party shall 
continue to protect Confidential Information per the terms of this Agreement. 
  
6. Oversight. The Parties agree that the Disclosing Party is authorized to make reasonable inquiries of 
the Receiving Party concerning compliance with the terms of the Agreement. The Parties agree that 
the Disclosing Party may require the Receiving Party to take reasonable protective measures where 
the Receiving Party’s measures are found to be lacking. Except as set out in Paragraph 3, in the 







 

 
September 19, 2012 
 
 
 
TO:   Michael W. Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Jeff Biegler, Recreation Director 
  
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option –  
  Tee Shirts 
 
Background 

On September 26, 2011, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract for Tee Shirts (various types) 
with an option to renew for one additional year to the low total bidder, ITA Printing of Butler, PA (Resolution 
#2011-09-218-J-4a). Tee Shirts are purchased for youth and adult recreational programs throughout the 
year based upon estimated quantities. 
 
ITA Printing has offered to renew their contract for one additional year under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions. A market survey conducted by the Purchasing department concurs with the recommendation, 
as Troy’s pricing is at least 25% lower than the competition for similar items. (see attachments) 

 
ITB-COT 11-19, one-year requirements of Tee Shirts with an option to renew for one additional year was 
competitively bid and opened on September 7, 2011, in accordance with City Charter and Code. 
 

Recommendation 
City management and the Recreation department recommend exercising the option to renew for one 
additional year for an estimated cost of $28,124.00 with ITA Printing of Butler, PA for Tee Shirts under the 
same prices, terms and conditions originally bid, expiring September 30, 2013. 
 

Fund Availability 
Funds are available for the purchase of these tee shirts in the various Recreation Program operating 
supply accounts. 

 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 12-13 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 T-ShirtsITB-COT 11-19.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04d



 Page 1 

Memo 
To: Susan Leirstein 

From: Nancy Kuha 

Date: 9/19/2012 

Re: Market Survey for Tee-Shirts ITB-COT 11-19 

I contacted the following companies to request tee-shirt pricing for the coming year. 

Great Lakes Embroidery – 248-585-1855 – Spoke to Rob 

Great Lakes Embroidery did not bid on ITB-COT 11-19, so I requested a quote on Item #1 from the bid. 

ITEM #1 – Qty. 1200 - 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts with one-color imprint on front - $4.85 ea. 

Impressive Promotional Products LLC – 248-589-3595 

Per Susan’s conversation with Mr. Ali on 9/18/2012, their pricing would be the same as last year.  No 
significant market changes would affect their prices.  I looked up their website www.ippteam.com, and 
found their prices range from $3.70 to $5.36 each depending on color. 

A check of the MITN website found a recent bid issued by the City of Novi for the exact same item, 
50/50 T-Shirts – Gildan G8000 with one color imprint on front was $3.50 each verses Troy’s cost of 
$2.63 each. 

If you have any questions, let me know. 

 

  

G:\ Letters – Memos …..\Memo-Market Survey - Tee Shirts 11-19.doc 

Purchasing 
Department 



CITY OF NOVI - T-SHIRTS SPORTS APPAREL BID TAB BID DUE 8/28/12

Item Description
American 
Silkscreen

Impressive 
Promotional

1st Class 
Silkscreening Image Impressions

SETUP/ARTWORK
1 Logo Setup/Artwork Dept/City N/C 10.00 20.00 225.00
2 Logo Setup/Artwork Sponsor 10.00 10.00 20.00 225.00

PRINTING COSTS
3 Numerals (1-2 per location) 0.65 1.50 1.50 2.45
4 1 color logo/1 location 0.60 0.50 1.50 0.77
5 2 color logo/1 location 1.25 1.00 2.25 0.88
6 1 color logo/2 location 1.20 1.00 3.00 0.92
7 2 color logo/2 location 2.50 1.50 4.50 1.03
8 "Coach", "Supervisor", "Staff" 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.77

EMBROIDERY COSTS
9 Embroidered logo (each) 4.00 4.95 5.00 7.00

FLAG FOOTBALL
10 Mesh Football Jersey Augusta 283/284 Augusta 240/241 A4 N4139/nb4139 Holloway 229304

Youth Small-Youth XL 10.67 11.95 14.00 18.00
Adult Small - Adult XL 10.92 12.95 15.00 20.00

Adult 2XL 12.42 13.95 17.00 22.00
Adult 3XL 13.12 14.95 18.00 24.00

BASKETBALL
11 Reversible Tank Jersey - poly Augusta 136/137 Augusta 197/198 Badger 8529 Holloway 229503

Youth Small-Youth XL 8.60 9.50 9.50 18.50
Adult Small - Adult XL 9.74 10.50 11.50 20.50

Adult 2XL 11.24 11.50 12.50 22.50
Adult 3XL 12.35 12.50 13.50 24.50

VOLLEYBALL
12 Volleyball shirt - poly Augusta 1230/1231 Augusta 1230/1231 Augusta 525 Holloway 222253

Youth Med-Youth XL 9.06 12.50 12.00 13.00
Adult Small - Adult XL 10.34 13.50 12.00 15.00

Adult 2XL 10.84 15.50 14.00 17.00
Adult 3XL NA blank 15.00 19.00

BASEBALL
13 Complete Uniform Package

Youth Small -Youth XL 20.67 27.95 28.00 77.00
Adult Small - Adult XL 25.13 28.95 32.00 79.00

FASTPITCH SOFTBALL (LADIES)
14 Complete Uniform Package

Youth Small-Youth XL 23.55 27.95 30.00 32.50
Adult Small - Adult XL 24.75 28.95 35.00 34.50

ADULT SOFTBALL/COACH/THEATRE/STAFF
15 T-Shirts, SS, 50/50 cotton/poly Gildan G8000 Jerzees 29M/29B Gildan 8000 Holloway 222458

 Youth Small - Youth XL 2.90 3.95 4.00 15.00
Adult Small - Adult XL 2.90 3.95 4.50 17.00

Adult 2XL 5.54 5.95 6.00 19.00
Adult 3XL 5.59 6.95 7.50 21.00
Adult 4XL 5.59 7.95 7.50 23.00

16 T-shirts, SS, Moisture Wicking Augusta 790 Harriton M320 A4 N3142 Augusta 790
Adult Small - Adult XL 6.82 9.95 7.00 11.70

Adult 2XL 8.22 10.95 9.00 13.70
Adult 3XL 9.12 11.95 10.00 14.70
Adult 4XL 10.12 12.95 11.00 14.70

17 T-shirts, LS, 50/50 cotton/poly Gildan G8400 Jerzees 29L Gildan 8400 Harriton 320L
Adult Small - Adult XL 5.42 6.95 7.50 15.98

Adult 2XL 6.92 8.95 9.00 17.98
Adult 3XL 6.92 9.95 9.00 19.98
Adult 4XL 6.92 10.95 10.50 19.98

18 Polo Shirt, SS, 50/50 Gildan 8800 Hanes 054 Gildan 8800 Hanes 54P
Adult Small - Adult XL 5.84 7.50 9.00 12.58

smorianti
Text Box
Contract awarded to American Silkscreen



CITY OF NOVI - T-SHIRTS SPORTS APPAREL BID TAB BID DUE 8/28/12

Item Description
American 
Silkscreen

Impressive 
Promotional

1st Class 
Silkscreening Image Impressions

Adult 2XL 8.44 9.50 12.00 14.58
Adult 3XL 8.64 10.50 14.00 16.58
Adult 4XL 8.64 11.50 15.00 18.58

19 Wind Shirt Port JST72 Harriton M720 Badger 7601 Badger 7602
Adult Small - Adult XL 12.49 15.95 24.00 36.90

Adult 2XL 14.49 16.95 26.50 38.90
Adult 3XL 15.49 17.95 29.00 10.90
Adult 4XL 16.49 18.95 31.00 40.90

20 Polo Shirt, wicking Harriton M315 Harriton M315 blank Harriton M315 & M315W

Adult Small - Adult XL 12.49 15.95 blank 19.98
Adult 2XL 13.49 16.95 16.00 21.28
Adult 3XL 15.49 17.95 18.00 23.28
Adult 4XL 16.49 18.95 20.00 23.28

21 Baseball Cap Augusta 6202 Harriton M800 Anvil 136 Flexfit 6210T
Each 2.40 3.50 5.00 11.20

22 T-shirts, SS, Hanes 5170
Adult Small - Adult XL 3.32 3.95 4.75 3.32

Adult 2XL 5.42 5.95 5.75 5.70
Adult 3XL 5.42 6.95 6.75 5.82
Adult 4XL 5.46 7.95 7.75 5.82

23 T-shirts, SS, Hanes Cool Dri 4820
Adult Small - Adult XL 6.77 7.95 7.50 10.82

Adult 2XL 9.37 9.95 8.50 12.82
Adult 3XL 9.37 10.95 9.50 13.82
Adult 4XL 9.37 blank 10.50 13.82

24 Polo Shirt - Holloway 222423
Adult Small - Adult XL 20.67 25.00 20.00 31.00

Adult 2XL 22.67 26.00 22.00 33.00
Adult 3XL 24.17 27.00 23.50 35.00
Adult 4XL 25.67 28.00 25.00 37.00

25 Sweatshirt - Gildan 18000
Adult Small - Adult XL 7.12 8.50 8.50 16.40

Adult 2XL 9.32 10.50 9.50 18.40
Adult 3XL 9.32 11.50 10.50 19.40
Adult 4XL 9.52 12.50 11.50 19.40

26 Sweatshirt - FOL 82300
Adult Small - Adult XL 11.50 15.50 12.00 18.40

Adult 2XL 14.03 17.50 13.00 20.40
Adult 3XL 15.07 18.50 14.00 21.40

27 Sweatshirt - Jerzees 4662M
Adult 4XL 12.64 18.50 13.00 13.38

28 Hoodie - Hanes F170
Adult Small - Adult XL 17.72 22.50 17.50 30.38

Adult 2XL 21.22 25.50 18.50 32.38
Adult 3XL 21.83 26.50 19.50 33.38

29 Zip Hoodie - FOL 82230R
Adult Small - Adult XL 19.22 24.50 19.50 29.93

Adult 2XL 22.12 27.50 21.50 31.93
Adult 3XL 22.75 28.50 22.50 32.93

30 Zip Hoodie - PC90ZH
Adult 4XL 23.23 29.95 25.00 32.48

31 Parka - Ash City 88007
Adult Small - Adult XL 89.90 89.95 150.00 141.90

Adult 2XL 91.90 94.95 155.00 149*.
Adult 3XL 92.90 99.95 160.00 151.84

Delivery 10 business days 10 working days 7 business days 7 business days





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - FINAL September 26, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Tee Shirts 
 
Resolution #2011-09-218-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to furnish various 
Tee Shirts for the Recreation Department with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to 
the low total bidder, ITA Printing of Butler, PA for an estimated total cost of $28,124.00, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 7, 2011, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with the contract expiring September 30, 
2012.   
 
J-6 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Robert Ginther – 

South Oakland Chapter of Warthogs Motorcycle Club 
 
Resolution #2011-09-218-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from South Oakland 
Chapter of Warthogs Motorcycle Club, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit 
organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming 
license as recommended by City Management.  
 
J-7 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – John R Road Improvement Project, 

Square Lake to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel 44 – Sidwell #88-20-
02-230-011 

 
Resolution #2011-09-218-J-7 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Elizabeth Strichick, pertaining to 
the City of Troy’s acquisition of her property at 6695 John R, having Sidwell #88-20-02-230-
011, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $1,850. 
 
J-5 Sustainable Development Checklist 
 
Resolution #2011-09-219 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Slater 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Zoning Ordinance included a Sustainable Design Option, which is 
intended to promote environmentally sustainable and energy efficient design and development 
practices for the construction of new and the rehabilitation of existing buildings and sites within the 
City; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 12.01 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance established the requirement of a 
separate Sustainable Development Checklist; and 
 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
September 20, 2011 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  
 Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 Jeffrey J. Biegler, Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Tee Shirts 
 
 
Background  
 
On September 7, 2011, bids were received to provide one-year requirements of 50/50 and 100% cotton tee 
shirts with an option to renew for one additional year for the Troy Recreation Department.  One hundred and 
thirty-six (136) companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) website 
with five (5) bids received and one statement of no bid.  Of the five bids received, three were disqualified for 
not submitting the proper bid surety as specified.    
 
A detailed pricing list for each option was requested and received from the two responsible, responsive 
bidders.  After performing reference checks and pricing analysis, staff recommends awarding the contract to 
the lowest total bidder, ITA Printing of Butler, Pennsylvania.   

  
Recommendation 
 
City management and the Recreation department recommend awarding a one-year contract to provide various 
Tee Shirts for the Recreation department with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the lowest total 
bidder, ITA Printing of Butler, Pennsylvania for an estimated total cost of $28,124.00 at unit prices contained in 
the bid tabulation opened 9/7/2011.   
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funding for the purchase of Tee Shirts is available in the Recreation, Community Center and Aquatic Center 
operating accounts.  Cost of the Tee Shirts is built into registration and membership fees paid by participants in 
various programs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Purchasing\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - Tee Shirts ITB-COT 11-19 09.11.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-19
Opening Date -- 9/7/11 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 2
Date Reviewed - 9/20/11 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: ** ITA Printing Impressive 
Promotional 

Products, LLC
CHECK # 6810895 530601392-0
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint on Front)

1,200 Youth - Small, Med,Large 2.63$                    3.35$                 
1,800 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,X-Large 2.63$                    3.35$                 

30 Adult -  XX-Large, XXX-Large 4.47$                    4.95$                 
1,600 COST PER DIGIT: Single 1.30$                    0.50$                 
500 Double 2.60$                    0.90$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G8000M G800B & G800
MANUFACTURED BY: Gilden Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 35 36

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 11,404.10$          11,448.50$       

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts
One (1) Color Imprint on Front 

300 Adult - Med,Large, X-Large 2.84$                    3.95$                 
50 Adult -  XX-Large 4.73$                    5.75$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G2000 G200

MANUFACTURED BY: Gilden Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 62 67.00$                  

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 1,088.50$            1,472.50$         

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
175 Adult - Small, Med,Large,X-Large 2.24$                    3.65$                 
25 Adult - XX-Large 4.13$                    5.30$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G2000 G200
MANUFACTURED BY: Gilden Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 62 67

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 495.25$               771.25$            

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors Front & 1 Color Back

1,200 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 3.45$                    3.95$                 
800 Adult - Medium, Large, X-Large 3.45$                    3.95$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G8000M G800B & G800
MANUFACTURED BY: Gilden Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 35 36

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 6,900.00$            7,900.00$         

G\:Purchasing\Bid Tabs 11-12\ITB-COT 11-19 Tee Shirts.xls



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-19
Opening Date -- 9/7/11 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Reviewed - 9/20/11 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: ** ITA Printing Impressive 
Promotional 

Products, LLC
EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & Back
Short Sleeve Shirts

1,700 Adult-Medium, Large, X-Large 3.49$                    4.95$                 
300 Adult - XX-Large 5.38$                    6.95$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G2000 G200
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 62 67

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 7,547.00$            10,500.00$       

ITEM #6 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Four Color Imprint Front

200 Youth- Small, Medium, Large 3.25$                    3.95$                 
12 Adult - Medium, Large, X-Large 3.25$                    3.95$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G800M G800B & G800
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 35 36

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#6): 689.00$               837.40$            

       ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 28,123.85$          32,929.65$       

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N N N

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Op 7AM-3:30PM 8AM-5:30PM

         Phone # (724) 431-3060 (248) 589-3595

PAYMENT TERMS Net 30 Net 20

GUARANTEED DELIVERY

Full Rplc on any 
WARRANTY defective goods Manufacturer

EXCEPTIONS Blank Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD:      Y or N Y N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N Y Y

DISQUALIFIED:  
 Priority One Emergency, Inc. (Did not submit bid surety check with bid, as specified)
 World of Promotions (Did not submit bid surety check with bid, as specified) 
 Active Embroidery & Silkscreen (Submitted company check not certified or cashiers check, as specified)

NO BIDS: **BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
 Positive Promotions 

ATTEST:
 Scott Mercer Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
 Cheryl A. Stewart Purchasing Director

 Julie Hamilton 

BIDDERS WILL BE NOTIFIED 2 WEEKS IN ADVANCE



GGM/TC      i:\1 command administration\command staff\mayer\council agenda item\2012\cc shir tikvah parking waiver sept 2012.doc 

 

 
September 13, 2012 
 
 
TO:    Michael Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police   
   William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions  
 
Background: 
 
The Congregation Shir Tikvah is requesting that the parking restrictions on the East side of 
Northfield Parkway from the entrance of Boulan Park to the entrance of the synagogue be waived 
on the following dates and times: 

 
 Tuesday, September 25, 2012, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
 Wednesday,, September 26, 2012, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm 

 
Congregation Shir Tikvah is conducting events related to the observance of the High Holidays on 
these dates and times; although they have arranged for additional parking at Stonehaven Church 
on Wattles Road, they fear they will not have sufficient parking space for all attendees. 
 
The waiving of the restrictions would allow attendees to park on the dirt shoulder of Northfield 
Parkway. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
City Ordinance prohibits parking on Northfield Parkway; therefore, City Council action is required to 
grant a variance. 
 
Congregation Shir Tikvah makes such requests and is granted a variance regularly; no problems 
have ever been reported.  
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-05



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
September 18, 2012 
 
 
TO:   Michael W. Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Jeff Biegler, Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Community Center Kitchen Lease Renewal 
 
 
Background: 
In November 2010, Emerald Food Services was granted a two-year contract to lease the Community 
Center kitchen.  Terms of the contract provided for an option to renew the contract for an additional 
three (3) years based upon mutual agreement of both parties under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions. (Res #2010-11-262-J5) 
 
In contract with the Area Agency on Aging 1-B, Emerald Food Services, Inc is the food service 
provider for the senior citizen nutrition program. To provide these services the City has agreed to 
allow Emerald Food Service, Inc to use the Community Center kitchen for the purpose of preparing 
food for this service.  As part of this use, Emerald Food Services, Inc will be allocated office space to 
conduct business associated with this service. 
 
In the original 2006 Kitchen Use Agreement with Emerald Food Service (EFS), the City received 
$9000 annually for use of the kitchen. Emerald Food Service was aware of the City’s budgetary 
challenges and increased the fee to $19,200 in November of 2010, proposing an arrangement that 
benefited the City and allowed EFS to remain in the Community Center. 
 
Recommendation:  
It is recommended that City Council exercise the three-year option to renew the Kitchen Use 
Agreement with Emerald Food Service, Inc of Troy under the same prices, terms and conditions 
agreed upon in the 2010 contract. 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: ________________________               ______________ 

  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
                 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-06







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  November 15, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item J-4, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-11-262-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the Regular City 
Council Meeting of November 8, 2010 as submitted. 
 
J-3 City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2010-11-262-J-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: American Recycles 2010 “It All Comes Back to You.” 
 
J-5 Approval of Kitchen Use Agreement – Emerald Food Service, LLC 
 
Resolution #2010-11-262-J-5 
 
WHEREAS, Emerald Food Service, LLC is the provider of senior citizen nutritional services in 
contract with the Area Agency on Aging 1-B; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has agreed to allow use of the kitchen at the Community Center 
for the purpose of preparing these meals; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Kitchen Use 
Agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the agreement; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.  
 
J-6 City of Troy v. Ida Rudack Trust 
 
Resolution #2010-11-262-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the condemnation case of City of Troy v. Ida Rudack Trust (Oakland County Circuit Court Case 
No. 09-097974-CC) as placed on the table; and 



 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
 
Date:  October 29, 2010  
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Approval of Kitchen Use Agreement – Emerald Food Service LLC 
 
 
Background 
 
In contract with the Area Agency on Aging 1-B, Emerald Food Services, Inc. is the food service 
provider for senior citizens.  To provide these services the City has agreed to allow Emerald Food 
Service, Inc. use of the Community Center kitchen for the purpose of preparing food for this purpose.  
As part of this use, Emerald Food Service, Inc. will be allocated office space to conduct business 
associated with this service.   
 
In the previous Kitchen Use Agreement with Emerald Food Service, the city received $9000 annually 
for use of the kitchen.  Emerald Food Service is aware of the city’s budgetary challenges and is 
proposing an arrangement that will benefit the city and allow EFS to remain in the Community Center. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Council approve the Kitchen Use Agreement as the city will generate $19,200 
annually for this use through payment by Emerald Food Service, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
CKA/mw 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-05





 2

SECTION IV – The Corporation’s Responsibilities 
 

A. The Corporation shall pay the rent on or before the 1st day of each month. 
     Checks should be made payable to: City of Troy and delivered or mailed to  
     Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director, 3179 Livernois, Troy, 
     Michigan 48083. 

 
B. The Corporation shall use the kitchen for the sole purpose of conducting a  
     scratch cooking site from Monday through Friday, from 5:00 am to 2:00 pm,  
     (on normal Corporation work days), except holidays observed by the City. 

 
C. The Corporation shall provide all the food and other necessary materials for cooking 

and preparing the meals to be served. 
 

D. The Corporation shall provide all the kitchen utensils and equipment necessary for 
food preparation and cooking which are not currently on the site. 

 
E. The Corporation shall provide all the paper products, plastic silverware, condiments 

and other containers and utensils. 
 

F. The Corporation shall provide for the cleaning of the tables on a daily basis. 
 

G. The Corporation shall provide for all daily cleaning of the premises. 
 

H. The Corporation shall provide for the maintenance and cleaning of all kitchen 
equipment it uses as listed and provided in Section III, Paragraph C, whether owned 
by the City or the Corporation. 

 
I. The Corporation shall reimburse the City for a 25% portion of the trash disposal 

service (SOCCRA charges); any cleaning of the stove and oven hoods, grease trap, 
ceiling tiles and wall washes in the kitchen within 30 days after presentation of the 
notice of the cost of those services.  The Corporation also to provide their own pest 
control services, if needed. 

 
J. The Corporation shall reimburse the City for 50% of the cost of dumpster pick-up 

within 30 days after presentation of the notice of the cost of that service. 
 

K. The Corporation shall not make any building modifications and/or additions, including 
but not limited to fixtures, door, carpeting, electrical outlets and voice/data 
connections unless they are approved by the City in advance of installation.  Those 
building modifications and/or additions shall become the property of the City at the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement.  The costs associated with building 
modifications and/or additions that are necessary to make the space a viable office 
shall be the responsibility of the Corporation.  Equipment brought into the space by 
the Corporation must also be approved in advance by the City. 

 
 
 
 



 3

L. The Corporation shall supply the City with copies of all claims, damage or accident 
reports received by the Corporation, its employees and/or its agents, whether 
submitted to an insurance company or not, relating to any damage or accident that 
occurred or is alleged to have occurred on City owned property within 24 hours of the 
claim. 

 
M. The Corporation shall allow the City the right to enter and/or inspect the 

kitchen area at any reasonable time and make repairs and/or improvements as it 
deems necessary.  The expense of periodic maintenance caused by normal wear and 
tear of the kitchen equipment will be paid by the Corporation.  Other repairs will be 
done at the City’s expense unless it is determined that the repair was necessary due 
to the misuse or negligence of the Corporation, its employees and/or agents in which 
event the Corporation shall be responsible for the costs of said repair.  The City will 
make every effort to notify the Corporation in advance if non-City employees will be 
entering onto the premises at the City’s request.  Any additions, repairs and/or 
improvements made on the premises shall become property of the City. 
 

N. The Corporation shall be liable for any personal property taxes assessed 
      against its equipment or inventory. 

 
O. The Corporation shall secure all necessary insurance and hold the City harmless as 

set out in Section V, Paragraphs A. and B.   
 

P. The Corporation shall meet all rules and regulations of the Oakland County Public 
Health Department for the establishment and maintenance of a scratch cooking site 
and shall secure the approval of the Oakland County Public Health Department for the 
operation of the kitchen as a scratch cooking site. 

 
Q. The President of the Corporation or his/her designee shall meet with the Director of 

Parks and Recreation or his/her designee for the City on an annual basis starting in 
January, 2012 for the purpose of reviewing the adequacy of the service being 
provided, and as required at any other time. 

 
SECTION V – Insurance and Indemnification 
 

A. The Corporation shall maintain liability insurance in the amount of two million 
($2,000,000.00) dollars for any actions, claims, liability or damages caused to 
persons and/or property arising out of the operation and/or maintenance of the 
food service and use of the kitchen and office area in the Troy Community 
Center, in addition to product liability insurance and worker’s compensation.  All 
insurance coverage shall be approved by the City.  Certificates of Insurance 
shall comply with the sample for attached as Exhibit 2.  The City shall be named 
as an additional insured under all policies except worker’s compensation.  All 
insurance companies must be licensed and admitted to do business in the State 
of Michigan.  All insurance set out herein shall be maintained for the duration of 
the Agreement.  Failure to maintain coverage or to continue to maintain 
coverage shall be considered a breach of contract with immediate termination of 
the Agreement at the will of the City.  The Corporation is responsible for any 
deductibles under its policies of insurance. 

 



 4

B. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Corporation agrees to defend, pay on 
behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Troy, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of 
the City of Troy against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all 
costs connected therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, 
claimed or recovered against or from the City of Troy, its elected and appointed 
officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the City of Troy, 
by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property 
damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way 
connected or associated with this contract for and for the preparation and 
service of meals. 

 
C. The City shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Corporation from any 

and all claims against the Corporation resulting from the gross negligence of the 
City. 

 
 
SECTION VI – Compliance 
 
The City and the Corporation shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations 
of the Federal, State and local governments. 
 
SECTION VII – Discrimination Prohibited 
 
Neither the City nor the Corporation shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or a 
matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of race, color, religion, national 
origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status pursuant to 1976 P.A. 453, Section 209.  The 
parties shall also comply with the provisions of the Michigan Handicappers Civil Rights Act, 
1976 P.A. 220, and the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P.L. 93-112, which states that no 
employee or client or otherwise qualified handicapped individual shall, solely by reason of 
handicap, be excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 
The parties shall comply with all other Federal, State or local laws, regulations, and standards, 
and any amendments thereto, as they may apply to the performance of this Lease. 
 
No person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex, age, national origin, height, weight, 
handicap, or marital status be excluded from participation in, be denied the proceeds of, or be 
subject to discrimination in the performance of this Lease.  The Corporation shall comply with all 
applicable regulations promulgated pursuant to the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
 
 
SECTION VII – General Provisions 
 

A. Merger or Integration 
 

This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter and there are no other further written or oral agreements with respect 
to this Agreement. 



 5

 
B. Termination 
 

Either party may at any time during the life of this Agreement, or any extension 
thereof, terminate this Agreement by giving 120 days notice in writing to the other 
party of its intention to do so.  Should the Community Center be closed permanently 
or semi-permanently by City Administration or City Council, the City will notify 
Corporation no later than five (5) days after decision. 

 
C. Modification 

 
No variation or modification of the Agreement and no waiver of its provisions shall be 
valid unless in writing and signed by the duly authorized officers of both parties. 

 
D. Assignment or Delegation 

 
No assignment or delegation of this Agreement shall be made in whole or in part, 
without the written consent of the City being first obtained. 

 
E. Independent Contractor Provision 

 
The relationship of the Corporation to the City shall be that of an independent 
contractor.  No partnership, association or joint enterprise shall arise between the 
Corporation and the City as a result of any provision of this Agreement, nor shall any 
provision be construed as making an employee of the Corporation an employee of the 
City or an employee of the City an employee of the Corporation. 
 

F. Designation of Representatives 
 

The Corporation designates its president, Kim Haveraneck or designee, as its 
representative to convey complaints and grievances pertaining to the execution of this 
Agreement.  The City designates Carol Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation or 
designee, as its representative for same. The Corporation representative may be 
reached by phone at 248.689.0001.  The City’s representative may be reached by 
phone at 248.524.3484. 
 

G. Material Breach 
 

Any breach of promise or covenant contained herein shall be construed as a material 
breach and shall be the basis for immediate termination of this Agreement by the non-
breaching party. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









bittnera
Text Box
J-07











































































 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:              September 19, 2012               
 
 
To:   Mike Culpepper, Acting City Manager    
  
 
From:   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  
   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
 
Subject: Announcement of Public Hearing for October 22, 2012 - 
  Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2013 Application 
 
 
The City of Troy is required by the Oakland County Division of Community & Home Improvement to 

advertise and conduct a Public Hearing for the Program Year 2013 CDBG application.  

 

A public hearing will be scheduled for October 22, 2012 at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the 

agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing public comments on the adoption of the Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2013 application in the approximate amount of $145,204.00 to 

fund eligible projects. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
K-01a



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: September 18, 2012 
 
To:  Mike Culpepper, Interim City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

Subject: CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 006) – Proposed 
Troy Plaza Development, West side of Crooks, North side of New King (5500 New 
King), Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) 
and CB (Community Business) Districts  

 
 
A public hearing for this item is scheduled for the October 8, 2012 City Council Regular meeting. 
 
The public notice language is attached. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Public notice language 
 

 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-006  Troy Plaza  Sec 8\CC Memo CR-006 09 24 2012.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
K-01b



 

 

CITY OF TROY 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City Hall, 

500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, on Monday, October 8, 2012, at 7:30 p.m. or as soon 

thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider a Conditional Rezoning Request to 

rezone the following described property from the PUD 13 (Planned Unit Development) 

district to the CB (Community Business) and OM (Office Mixed Use) districts. 

 
The subject property is located on the west side of Crooks, south of Square Lake. 
 
The subject property address is 5500 New King. 
 

 
Comments can be expressed at the Public Hearing, or written comments can be directed 
to the attention of the Planning Department, City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, 
Michigan 48084, or by e-mail to planning@troymi.gov no later than 3:00 p.m. on the date 
of the meeting.  If you have questions you may contact the Planning Department by e-mail 
or by phone at (248) 524-3364. 
 
The application on file can be viewed and/or copies can be purchased at the Planning 
Department, City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084. 
 
Notices and information for public hearings will also be posted on the City website at 
http://www.troymi.gov/PublicHearings/ . 
 

  
 ___________________________________ 

 Aileen Bittner 
 City Clerk 
 
 
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

mailto:planning@troymi.gov�
http://www.troymi.gov/PublicHearings/�
mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


bittnera
Text Box
O-01a







BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JUNE 20, 2012 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Special meeting of the Troy City Building Board of Appeals to order 
at 3:00 p.m. on June 20, 2012 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira (arrived 3:15 p.m.) 
Teresa Brooks 
Michael Carolan 
Mike Culpepper 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Carolan 
Seconded by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 6, 2012 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Abitheira (arrived 3:15 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, ROBERT MOORHOUSE, MOORHOUSE AND 

ASSOCIATES, 900 TOWER – For relief of Chapter 85 in order to place two 
additional 206 square foot wall signs. 
 
Mr. Grusnick presented a brief report on the item.  He indicated the department 
received no responses to the public hearing notices. 
 
The petitioner, Robert Moorhouse, was present.  Tony Antone of Kojaian 
Management and Mike Twarozyouski of Plex Systems were also present.   

bittnera
Text Box
O-01b



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JUNE 20, 2012 
  
 
 

2 
 

Mr. Antone announced Plex Systems is looking to move to Troy and occupy four 
floors (62,000 square feet) of the 900 Tower building, with the right to expand up to 
seven floors (110,000 square feet) in the future.  He briefly addressed the 
commercial vacancy rate, and said the signage and visibility for the customers and 
client base of the new company is critical from a wayfinding standpoint.  Mr. Antone 
said no more than two signs would be visible at one time, no matter where one 
would stand on the site.  He noted Citizens Bank signage has visibility from I-75 and 
the bank has exclusive rights on the elevations. 
 
Mr. Moorhouse informed the Board that Plex Systems is requesting the signage at 
900 Tower as a wayfinding aid for their worldwide customers and clients.  He said 
the signage would give visibility to a growing company whose headquarters would 
be new to the City of Troy and the State of Michigan.  Mr. Moorhouse addressed the 
proposed signage with respect to location, elevation, lettering and symmetry to the 
existing Citizens Bank signage, and further noted there is no surrounding residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Twarozyouski, Sr. Vice President of Finance and Operations, said Plex Systems 
is a software computer company that provides enterprise resource planning (ERP) 
services to high liability manufacturers in the automotive supply, aerospace, 
beverage and food supplies and electronics industries.  He said the company is a 
high growth company that grew on an average of 27% in the past five years.  Mr. 
Twarozyouski indicated the company has committed to four floors of the 900 Tower 
building, with the right to an additional three floors.  It is anticipated that 250 people 
will be employed within the next four to five years.   
 
Chair Dziurman shared a concern about the size of the sign and asked if the 
applicant would be amenable to smaller 200 square foot signs. 
 
Mr. Antone replied they could go with 200 square feet per sign. 
 
Chair Dziurman said the 200 square feet is the maximum size permitted by the Sign 
Ordinance, and the only approval needed by the Board would be for the additional 
signage. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Allowable signage on Big Beaver Road. 
 Visibility from I-75. 
 Sign dimensions. 

 
Moved by: Carolan 
Seconded by: Culpepper 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the appeal request because the proposed signage goes 
well with the area, the request is only for six square feet above the square footage 
requirement, two signs only will be visible at any one time and there are no public 
objections.   



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JUNE 20, 2012 
  
 
 

3 
 

Yeas: 3 (Brooks, Carolan, Culpepper) 
Nays: 1 (Dziurman) 
Absent: Abitheira (arrived 3:15 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Dziurman indicated his opposing vote is based on the size of the signs. 
 

[Gary Abitheira arrived 3:15 p.m.] 
 
B. VARIANCE REQUEST, JIM GHANEM FOR JIM’S AWNING, 5600 CROOKS – For 

relief of Chapter 85 in order to place a 30 square foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Grusnick presented a brief report on the item.  He indicated the department 
received no responses to the public hearing notices.  Mr. Grusnick displayed 
photographs of the existing three signs on the property.  He explained the reason 
the appeal application is before the Board today is that it has come to the attention 
of the City that the property has been maintaining three existing ground signs since 
2004.  At the time the City issued a sign permit to the former Palm restaurant, the 
City requested removal of the existing ‘For Lease’ sign; but to date, the sign still 
exists.  In order to approve the proposed new sign, a sign variance is necessary to 
allow three ground signs on the site.  Mr. Grusnick said the proposed new sign 
would replace the existing Loccino restaurant sign (located in the middle) with a 
smaller LED sign. 
 
Frank Shushtari, owner of Loccino restaurant, was present.  Mr. Shushtari said the 
new LED sign would advertise the restaurant’s banquet and catering facility and 
special occasions.  He addressed the existing vacancy rate and indicated the 
landlord has no intention of removing the ‘For Lease’ sign until all vacancies are 
filled.  
 
Mr. Grusnick addressed the difference between real estate signs for residential and 
commercial properties.  He said this particular “For Lease” sign is considered 
permanent because it is a ground sign and because of its size, even though the 
need for the sign will eventually go away.  Mr. Grusnick confirmed that in this 
instance because of the economic times, the “For Lease” sign is restricting signage 
for ongoing businesses. 
 
Khalil Ajami of Jim’s Awning, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Ajami 
addressed the sign dimensions and message board in relation to timing and control 
of multiple messages.   
 
There was discussion on: 

 Future signage on building dependent on Board’s decision today. 
 Timing / changing of message board. 
 Illumination intensity/regulations of intensity during after dark hours.   



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JUNE 20, 2012 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mr. Culpepper voiced concern that an active business is being penalized because of 
a temporary sign. 
 
Moved by: Carolan 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, To approve the appeal request because the applicant has shown a 
true hardship and with the stipulation that lighting intensity is dimmer at night. 
 
Motion on the floor fails due to lack of support. 
 
Discussion continued on the illumination and brightness intensity of the proposed 
signage. 
 
Mr. Ajami addressed the light intensity of their manufactured signs.  He indicated the 
signs are not very bright during after dark hours and would not be distracting to 
traffic.  Mr. Ajami said their signs comply with regulations of most cities. 
 
Mr. Grusnick said the Sign Ordinance does not regulate light intensity/illumination, 
other than stating sign lighting shall not adversely affect driver visibility.  He did note 
that the Sign Ordinance regulates the timing of board messages to one minute. 
 
Moved by: Carolan 
Seconded by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the appeal request subject to the Planning Department 
approval of intensity. 
 
Yeas: All present (5) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 

 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 
Chair Dziurman reminded the Board there are no agenda items scheduled for a July 
meeting at this time. 







bittnera
Text Box
O-01c





ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   draft  JULY 17, 2012 

1 

On July 17, 2012, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Chair Kneale called 
the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Bruce Bloomingdale 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
Allen Kneale 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Orestis Kaltsounis, Alternate (arrived at 7:42 p.m.) 
 
Absent: 
David Lambert 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – June 19, 2012 
 

RESOLVED, to approve the June 19, 2012 meeting minutes. 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, MINAL GADA AND ASHISH MANEK, 4820 LIVERNOIS – 

In order to split the parcel into 3 separate parcels, a 2 foot variance from the 
requirement that the parcels be at least 100 feet wide. 
 
Strat recuses and leaves the dais, Kaltsounis sits. 
 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Bloomingdale 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 

bittnera
Text Box
O-01d



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   draft  JULY 17, 2012 

2 

Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Strat returns to the room, Kaltsounis leaves the dais. 

 
 
5. COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – By informal consensus, the Board agreed there is no 

longer a need to require persons speaking to the Board sign their name at the sheet 
provided at the podium.  Member Strat advised the Board of procedures of a 
neighboring community’s ZBA. 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 8:22 p.m. 

 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
Allen Kneale, Chair 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
 
G:\BZA\Minutes\2012\Draft\2012 07 17 ZBA Minutes Draft.doc 
 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   final  JULY 17, 2012 

1 

On July 17, 2012, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Chair Kneale called 
the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Bruce Bloomingdale 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
Allen Kneale 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Orestis Kaltsounis, Alternate (arrived at 7:42 p.m.) 
 
Absent: 
David Lambert 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – June 19, 2012 
 

RESOLVED, to approve the June 19, 2012 meeting minutes. 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, MINAL GADA AND ASHISH MANEK, 4820 LIVERNOIS – 

In order to split the parcel into 3 separate parcels, a 2 foot variance from the 
requirement that the parcels be at least 100 feet wide. 
 
Strat recuses and leaves the dais, Kaltsounis sits. 
 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Bloomingdale 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 

bittnera
Text Box
O-01e





bittnera
Text Box
O-01f







PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on August 28, 2012 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat  (arrived 7:04 p.m.) 
John J. Tagle 
 
Absent: 
Philip Sanzica 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Eric Huang, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08-058 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the Agenda to include Beachview Estates Site Condominium as 
Agenda item 8. A. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Strat (arrived 7:04 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
[Mr. Strat arrived at 7:04 p.m.] 

bittnera
Text Box
O-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

2 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08-059 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the August 14, 2012 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat reported there was no Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting in August. 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority (DDA) meeting in 
August. 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the proposed Charter One Bank Branch Conditional Rezoning 
request, 125 Stephenson Highway and 1250 W 14 Mile Road (Planning Department 
File Number CR 007).  The item was postponed at the August 27, 2012 City Council 
meeting at the request of the current property owner. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 397) – Proposed Fisher Dynamics Metal Forming, West of 
Crooks, South Side of Maple (1625 W. Maple), Section 32, Currently Zoned MR (Maple 
Road) District 
 
The petitioner was not present at this time.  The Board agreed to move to Agenda item 
8.A. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

3 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

8. A. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Beachview Estates Site Condominium, 
West side of Beach Road, 1000’ South of Long Lake, Section 18, Currently Zoned R-1A 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
The Board considered this item at their June 26, 2012 Special/Study meeting.  After 
discussion, the item was postponed to allow the petitioner time to consider an alternate 
plan with the intent to address comments and concerns expressed by the Board. 
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, provided revised plans utilizing the 
one-family cluster option.  The revised plans were digitally distributed to members prior 
to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Savidant and Mr. Carlisle gave a cursory 
review of the proposed revised plans. 
 
Mr. Maniaci was present and addressed comments and questions from staff and Board 
members. 
 
The site plan as revised received favorable comments from the Board. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 397) – Proposed Fisher Dynamics Metal Forming, West of 
Crooks, South Side of Maple (1625 W. Maple), Section 32, Currently Zoned MR (Maple 
Road) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed application and recommended approval upon 
confirmation from the Fire Marshal that the fire access is sufficient. 
 
The petitioner, Jeff Thompson, was present.  Mr. Thompson shared some historical 
facts about the company. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2012-08-060 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Fisher Dynamics Metal Forming, located on the west of Crooks, south side of 
Maple (1625 W. Maple), Section 32, currently zoned MR (Maple Road) District, be 
granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There was general Planning Commission discussion. 
 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2012 PC Minutes\Draft\2012 08 28 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on August 28, 2012 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat  (arrived 7:04 p.m.) 
John J. Tagle 
 
Absent: 
Philip Sanzica 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Eric Huang, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08-058 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the Agenda to include Beachview Estates Site Condominium as 
Agenda item 8. A. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Strat (arrived 7:04 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
[Mr. Strat arrived at 7:04 p.m.] 

bittnera
Text Box
O-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

2 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08-059 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the August 14, 2012 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat reported there was no Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting in August. 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority (DDA) meeting in 
August. 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the proposed Charter One Bank Branch Conditional Rezoning 
request, 125 Stephenson Highway and 1250 W 14 Mile Road (Planning Department 
File Number CR 007).  The item was postponed at the August 27, 2012 City Council 
meeting at the request of the current property owner. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 397) – Proposed Fisher Dynamics Metal Forming, West of 
Crooks, South Side of Maple (1625 W. Maple), Section 32, Currently Zoned MR (Maple 
Road) District 
 
The petitioner was not present at this time.  The Board agreed to move to Agenda item 
8.A. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

3 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

8. A. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Beachview Estates Site Condominium, 
West side of Beach Road, 1000’ South of Long Lake, Section 18, Currently Zoned R-1A 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
The Board considered this item at their June 26, 2012 Special/Study meeting.  After 
discussion, the item was postponed to allow the petitioner time to consider an alternate 
plan with the intent to address comments and concerns expressed by the Board. 
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, provided revised plans utilizing the 
one-family cluster option.  The revised plans were digitally distributed to members prior 
to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Savidant and Mr. Carlisle gave a cursory 
review of the proposed revised plans. 
 
Mr. Maniaci was present and addressed comments and questions from staff and Board 
members. 
 
The site plan as revised received favorable comments from the Board. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 397) – Proposed Fisher Dynamics Metal Forming, West of 
Crooks, South Side of Maple (1625 W. Maple), Section 32, Currently Zoned MR (Maple 
Road) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed application and recommended approval upon 
confirmation from the Fire Marshal that the fire access is sufficient. 
 
The petitioner, Jeff Thompson, was present.  Mr. Thompson shared some historical 
facts about the company. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 5, 2012 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on September 5, 2012 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks 
Michael Carolan 
Mike Culpepper 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Acting Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Carolan 
Seconded by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 20, 2012 Special meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yeas: All present (5) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Chair Dziurman announced the petitioner withdrew Agenda item 3.B. because a third sign was 
no longer needed. 
 
 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, 44201 DEQUINDRE, JONES LANG LA SALLE AT 

BEAUMONT HEALTH SYSTEMS – For relief of Section 716.5.5 of the 2009 
Michigan Building Code to omit smoke dampers in ductwork penetrating smoke 
barriers throughout William Beaumont Hospital Troy campus. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported this Board approved this request in April 2005 as a variance 
to the 2003 Michigan Building Code.  He indicated the request before the Board 
today is to continue the variance under the 2009 Michigan Building Code.  Staff 
reviews of the Codes confirm there are no changes to the Code requirements for 
the smoke dampers and, more importantly, no code changes that would require 

bittnera
Text Box
O-01i



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 5, 2012 
  
 
 

2 
 

quick response sprinkler heads for the building use.  Therefore, the use of quick 
response sprinkler heads remains a code equivalent option for the Board’s 
consideration. 
 
The applicant, Jake Meadows of Jones Lang LaSalle at Beaumont Health System, 
was present.  Mr. Meadows summarized the documentation provided with the 
application and asked the Board’s approval to use quick response sprinkler heads 
within the facility as an alternative to meet the 2009 Building Code requirement for 
smoke dampers. 
 
Mr. Meadows addressed the Life Safety Code NFPA 101, 2006 edition, Section 
19.3.7.4, which stipulates smoke dampers are not required and the 2009 Building 
Code in which smoke dampers are required.  He read excerpts from Life Safety 
Code meeting minutes that support the use of quick response sprinkler heads.  Mr. 
Meadows also addressed the costs associated with smoke dampers versus quick 
response sprinkler heads. 
 
Assistant Fire Chief Roberts stated the Fire Department has no objections to the 
petitioner’s request. 
 
Plan Analyst Kessler addressed evaluations conducted on quick response 
sprinkler heads and the documented support for their use. 
 
Moved by: Carolan 
Seconded by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the variance based on the following: 
1. The Fire Department has no objections; and 
2. Approval was granted on the same variance request in 2005.  
 
Yeas: All present (5) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
B. VARIANCE REQUEST, 1057-1155 E. LONG LAKE, GREG CARR OF 

UNIVERSAL SIGNS – For relief of Chapter 85, Section 85.02.05(4) to install a 
third ground sign measuring 25 square feet in area. 

 
Item withdrawn by petitioner. 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 5, 2012 
  
 
 

3 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 

 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 
None. 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Moved by: Carolan 
Seconded by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To adjourn meeting. 
 
Yeas: All present (5) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Regular meeting of the Board of Building Appeals adjourned at 3:17 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\Draft\2012 09 05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 
 





LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 10, 2012  

 Page 1 of 4 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, September 10, 
2012 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Julie Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
    Jeffrey Oberski, Analyst/Planner 
    Jesse Pappas, Student Representative 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Godlewski, Ogg, Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2012-09-021 
Moved by Hall  
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee members Godlewski, Ogg, and Payne at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of September 10, 2012 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski, Ogg, Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of August 13, 2012 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2012-09-022 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the August 13, 2012 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be APPROVED. 
 

bittnera
Text Box
O-01j



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 10, 2012  

 Page 2 of 4 

Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski, Ogg, Payne 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. 7-Eleven, Inc. requests a new SDM liquor license with Sunday Sales (AM) Permit, to 

be located at 4060 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48084. This is at the northeast corner 
of Rochester Road and Wattles. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Jason Canvasser, attorney for 
applicant, and Jim Carline, field consultant for applicant. 
 
Applicant’s representatives advised the Committee that this will be the fifth 7-Eleven store in 
Troy.  There has been one violation in the past four years.  Applicant’s parent company has 
a comprehensive, computer-based alcohol training program that all employees must 
complete with a 100% score.  All employees must repeat this training on an annual basis.  
This location is currently a corporate store, but will eventually be franchised.  The liquor 
license will be in the corporation’s name with the franchisee as the co-licensee.   
 
The Police Department had no adverse findings to report. 
 
Resolution #LC2012-09-023 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 7-Eleven, 
Inc. for a new SDM liquor license with Sunday Sales (AM) Permit, to be located at 4060 
Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48084 be APPROVED, pending approval of all final inspections. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski, Ogg, Payne 
 
 
 
2. Sakura of Troy, Inc. requests a new Class C Quota License “above all others”    

and new SDM license with new Sunday Sales Permit (PM), and new Sunday Sales 
Permit (AM) to be located at 3635 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48098.                    
This is just north of Colebrook Street. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Joseph Shallal, attorney for 
applicant, and applicants Ho Yin Yip and Li Zhang. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 10, 2012  

 Page 3 of 4 

Mr. Shallal advised the Committee that the applicants currently own the Golden Harvest 
Restaurant in Warren.  They have 20 years of experience in the Asian food business.  They 
plan to open a Japanese hibachi-style steak house utilizing the “teppanyaki” cooking 
method.  As is the practice in the Warren restaurant, there will be monthly staff meetings to 
reinforce all liquor license laws.  The restaurant will be open seven days a week, from 11:00 
a.m. to 10:00 p.m.   
 
Building permits have been issued for interior renovations.  The façade on the south side will 
be removed which will add parking spaces.  However, the entire building will not be utilized 
for the restaurant since there would not be enough parking spaces for the square footage.   
 
Mr. Shallal stated that the applicants would be willing to agree in advance to return the 
Class C license to the city’s quota system if they fail at their endeavor and a restaurant is 
not operated at this location.  Assistant City Attorney Dufrane stated that she is unfamiliar 
with such an agreement and would research the concept. 
 
Mr. Ukrainec expressed concerns about the inability to view plans for exterior improvements 
prior to making a decision.  The Committee briefly discussed this issue in view of the fact 
that the applicants state that they will be investing a considerable amount of money in the 
façade on the south side of the building.  
 
The Police Department reports that there are unpaid personal property taxes.  There have 
been no final inspections.   
 
Also, the Police Department located two incidents that occurred at the Golden Harvest 
Restaurant in Warren in March of 2000 and July of 2000 involving Li Zhang.  Both incidents 
involved contact with the Warren Police Department, no citations were issued, and they do 
not appear on the records of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.   
 
Resolution #LC2012-09-024 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of Sakura 
of Troy, Inc. for a new Class C Quota License “above all others” and new SDM license with 
new Sunday Sales Permit (PM), and new Sunday Sales Permit (AM) to be located at 3635 
Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48098 be APPROVED pending approval of all final inspections 
and with a request to City Council to consider applicant’s offer to return liquor license to the 
city’s quota system if they fail at their endeavor and a restaurant is not operated at this 
location. 
 
Yes:  Ehlert, Hall, Kaltsounis 
No:  Ukrainec 
Absent: Godlewski, Ogg, Payne 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 10, 2012  

 Page 4 of 4 

Assistant City Attorney Dufrane advised the Committee that on September 20, 2012 a 
meeting will be held of the Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys.  One of the topics of 
discussion will be the changes of the MLCC regulations.  She will report findings after that 
meeting. 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft September 11, 2012 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Tuesday, September 11, 2012, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. 
Chairman/President McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:30 AM. 
 
A. ROLL CALL: 
    
   PRESENT:  Chairman/President Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

 Commissioner David Cannon  
 Commissioner John Steele     

 
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
  M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 

  Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
George Zielinski, Police Sergeant 
Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Specialist 

   
There was a moment of silence for West Bloomfield Police Officer Patrick O’Rourke who was 
killed in the line of duty on Sunday, September 9, 2012. 

 
B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
1. Approval of Minutes of Tuesday, June 26, 2012 
 
Resolution #CSC-2012-09-014 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Steele 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the Tuesday, June 26, 2012 meeting as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  None 
 
D. REPORTS:  None 

 
E. OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of Eligible List for Police Officer 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #CSC-2012-09-015 
Moved by Cannon 

bittnera
Text Box
O-01k



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft September 11, 2012 
 

-2- 

Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Police Officer as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Police Chief Mayer reported that the Police Department is looking to hire five or six Police 
Officers from the newly approved eligible list. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 
 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT:   
 
The Civil Service Commission (Act 78) meeting ADJOURNED at 7:44 AM. 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  

 
 



 
September 14, 2012 
 
 
TO:   Michael Culpepper, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Troy Transit Center Status Report - September 2012 
 
Final review and approval of critical transit center design elements and clearances from the tracks, 
power lines and other utilities was completed in August.  The height of the platform to satisfy 
Americans with Disability Act (ADA) requirements was vetted by MDOT and the Federal Rail 
Administration (FRA).  The height of the platform has been approved at eight inches above top of rail, 
pending receipt of formal documentation from the FRA.     
 
The design team completed final design and construction bid documents in late August.  Our 
construction manager, Tooles/Clark, is currently soliciting bids from the various construction trades, 
which they will use to assemble their Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP).             
 
Utility relocation work in advance of the transit center construction is ongoing.  Detroit Edison started 
work July 29th relocating their overhead lines to underground.  AT&T is proceeding with relocation of 
their overhead lines, currently on Edison’s poles, to underground.   ITC Transmission Co. is on 
schedule to de-energize their overhead high voltage lines starting in early October and lasting until 
May.  This work is critical to construction of the elevator/stair towers and bridge, which is in close 
proximity to the high voltage lines. 
 
Work coming up in next 30 days includes: 
 

• Submission of GMP by Tooles/Clark, Construction Manager  
• Council action on Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for Transit Center Construction 
• Ongoing DTE and AT&T relocation work, completion by October 1st 
• Formal FRA approval on platform height 

 
A summary of Transit Center costs for the Preliminary Design Phase, which ended December 15, 
2011, and the Final Design Phase, which we are currently in, are attached.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or would like information on any particular aspect of the 
project.   
 

 
  

G:\Transit Center\Status Reports to Council\September_2012_Status Report.doc 

CCOOUUNNCCIILL    RREEPPOORRTT  
 

  

bittnera
Text Box
O-02a







 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:         September 20, 2012                     
 
 
To:   Michael Culpepper, Acting City Manager     
  
From:  Thomas E. Darling, Director of Financial Services 
 
Subject: Retiree Pension and Benefit Report for Calendar Year Ended December 31, 2011 
 
 
Please find attached the City of Troy Employees Retirement System Pension and Healthcare Benefits 
paid for the calendar year ended December 31, 2012 as requested by City Council in the memo 
dated August 1, 2012. 
 
Information that is not readily available has been left blank. This information will require further 
research due to the nature of the transition from employee to surviving beneficiary. 
 
It should be noted that Primary Dept Code “Retirees DB/DC Annuity” are individuals who elected to 
contribute amounts in their defined contribution plans to the defined benefit plan in exchange for an 
annual annuity as calculated by the city’s actuaries based on the amount contributed and surviving 
beneficiary options elected. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TD\G:my documents\agenda\2012\09.24.12 – Retiree Pension and Healthcare Report 12-31-11 

bittnera
Text Box
O-02b





























bittnera
Text Box
O-03a



bittnera
Text Box
O-03b



bittnera
Text Box
O-03c



bittnera
Text Box
O-05





bittnera
Text Box
O-06











bittnera
Text Box
O-07


	20120924 Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA: September 24, 2012
	COVER LETTER:
	VISION STATEMENT & GOALS:
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Alternative Automotive Technologies – 1225 E. Maple
	E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Alternative Automotive Technologies – 1225 E. Maple

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  Planned Unit Development (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (Formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North Side of Big Beaver Road Between Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Animal Control Appeal Board; Parks and Recreation Board
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations – None
	I-3 Request for Closed Session
	I-4  Application Regarding SDM Liquor License for 7-Eleven

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Regular City Council Meeting – September 10, 2012

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Proposed
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance Program
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Collection Agency Services
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts

	J-5  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions
	J-6  Community Center Kitchen Lease Renewal
	J-7  Citizens United Against Corrupt Government v. Troy City Council

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) Announcement of Public Hearing for October 22, 2012 – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2013 Application
	b) Announcement of Public Hearing for October 8, 2012 – Conditional Rezoning Application (File Number CR 006) – Proposed Troy Plaza Development, West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5550 New King), Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit Development...

	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Downtown Development Authority-Final-May 2, 2012
	b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-June 20, 2012
	c) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final-June 26, 2012
	d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-July 17, 2012
	e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-July 17, 2012
	f) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-August 13, 2012
	g) Planning Commission-Special/Study-Draft-August 28, 2012
	h) Planning Commission-Special/Study-Final-August 28, 2012
	i) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-September 5, 2012
	j) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-September 10, 2012
	k) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Draft-September 11, 2012

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) Troy Transit Center Status Report – September 2012
	b) Retiree Pension and Benefit Report for Calendar Year Ended December 31, 2011

	O-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation to Troy Fire Department from Virginia Mottershaw Thanking Firefighter Robinson for Assistance
	b) Letter of Congratulations to Mayor and City Council from James D. McDonald, Mayor of Auburn Hills, Congratulating Troy for Being Recognized by CNN-Money as One of America’s Top 100 Places to Live
	c) Letter of Congratulations to Mayor Daniels from Bryan K. Barnett, Mayor of Rochester Hills, Congratulating Troy for Being Recognized by CNN-Money as One of America’s Top 100 Places to Live

	O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
	O-5  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of The Detroit Edison Company Case No. U-16656
	O-6  Crain’s Detroit Business Article – “Mahindra Picks Troy to Set Up First North American Technical Center”
	O-7  Certificate from the Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys Inducting City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Into the Academy of Municipal Attorneys

	P. STUDY ITEMS:
	P-1  No Study Items

	Q. CLOSED SESSION:
	Q-1  Closed Session

	R. ADJOURNMENT:


	co: 
	name: Alternative Automotive Technologies, L.L.C.

	indust: 
	class: 336111 

	location: 1225 E. Maple Road, Troy, MI 48083
	city: Troy
	county: Oakland
	a: Yes
	school: Troy School District
	code: 63150
	years: 10  (Qualifies for 9 Years)
	5: See attached.
	cost: 
	0: 0
	1: 940000
	2: 940000

	begin: 
	date: 
	0: 7/27/2012
	1: 7/27/12


	end: 
	date: 
	0: 6/30/14
	1: 6/30/14


	b: Yes
	c: Yes
	8: Off
	9: 8
	10: 127
	11: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 

	12: Yes
	dist: 
	12c: yes
	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 0
	1: 940000
	2: 940000

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor  MMAO (4) #6345



